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Chairman'’s statement
“Good progress in a tough environment”

Despite difficult market conditions our results for 2016 were in-line with expectations and

the Group continued to deliver against our ambitious strategic objectives. The combination

of necessary management actions to address the current market difficulties and the continued
progress in the execution of our strategy underpin our plans to enhance customer relationships,
grow our market shares and further improve working capital. The Group’s balance sheet is
strong and our operations are inherently cash generative which provides the headroom to
invest in organic development and appropriate acquisition opportunities as they arise.

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

Continuing to execute our strategy

During 2016, the considerable work being undertaken to improve our businesses
gained traction as we continued to improve both our operations and our customer
offering. Tha strategic initiatives behind that work remain our priority, despite the
market headwinds our industry cumently faces. There is no quéstion that IMI is
becoming a stronger, more efficient and more competitive company capable of
delivering long-term sustainable growth.

As our businesses continue to improve, the resulting benefits are becoming
increasingly evident to our customers — improved on-time-delivery, faster response
times and reduced scrap rates are the fundamental pre-requisites that will confirm
IMI as a world-class supplier. We have also improved significantly our product
offering in 2016, having launched many new products and re-vitalised our go-to-
market and sales strategies in several parts of the Group. All of these initiatives are
significantly enhancing our customers’ service axperience and our competitiveness.
More details about these positive developments are set out in the Chief Executive's
review On pages 4 to 43.

Our people

The improvements being made in all parts of the Group are due to our people who,
despite the on-going difficult economic and market conditions, are relentlessly driving
our many strategic and operational growth initiatives. | have seen this first hand during
the site visits we undertook during the year. in October, the Board met in Gemmany
where we had an opportunity to visit Hydronic Engineering’s plant in Erwitte and
Precision Engineering'’s Buschjost operations. In both kecations the progress has been
impressive and the hard work and enthusiasrm of employees were clearly evident,

Dividend

Reflacting continued confidence in the Group's prospects, the Board is recommending
a final dividend increase of 1% to 24.7p (2015: 24.5p) making a total dividend for the
year of 38.7p, an increase of 1% over last year's 38.4p.

Looking ahead

This is an exciting time to be part of IMI. Our various strategic growth initiatives are
laying the foundations for long-term shareholder value creation. Today our underlying
business is stronger and our ability to compete and win in the marketplace is being
significantly enhanced. We will be very well piaced to deliver accelerated growth

and sustainable and profitable progress as market conditions improve.

Board detalls Corporsts Governance
Turn o page 48 Tum 0 page 49
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Group overview

IMI plc is a specialised engineering company that designs, manufactures and services highly
engineered products that control the precise movement of fluids.

IMI S651m

Critical Engineering Operating profi

IMI Critical Engineering is a world- £81 8m
lpading provider of critical flow control

solutions that enable vital energy and  Number of employees
process industries 1o operate safely,

cleanly, reliably and more efficientty. 3, 700

M) Critical Englnoering op treview
Tum 10 page 22

IMI &oem

Precision Engineering Operating prot
IMI Precision Engineering specialises

£118.5m
in developing motion and fluid control
technologies for applications where Nurnber of employees
precision, speed and refiability

M Pracision Enginsering operstiona! review
Tarn 1o pager 24

IMI  =5on

Hydronic Engineering Opersting profi

IMI Hydronic Engineering is the leading £51.9m
gl_obal supplier of products for hydronic

distribution systems which deliver Number of employees
optimal and energy efficient heating

and cooling systems to the residential 1 ,900

and commercial bullding sectors.

M1 Hydronic Enginesring operational review
Tum t page 28
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http:/Awaw iiplc. com/about-imi‘our-divisions/mi-at-8-glance.asou

@ Wal's globat footprint

Group revenue by geography

Group revenue by dwision

Key brarxis

IMI Bopp & Reuther, MI CCl,

IMI Fluid Kinetics, IMI interAtiva,
IMi NH, ™I Orton, IMI Remosa,
M SSF, IMI STI, IMI TH Jansen,
M| Truflo Marine, IMI Trufio Rona,
WM Tnudlo Raly, MI Z8.), IMI Zikesch
Major operational locations
Beigium, Brazil, China, Czech

)

Power Ol Gas Petrochamical Actuation

We are the wortd Wa supply anti-surge We dasign and We focus an the design
leading supplier of vaive and actuator systems  manufachure integrated and production of complete
enginesred to order to the world’s largest LNG flow control systems actuation systems to cpenate
turbine bypass valves compression facilties. Our for crifical applications industrial valves for the most
for critical appfications in systerns are capable of ultra-  in Fluid Cetalytic Cracking demanding applications and
conventionzt and nuclear fast response to maximise ‘Wa also supply baspole processes in terms of forces,
power plants —halping 1o LNG procuction while vaivas into the sthylene, speed and accuracy.
provide the safest, most protecting the critical polypropylene and 2016 Ravenye: E27m
refiabie and afﬁ;:iant procass equipment. delayed coking

power genaration. 2016 Revenue: £187m production processes.

2016 Revenug: £280m

Key brands

M Norgren, IMi Buschiost,

M FAS, IMI Herion, IMI Maxseal
Major oparational locations
Brazil, China, Czech Rapubiic,
Germany, Mexico, Switzedand,
UK and USA

A clal Vehicle Ol Gos Lite Sciencas
We supply high Wa design and Wa offer a comprehensive We supply precision
performance products marufaciure a range range of products which flow control solutions
including vaives, vaiva of cab chassis and deliver precision controd used in medical devices,
islards, propaortional powertrain sohstions in even the harshast diagnostic equipment
and pressure monitonng which daliver fual emironments, including and bictech and analytical
vontrols and air preparation.  efficiency, emissions staintess steal vahves and instrumants. We help to
products, aswellasa recuction and faster regulators, nuclear class reduce the size of customers’
comprehensive range assembly times for velvas and emergency procucts, while enhancing
of pheumnatic actuators. the world's lsading shutdown cantrols. accuraty, throughput and
2016 Revenus: £396m commerciel vehicie 2016 Revenys: £63m fiid control performance.
manuiachurers. 2016 Revenue: £57m

2016 Revenue: £1681m

Key brands
Ml TA, IMI Flow Design,
IMI Haimeier, IMI Praumatex

Mzjor operational locations
Germany, Poland, Slovenia,
Sweden, Switzertand and USA

2/

0

Balancing & Cantro) Thermostatic Comtrol Prossurisation Water Quality

Qur hydronic balancing We dasign and Refiable pressurisation is The single most important
and control solutions manuiacture thermostatic a basic requirement for a compenent in any hydronic
enable buildings to keep control systems which trouble-free operation of system s the water itseff,
comtort at the right leval gquarantee direct or heating, cocling and When compromised, the
while increasing HVAC automatic contral of solar systems, Qur effects can significantly impact
efficiency by up to 30%. racligtors and undarfioor robust range of pressure the efficiency of the system.
Our expertise covers heating systems to malnterance systamswith  Cur dirt and air separators
constant and variable flow precisely control ncfiviciual comprassorsorpumps and  arkd pressyre step degassers
and both static and room temperatures, axpansion vessals maintains  protect the installation
dynamic balancing. 20165 Revenue: £102m the right pressurein the by keeping water frea of

2016 Revenus; £145m

systern at &ll {imes.
2016 Revenue: E31m

microbubbles and sludge.
2016 Revenue; £12m
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Chief Executive's review
“Building competitive advantage”

2016 was another year of important progress for IMI. As well as continuing to improve
both our operational performance and our customer offering, we have acted decisively
to ensure our cost-base continues to support our growth ambitions while also protecting
near-term performance. '

Improvement despite headwinds

2016 was a year of significant progress for the Group with results in-line with market
expectations despite continuing headwinds in a number of our key markets. Qur various
initiatives have further improved operational performance, and on-going investment in
great new products and customer soiutions has enhanced our market competitiveness.
Trading conditions in many of our geographies and markets remained difficult
throughout 2016. The cautlous industrial investment environment continued to impact
new order opportunities as customers tightened spending in the face of economic and
political uncertainty,
The Ol & Gas market, which represents aimost a third of Critical Engineering’s
revenues, continued to be impacted by falling investment, including a significant
reduction in iquid natural gas (LNG) projects. The Power generation sector was
Mark Selway impacted by lower operational spending reflecting delays, particularty in North America,
where power providers have extended the time batween planned outagss.

Chief Executive
While European and Asia Pacific truck markets remained resiient, the US heavy truck
market declined significantly which impacted revenues in Precision Engineering.
industrial Automation markets globally wera broadly flat with some signs of recovery
in Europe and North America in the final quarter of the year.

In Hydronic Engineering, European construction markets remained subdued with
warmer weather impacting the heating season. In addition, North America and China
experienced some project delays.

In response to the protracted deterioration in several of our most important markets,
the Group has undertaken a number of restructuring activities that wil continue into
2017. These actions include the sale or closure of eight lower growth, higher cost
Critical Engineering sites and the reduction of operating costs across the entire Group.

In Precision Engineering, in-line with our strategy to simpiify the business and ensure
that we have the most efficient platform for future growth, the division undertook an
extansive review of its operational footprint. The review — named Project Janus — is now
being spiit into two phases. The implementation of Phase 1 has already begun and
involves those projects that can be executed quickly and with the least disruption to
ouwr business. This includes a structured progremme of cost reductions, insourcing to

Strategic timeline

08 ane 007 08
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Reported profit before tax
£208 . Om Down 5%

i

i

Segmental operating margin

1 88% Down 160bps

increase machining capacity utilisation, simplification of the
organisational structure and further levarage of our low cost
European manufacturing operations. A second phase is
contingent on market conditions and anticipates potentially.
substantial and more complex changes, particularly in areas
such as Commercial Vehicle, where significant new project
quotation activity exists. All of these actions will help to protect
operating margins and improve our competitive position in
what remains an uncertain market environment.

In Hydronic Engineering, the subdued ernvironmentt in key
European markets, cormnbined with greater efficiencies resulting
from the IT and operational improvements, have provided the
basis to reduce operating costs, which wil be evident in the
division's activities in 2017,

Results overview

Reported Group revenues were 6% higher at £1,649m (2015:
£1,557m). Excluding favourable exchange rate movernents and
disposals, Group revenuss on an organic basis were 5% lower
due to continuing difficult end markets. Reported segmental
operating profit was 5% lower at £228m (2015: £239m).
Excluding the impact of favourable exchange rate movaments
and disposals, segmental operating profit was 17% lower

on an organic basis reflecting lower volumes and continued
investments, partially offset by the benefits of restructuring.
The Group's operating margin was 13.8% (2015: 15.4%) and
reported earnings per share were 49% lower at 59.8p (2015:
62.2p). Operating cash flow of £246m (2015: £232m) reflected
the benefits of the Group's lean initiatives which underpinned
working capital improvernents in the year.

Net Debt of £283m (2015: £237m) was impacted by adverse
currency of £97m and resulted in a Net Debt to EBITDA ratio
of 1.0x agsinst 0.9x at the end of 2015.

M) Critical Engineering has worki-class cryogenic
testing facilities, for atl classas of valves. Here buttarlly

valves era being lowered into the iouid nitrogen in Switzeriand

The M) Executive team discover Hydronic Engineering’s
new Zeparo G-Force turneble dirt separators at the plant

Good strategic progress

it is particularly newarding to report a further year of successful
execution of our strategy. Key achievernents, including

a significant and positive cultural shift with a passion for
continuous improvement, improved operational performance
and success in our endeavours to add high quality products
across all three divisions, have all contributed to our results

in 2016. We move forward with confidence that we will achieve
world-class performance by 2019, as envisaged in our original
2014 plan. Our objective to double operating profit by that point
also remains our goal, although achieving that will clearly rety
upon a more favourable market environment, and will aimost
certainly be reached beyond the original 2019 timescale.

Improving our operational performance

Improving operationzal performance is fundamental to our
objective of creating competitive advantage and remains

a key part of our strategic growth plan. During the year the
efficiency of our operations improved significantly.

Our operational improvements are assessed twice yearty

using an industry recognised lean benchmarking rmethodology.
During 20186, the Group's average lean score has continued 10
improve, and ended the year at 86% against 58% at the same
point in 2015. As a result of more efficient operations, scrap
rates continued to improve, on-time-delivery and inventory
management both made good pregress and the benefits were
evident in the Group's working capital in the year. This improved
productivity and operational performance provides an important
foundation to underpin our increased competitiveness and
responsivenass to customers.

Mark Saiway with Oliver Wehking, Managing Director of
IMI Buschjost, on a vislt to Pracision Enginearing's site
in Germany
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Readying our businesses for growfh

In the past two years, we have invested heavily in new systems
and processes which are essential to the Group's sustainable
competitive advantage. During 2016 new integrated IT systems,
that make day-to-day operations more cost and time efficient,
were successfully installed on-time and on-budget in Critical
Engineering’s plants in Sweden, Japan, India and Korea, two

of Precision Engineering's US operations, Hydronic Engineering’s

Poiish plant and at its headquarters in Switzerand. In 2017,
Critical Engineering will roll out an additional six sites in the

US and Asia, Precision Engineering will complete their remaining
sites In the US, and Hydronic Engineering will largely complete
the vast majority of their factories and sales offices.

in addition to much needed IT investment, our focus also
extends to embedding disciplined and efficient processes,
including New Product Development, competitor product
tear-downs and the application of Value Engineering.
These processes underpin the sustainability of continuous
improvement and ensure that investment ultimately delivers
an earlier and greater retumn. Much has been achieved to
simpiify the way our businesses operate.

New product portfolios

Our focus on New Product Development gained significant
momentum during the year and as a result we have expanded
our portfolio of great new products which enhance the
competitiveness of the Group. The Group's advanced product
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quality planning process (APQP) and competitor product
tear-downs have resufted in the development of an industry-
leading range of platform products in Pracision Engineering
which represent the first significant investment for more than
10 years. During the year Hydronic Engineering maintained
its development pipeline and launched 13 new products
while Critical Engineering introduced a significant number

of enhanced products. All three divisions have ambitious
plans to continue their product development strategies

in 2017 and beyond.

Compelling customer solutions

During the year, Critical Engineering developed an aggressive
Value Engineering programme to enhance its competitiveness.
Despite challenging market conditions, Value Engineering
helped to deliver new orders totalling £80m at historic margin
levels while providing, on average, a 15% cost reduction for
customers. In addition, Value Engineering has opened up

a number of new product markets where we are now able

to offer our worid-class valve technologies, providing an
additional basis for profitable growth.

Revised go-to-market strategies

In our Precision Engineering division, following the work
undertaken in 2015 1o identify the markets that offer the
greatest growth potential, the division's US and European
operations have been reorganised around key industry verticals
of Industrial Autornation, Commercial Vehicle, Life Sciences
and Energy. This new structure delivers sector marketing
sirategies that address distinct customer requirements,
target specific market opportunities and build stronger
customer relationships. In November, Precision Engineering
launched an innovative IMI Norgren Express App which
enables customers, using thekr smartphones, to identify,
locate and purchase replacement parts quickly and easily.

Business development

Alongside our organic: growth initiatives, 1argeted acquisitions
that mest our clearly defined and disciplined criteria remain

a core part of our strategy. While market conditions have
retluced the pipeline of opportunities, we continue to refine
our targets, enhance our integration processes and make
our underlying businesses stronger, all of which will facilitate
the success of any future developments.

Our people

As the Chairman highlights in his statement, the progress

that we continued to make in the vear is due to our employees
around the world. | would like to thank them for their hard
work and on-going drive and passion to deliver our strategic
ambitions. | am pleased to report the significant cultural
progress which has bean achieved across the whole of IME.
The business today has a passion for continuous improvement
and the ambition to improve competitiveness and deliver
better customer outcomas is fimnly embedded throughout

the organisation. | remain convinced that these conre ambitions
underpin the future success of IMI.

Outlook

Based on current market conditions, we expect organic
revenues in the first half of 2017 to reflect a similar percentage
reduction to the first half of 2016, with margins slightly lower
than the first half of last year. Results for the full year are
expected to include a second half bias reflecting the timing

of restructuring benefits and normal trading seasonality.
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Our strategic model

Our business model is built around our core strategic priorities of capitalising on growth
opportunities, operational excellence, investment in product development and targeted
acquisitions. Continuous investment in these areas will deliver improved, more innovative
products and services to our customers and help us increase our competitive advantage.
By meeting our customers’ needs and investing in our leading market positions, we are
well placed to grow profitably to the benefit of all stakeholders including our shareholders.

Engineering GREAT
the IMI Way
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Strategic growth enablers

To deliver our strategic growth objectives while capitalising on the geographic and operational
capabilities of the Group we have outlined the following key strategic enablers.

Working together as

one simplified IMI

To hamess the Group's full potential

we remain determined to channel

and maximise our scale to act as one

IMI. Establishing core processes has
provided a strong platform that undemins
a framework for creating consistent
Group-wide standards and behaviours.

Originally developed by our Precision
Engineering division, the structured
performance testing, tear-down and
detailed analysis of competitor products
is a key part of cur new product
development process. This tear-down
procedure, which ensures that our new
products will out run the competition,
has now been adopted within the
divisions’ development processes.

Itis one of several disciplines that have
been embraced by all three of the
divisions as they share best practice.

Maintaining
financial
discipline

As we axecute our strategy to deliver
accelerated growth, we will continue to
maintain financial discipline. Capital wil
be allocated to drive organic growth,
maintain a progressive dividend policy in
line with earnings and fund acquisitions.
Whilst retaining flexibility to develop IMI's
full potential, we will continue to focus on
maintaining an efficient balance sheet
and, in the event of us having cash in
axcess of the Group's current neads,
we will return this excess capital to
shareholders. Through the life of our five
year plan we will work to maintain net
debt to EBITDA of no more than two
times through the cycle.

Net debt to adjusted EBITDA
20150.9x 2016 1.0x

Investing in Group-wide
IT and infrastructure

The programme o equip our businesses
with effective IT is well underway with the
first sites either launched or on track to
do s0 across all three of the Group’s
operating divisions. This commitment,
alongside selective investment to
upgrade or replace our manufacturing
facilities, and our on-going initiatives,

is a pre-requisite to achiaving our
strategic goals. IT implementations

are being phased on a site by site basis
to minimigse risk and deliver an optimal
solution. QOverall capital spending is
progressively increasing to closer to

two times depreciation where it will
remain for the first few years of the plan.
During 2016 all three divisions have
progressed their ERP programmes.

In Critical Engineering, implementation
has taken place in Japan, Sweden, India
and Korea. In Precision Engineering, it
has been instalied in two facilities in the
US and Hydronic Engineering have rolled
it out at their facility in Potand and their
HQ in Switzerland.
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Strategic growth priorities
Capitalising on significant organic

growth opportunities

Thetiravp currenthy operates g adivactice cnd-raorbots anid tocaclneve owe amifations e
st focus enr those tha i} SIS o ol tom

bne grone e, O i s o capilodise o dhiose vee o oo e
tic potentid (o e aclvadimg position miarfcts wohecc ier con groee and where there are

significant igher g in aftcrmark e apportiniities

Worki-class faciities support our customars in high
potential merkets

in South Korea, home of some of the
waorld's largest engineering design houses,
IMI CCI's marxdactuning facility at Paju,

a city to the North West of Seoul, achieved
several significant railestones during the
year. Opened in 2015, the Group's lean
operational processes are now embedded
in all parts of the facility and it is now
recognised as the most efficient plant

in the Critical Engineering division.

IMI Critical Engineering Fiekd Senvice Engineers ensurn
our customars' plants run optimatly arund the work]

The enginearing 1aam at IM! CCI Floranca ansure the
FHighast aafaty infegrity levels on our High Intagrity
Pressure Protection Systems

Focusing on markets that
offer the greatest growth B oo Processes

, an enhanced range of conventional
The Asian market offers significant growth potential and we have m which significantly expand our

been expanding our presence in the region. In China, our enlarged  power sector grlgugum ’:ge:'ng were
' i developed and launched. In March
footprint has enabled us to localise the manufacture of a number 2016, Tokowing extonaive roviows of

of our products for the Chinese market at our manufacturing its engineering and quality assurance

plant in the Qingpu Industrial Zone. This development brings us systems, its products and facilties,

closer to both our existing customers and a range of potential the business was additionally awarded
approved supplier status for semi-savers

new customers, and it also enhances our cost COmpetitiveness.  control vaives by Korea Hydro and
Nuclear Power Co. Lid, the largest power
generation company in South Korea
which provides approximately 30%
Cats studies on-line of the country’s electricity supply.
www.imiplc.com/imediatmi-in-action
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The product development team in Felibach, Germany

Driving growth with a new
go-to-market strategy

In 2015 we undertook an extensive review of all the

Electronic testing of new products

businesses within our Precision Engineering division to
identify the markets and products that offered the greatest
potential to deliver the best returns. Building on the findings
of this review, during the year we changed our go-to-market
strategy and put in place a new regional, vertically focused,

organisational structure,

Casa studies on-dine
weww imipic.

Given the diversity of products and
brands in the division, and the
differences in the markets and regions
whema we operate, by structuring our
operations by region in accordance with
the key verticals we serve - Industrial
Automation, Commercial Vehicle, Life
Sciences and Energy — we are now able
to provide a bespoke offering tailored to
our customers’ specific requirements. In
particular, we can now execute country
and vertical marketing strategies that
address distinct customer requirements,
and target specific market opportunities
focused on building stronger customer
relationships. By organising our
businesses in this clear way, both
visibility and accountabifty across our
oparations have been greatly improved.
With a single regional leadership team,
we are all able to drive our lean and
other operational improvement initiatives
more consistently and effectively.

This new organisation structure was
adopted across our US businesses
during the first half of 2016 and in the
second half of the year, following the
merger of our Western Europe and
Continental European operations, it

was implemented in our new singie
European business.

Broadening our

market presence
and customer reach

Our Hydronic Engineering
division is a market leader

in products for water-based
heating and cooling systems
and room temperature
controls. In 2015 we
capitalised on this leadership
position and strengthened
our over-the-counter sales
channel by securing a
strategic partnership with
one of the largest European
wholesalers of building parts
and materials.

Case studies on-line
www.Imipic.com/meadie/imi-In-action

Packaging designed to grab aitention hits wholssater
shaives across Europe

This key development extends and
underpins our international market
presence and enablss us to penetrate
the European market faster, particularty
in the small residential and renovation
segment. During 2016 much progress
has been made to further enhance this
route to market. in particular, a number
of new agreerments have been entered
into with major wholesalers such that we
now have a growing distributor network
with broad international reach. To captura
the market opportunity that this provides,
we have redefined our sales team's roles
and responsibifities to ensure that we
have dedicated resource facused on

our distributor customers.
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Strategic growth priorities
Improving operational
performance

The 10 areas of lean

All sites are benchmarked against these areas of lean every six months

Status as of December 2016:

8. Material

8. Totat Productive

== Ml Critical Engineering
waun |M) Precision Engineering
coos |MI Hydronlc Engineering
[ word-class > B5%

The operational performance of every site
in the Giroup is benchmarked every six
months against the ten areas of lean and
significant progress has already been
achieved. A world-class operational
performance score is 85% or higher.

At the time of the first benchmark in
2014, none of our facilities came close
to achieving this, with the average score
being 31%. At the most recent review,
the average score reached 66%, and
our Hydronic Engineering division now
has two facilties with a world-class score.
All of our businesses continue to
implement detailed plans to achieve
world-class performance by 2018.

Thé lsan assassment score for avery IMI site is avelable
for sl smployees 1o view via the laen

applcation on tha globs! intranet, Banchmarking identifies
best practios within IMI and provides visibiity of where

to foous improvements and whene to go kr aseistance
to improve parformance going forwarel.
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Modern, lean and efficient plants result in competitive, highly snginsered products

Driving efficiency to offset
market conditions

As highlighted in the Chief
Executive's Review onpage 6, in
many of our markets we are facing
challenging trading conditions.

To ensure that we continue to be
competitive and remain on the path

to sustainable growth in our Critical
Engineering division, we have undertaken
& humber of cost management initiatives
and accelerated some of the improvement
projects which were scheduled for
implementation in the later phases

of our fiva-year strategic plan. As part

of the consolidation of our European
manufacturing foolprint we have created
an engineering centre of excellence

within IMI Z&J's manufacturing plant

in Ddren, Germany. Using the new and
improved R&.D facilities within the centre,
IMI Z8.) has accelerated its new product
pipeline and developed a number

of lighter, more efficient and cost
effective products.

Continuous improvement is embedded
in our culture and we continue to work
towards achieving world-class
operational performance in all owr
businesses. During the year, across the
whole of our Critical Engineering division,
approximately 12,000 improvement
actions have been undertaken.

1M CCl designs actuation and control systems 10 deliver
the highest satety levels In the worki

As a result, our lean score assessments
have improved year-on-year and we

are continuing to reduce our operating
costs, with an overarching objective of
enhancing our market competitiveness.
During 2016, our operational infrastructure
was further strengthened. New [T systems
were installed in more of our factories,
including our plants in Sweden, Japan,
Indha and Korea, and the Obeya project
management system which significantly
enhances our project management
capabilities, is now operating in Critical
Engineering's major plants around

the worid.
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4 IMIEDG Worchouse |7 M1 Nodgren Fradioy
Alpen 18 1M1 Bristol
5 IMI Pocle 19 IMI Norgren
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21 IMI Norgren
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13 IM! Norgren
Singapore
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Establishing

a strong

foundation
for future
accelerated

growth

Testing of products in India

Historically our Precision Engineering

division had a complex and
fragmented structure which has
impeded ite growth. Over the last
two years a great deal of work has
been underiaken to resolve some of
the fundarnental issues and today the
division’s structure is simpler and, as

a result, the way it operates is more
efficient and effective. During 2016 our
Fix8 programme, an initiative specifically
focused on reducing complexity and
improving market competitiveness,
detivered material benefits including a

significantly streamlined product offering.

Work continues to further rationalise the
product portfolio with a view to offering
customers better solutions delivered

by fewer products.

In-line with our strategy to simplify the
business and ensure that we have the
most efficient platform for future growth,

the division undertook an exiensive review
of its operational footprirt. The review -
named Project Janus - is now being split
into two phases. The implermeantation of
Phase 1 has already begun and involves
those projects that can be executed
quiickly and with the least disruption to
our business. This includes a structured
prograrnme of cost reductions, insourcing
to increase machining capacity utilisation,
simplification of the organisational
structure and further leverage of our low
cost European manufacturing operations.
A second phase is contingent on market
condltions and anticipates potentially
substantial and more complex changes,
particularly in areas such as Commercial
Vehicle, where significant new project
quotation activity exists. All of these
actions will help to protect operating
marging and improve our competitive
position in what remains an uncertain
market environment.
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Accelerating operational
excellence, further
enhancing competitiveness

—~ Greater efficlencias ensure incragsad capacity 1 keep
’ up with highar cusiomer demands

|

Lean operating principles are now the year, a new integrated IT system

firmly embedded across the was Instalied, on time and to budget,

Hydronic Engineering division and at the Olkusz plant and across a large

the commercial benefits of these part of Hydronic Engineering’s Swiss

activities are becoming increasingly  based business. During the course

apparent. The division's Olkusz plant 0f 2017, these new systemswillbe . |\ oments inean heve helped Hydronk: Engineering
was the first of our Group operations introduced across the entire division get their products fasier onto the shelves of whalesalers
to achieve world-class lean status and to further embed common ways of

during the year our Slovenian faciity was  working and accurate data coflection,
awarded this status with a score of 88%.  all of which will make our businesses
To further enhance competitiveness more efficient and competitive.

we continue to focus on delivering

aperational improvements and during
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Strategic growth priorities
Increasing investment in
new product development

Hevmg successfully cstablishod the newe sustone
product decelopment = arclid g adoanecd pros
compeittor product tear doenr and Vodoe B
delivering onowr progrise to uroduee g

reove grachly coid e cifectivedy than o

Continuing
to innovate
to secure
leadership
position

To maintain our market leading
positions and reputation for
engineering expertise, our product
offering must respond to changing
market dynamics so that at all times
we provide customers with the best
competitive solution that meets
their current requirements. As the
leading suppilier of valves to the liquefied
natural gas ('LNG') sector, we are well
positioned to identify developing trends
and anticipate kikely changes in customer
demand. In particular, impacted by the
ofl price decline and folowing a period
of rapid growth when a number of
sizeable LNG plants using large valves
wena constructed, it was clear that
customer requirements would change
as they looked to build smaller and more
cost efficient plants. In response, our
product development teams created

a new lightweight valve which has

a computationally optimised profie,
replacing the previous valve's heavier
and more expeansive body. This new
spherical profile optimises the design of
the valve, reduces its weight and improves
performance without compromising its
strength or durability.

Case studies on-line
wwwimipic.com/mediaimi-in-action

Assembly of metal on metal seated,
triple offset butterfly valves
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Using the new robust product
development processes now
embedded across the Group, our
product development activities made
great progress in the year. For the first
tims in a decade, we are ready to launch
anew platform Precision Engineering
product offering which will underpin
growth in the years to come. Cumently
the new development pipeline includes
arange of products, that will be launched
in April 2017 at Hannover Messe, the
worid leading industrial technology trade
fair. inchuded in the new product offering
is an enhanced range of comprassed air
air in production processes and help
prevent damage to machines and =

Proseane o aamaace,  CcOMpetitiveness by
is ighter and smaller, easier to instalt and

mananandasocesanumosrcinew  Off@ring compelling
safety features. .
solutions

Case stixiies on-tine
LY

uononpo.y)

To drive competitive advantage

and market leading positions we
must offer customers cutting edge
products and technologies that solve
their engineering challenges in the
maost efficient and environmentally
sustainable way. Hydronic Engineering
was the first of our divisions to bring

new products to market with the launch
of 14 new products in 2014 and 15

new products in 2015. During the year,
new product development mamentum

Building a sustainable
competitive advantage

|
|

which involves the systematic tear-down
of cornpetitor products. During 2016,
Hydronic Engineering further broadened
its customer offering with the launch of
another 15 new products. These inckuda
an innovative dirt separator, G-Force,
which quickly and effectively rernoves
dirt from water-based heating systems,
dlimingting the risk of damage or shut
downs. The G-Force incorporates highly

heating and cooling systems up 1o nine

tirnes more efficisntly than any other dirt

saparator on the market. itis also the only

dirt separator on the market with flexible
installation positions which are of great

benefit to custorners if space is a challenge

during installation. These new product
launches will make an important
contribution to the division's growth.

RuamS WIDURLLY |

Case studies on-fine
wwwiimipic.com/imediafiet-in-action
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Strategic growth priorities

Expanding our addressable markets
through targeted acquisitions
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Our process and approach

The M&A function forms an integral part of our strategic planning process, working
closely with the divisions to support their strategies and evaluate potential acquisitions
and partners for the future, The processes involved have improved considerably and
are now much mare effective at identifying opportunities with regards to geographic,
market, product and cultural suitability as well as commercial logic and financial impact.
Overall, these enhancaments have driven a reduction in the number of opportunities
assessad, whilst significantly increasing their quality. This much moere focused approach
has also enabled us to spend more time developing important relationships with
companies, leaving us well positioned to efficiently execute a transaction, whenever

the time is right.

e Eeed G e (o

Vot

Our acquisition strategies for the divisions are:

Within Critical Engineering, bolt-on acquisitions to extend both our
product range of semi-severe and configured products and our
geagraphic footprint in both our existing and adjacent markets remain
our focus. Opportunities with attractive aftermarkets are always
important, but particularly given recent market conditions.

We remain pleased with the acquisition of IMI Bopp & Reuther,
which has helped us address a number of our strategic objectives.
The business is now fully integrated into IMI Critical Engineering and
provided a vital foundation to consofdating Critical Engineering's
global Nuclear Power business into its Mannheim facility.

VR .
{ i !

e rdfonbyied tae i ennii

Broadening the
acquisition universe

* Potential to double
addressable market

* Leverage existing positions
in attractive end-markets

« Non-valve related products
and businesses

;*’-%

Precision Engineering continues to simplify its organisation,
implementing robust systems and lean improvemnents, while developing
a list of value enhancing potential acquisitions. At the same time, the
Precision Executive, supported by the IMI Business Development team,
are building senior level relationships in readiness for both large and
small scale acquisitions.

Our product strategy is well underway in Hydronic Engineering, as we

We have developed a wall-dsfined pipeline of opportunities, many of
which are family owned which would fit well with IM{'s culture, whilst
enabiing us to leverage their strong brands and management capabifities.

start to focus on high quality well run European acquisition opportunities.

Geographies

» North America
* Europe

» Latin America
* Asia

Market dynamics

* Aftermarket >30%

» Growth rate >5% pa
* Cugtomer intimacy

Froducts

+ Barriers to entry

» Criticality of application
* Predictable aftermarket
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Operational review

IMI Critical Engineering

IMI

Critical Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering is

a world-leading provider of
Jlow control solutions that
enable vital energy and process
industries to operate safely,
cleanly, reliably and

more efficiently.

Revenue

£651m

Operating profit

Down 7%*

281 .8m Down 24%"

organic

Key achievements

* Value Engineering initiative helped
to secure £80m of new orders

* Introduced 23 new products

» Rationalisation programme delivered
on-time and on-budget with £12m
profit benefit

* On-time and on-budget ERP
impiementation at four sites

¢ Increased average lean score to 62%

» Successful consolidation of three sites
into new world-class facllity in China

= Sale of loss-making Italian
service business

I Critical Engineering Webslts
www.imi-Critical.com

Performance

Full year order intake at £614m (2015:
£619m) was 11% lower on an organic
basis, after adjusting for disposals and
exchange rate movements. In the second
half, order intake was 7% below the sams
period in 2015. In the year, as predicted,
new construction Cil & Gas intake was
13% lower resulting from reduced LNG
orders, following the peak in new project
activity in 2015. Significant improverments
waere evident in both midstream, whene

a large Kazakhstan order was booked in
the year, and in HIPPS, where a £15m
order was bocked in the second half.
New construction Fossil Power orders
were 23% lower due 10 reduced activity
levels, particularly in the Middle East and
Asia. Significant orders were also awarded
in Petrochermical where full year order
input was 2% higher, including a strong
performance in the first half of the year.

Aftermarket orders were 6% lower
when compared to 2015 with a return
to 2015 levels in the second half of the
year. in the il year, Oil & Gas was 11%
lower reflecting reduced parts activity in
the upstream sector which offset good
growth in our downstream activities.
Lower levels of spend, particutarly in North
America, resuited in a 13% reduction in
Fossil Power while Nuclear Afterrarket
increased 36%, reflecting a substantial
Kerean order in the fourth quarter.

After adjusting for £77m of exchange rate
benefit and £6m from prior year disposals,
revenues of E651m {2015: £631m) were
7% lower on an organic basis and 3%
higher on a reported basis. Segmental
operating profit of £82m (2015: £63m)
was 12% lower on a reported basis and
24% lower on an organic basis. Reflecting
the impact of lower volumes, marging
were 12.6% against 14.8% in 2015,

The division's Value Engineering initiative
continued to have a significant positive
impact and contributed to £80m of new
bookings in an increasingly compaetitive
market environment. Value Engineering
and improved project management
activities helped deliver a year-end order
book of £486m at broadly equivalent
margins to the prior year. Lean scores also
improved significantly to 62%

against 56% at the year-end in 2015.

Outlook

Based on the current order book and
market outiook, we expect first half
organic revenues to reflect a simiar
percentage reduction to the first half
of 2016 with margins broadly sirmilar
to the first half of last year. Resuits for
the full year are expecied to include

a second half bias reflecting the timing
of restructuring benefits and normal
trading seasonality.

“During a year when the market was challenging, IMI Critical
Engineering made further important improvements in its
competitiveness and manufacturing footprint. We also accelerated
our Value Engineering and new product programmes, significantly
increasing the value proposition for our customers while improving

our order intake.”

Roy Twite
Divisional Managing Director




During 2016, we significantly
enhanced our Value Engincering
skills and capabilty and won new
orders totalling £80m as a direct
result of our new improved leveis

of competitiveness.

Enhancing our
competitive advantage

|

SRMIE ey |
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Operational review

IMI Precision Engineering

IMI

Precision Engineering

IMI Precision Engineering is
a world leader in motion and
JSluid control technologies
wherever precision, speed
and reliability of process are
essential. We deliver integrated
solutions which improve the
productivity and efficiency of
our customers’ equipment.

Reverue

£708m

Down 3%*

Operating profi
£118.5M pown 10%

organic

Key Achievements

» Successfully developed first new
platform products for launch in 2017

= Improved operational performance
resulted in new Commercial Vehicle
opportunities

= Launched innovative IMI Norgren
Express App

* 22% reduction in scrap costs

= Segven day improvement in
inventory tums

« Janus Phase 1 now being implemeanted

M) Precision Enginsering Webalte
WAWI -precision.com

Performance

After adjusting for £72m of exchange rate
benefit and £1m from prior year disposals,
revanues of £708m (2015: £662m) were 3%
lower on an organi: basis and 7% higher on
a reported basis. Industrial Automation
revenues were 1% lower principally driven
by a small deciine in Europe which offsat
broadly equivalent revenues in the balance
of our core markets. The revenue profile in
the year included a 5% pick-up in the final
quarter providing early indications of

a potential, so far unconfirmed,
improverment in the sector.

In the year, Commercial Vehicle sales were
9% lower reflecting a 22% decline in North
Amaerica due to lower truck production in
that region. European Commercial Vehicle
revenues were broadly consistent with the
prior year whilst Asia improved. Energy
sales continued to be impacted by lower
investment and wera 7% lower than 2015
while Life Sciences and Rail were broadly
equivalent to 2015.

Sagmental operating profit of £119m
{2015: £118m) was 1% higheron a
reported basiz and, after adjusting for
£13m of exchange rate benefit and
disposals, 10% lower on an organic basis.
Operating margins of 16.7% compared

to 17.8% in 2015 and refiected the impact
of iower overhead recoveries following
weaker market conditions and investment
to support long-term growth,

QOur detailed review of the Industrial
Automation market and its various sub-
sectors confirmed that we have excellent
market positions with a valuable installed
base and high margin aftermarket and
identified those sub-sectors and products
that would provide us with the greatest
opportunity for growth. In response,

the division has embarked on a significant
programme of new product development

with the first of our great new products
due to launch in the first half of 2017.
This review also formed the basis for a
structured programme of reorganisation,
including Janws, to capitalise on the most
significant opportunities.

The successful implementation of lean
throughout the division has continued

to make excellent progress with the
score increasing to 66% against 59%

at the 2015 year-end. The impact of

lean was clearly evident in the results
with improved productivity, a 22%
raduction in scrap costs and a seven day
improvement in inventory days in the year.

Outlook

The global industrial outlook remains
and improved fourth quarter sales
providing a more positive backdrop

for Industrial Automation in the year
ahead. We remain cautious given the
considerable economic, political and
industry uncertainty that remains across
many markets and geographies. We
expect the European heavy truck and
North American Class 8 volumes to soften
in 2017 which, when combined with

the cenclusion of £13m of Commercial
Vighicle contracts, will result in lower
revenues in the year ahead.

Based on cument market conditions,
we expect first half organic revenues

to be slightty lower than the first half of
2016. Excluding the £4m benefit from
2016 property disposals, margins will be
comparable to the first half of last year.
While markets remain uncertain, the
benefits of further restructuring activities
and new product launches are expected
to deliver broadly equivalent marging

for the full year.

“At IMI Precision Engineering we made further significant progress

on a number of strategic initiatives in the year, continuing to improve
operational performance through the application of lean, re-organising
the business to be even more customer-focused and preparing for some
important new product launches for 2017 and beyond.”

Massimo Grassi
Divisional Managing Director




A significant preportion of
Precision Engineering’s revenue
s generated by aftermarket
sales. To maimintain our strong
existing market positions, and
to increase the rate at which

we convert competitor’'s products
into our own, a number of new
initiatives were launched

to enhance the customer
service pxperience.

Driving the aftermarket

sales channel

through innovative

The new, unique IMI Norgren Express App

enables maintenance engineers to find and

buy replacement pneumatic products fast
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Operational review

IMI Hydronic Engineering

IMI

Hydronic Engineering

IMI Hydronic Engineering is
the leading global provider
and recognised expert in
hydronic distribution systems
and room temperature control,
with experience in more than
100,000 construction projects
world-wide.

f‘EuéOm

Down 1%"*

Operating profit

£51.9M  oown 10%

orgaric

Key achievements
* 19% of revenue from products launched
in the last three years

» Two substantial over-the-counter sales
contracts signed

* Successful Product Development
momentum building sustainable
competitive advantage

* Refurbishment of foundry in Germany
significantly reduces scrap

® Lean score increased to 76%

M} Hydronic Enginesring Websits
www imi-hydronic.com

Performance

Revenues on a reported basis of £290m
(2015: £264m) were 10% higher than
2015 and after adjusting for £30m of
exchange rate benefit, were 1% lower
on an organic basis. While warmer
weather impacted the heating season

in the division's largest European markets,
revenues in that region were marginally
higher than the previous year. Due to
project delays, sales in China were
significantly reduced in the first half before
recovering with positive momentum in the
final quarter of the year. North American
sales reflecied an overall increase of

6% in the year.

Segmental operating profit of £52m (2015:

£52m) was equivalent on a reported basis
and, after acjusting for £6m of exchange
rate benefit, 10% lower on an organic
basis. As expected, operating margins
showed a second half seasonal
improvement to 19.4% while full year
margins at 17.9% (2015: 19.6%) were
lower than the prior year reflecting the
impact of lower volumes and the on-going
investment in great new products and
operational excellence.

New products launchad in the last three
years continued to have an important,
positive impact on the results and
generated £55m of sales in the year.
Included in the 2016 product launches
were a number of products specifically
targeted at the development of the
division’s over-the-counter sales strategy,
which resufted in two significant new
agreements baing signed in Europe.

These agreements, while having relatively
maodest impact on the 2016 results, are
expected to underpin increased trading
in future years. The previously announced
entry into the actuator market, with
TA-Siider, has received an excellent
market recaption and 2017 plans

inciude further product launchas.

The division’s lean scores continued to
improve and increased to 76% against
72% at year-end 2015. in the vear,
Hydronic Engineering's Polish operations,
the Group's highest lean scoring plant,
successfully launched the division's
standard J D Edwards ERP system.
This system is now providing increased
efficiencies and forms the foundations
for future ERP roll-outs across the
division. Also in 2016, the division's
largest manufacturing plant, in Genmany,
undertook a total refurbishment of its
foundry facilities resulting in a significant
reduction in scrap and work in progress.

Outlook

While the Ewopean construction markets
are forecast to remain subdued, the
success of new products and over-the-
counter sales are expected to result in
organic revenue growth in the year, albeit
weighted to the second half. Operating
margins are also expected 1o show their
normal second half improvement and will
include the benefits of restructuring.

“As well as delivering another great performance in the application of
lean and maintaining strong momentum in new product development,
at IMI Hydronic Engineering we also made good progress with a new
over-the-counter sales strategy, successfully re-opening an important

market segment for the business.”

Peter Spencer
Divisional Managing Director
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To support our significant - » =
new product offering and ReVItaIIS|ng our sales
our strengthened over-the-

counter sales strateqy, Wt:: and marketing aCtiVities

have revitalised our sales

and marketing activities to drive revenue

within the division.
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Corporate responsibility
Our approach

“Our ambition is for IMI to becomne a truly great company that is preferred by all its
stakeholders becatise of our market leading products and services and the way we operate
all aspects of our business. We achieve this by maintaining a long-term focus, investing

in our future and at all times operating our business in an ethical and responsible way.
This approach is fundamental to delivering sustainable profitable growth.”

Mark Selway
Chief Executive

IMI Critical Engineers
" ®f are world-class, solving
customers’ major challenges
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Our people

Geoff Tranfield
Group Hurman
Rosources Dircctor

“We employ some 11,000 people around the world. On a daily basis they are tasked
with delivering our strategy and the progress IMI has made this year is down to
their hard work. To ensure that this progress continues, we must continue to attract
and retain good people, ensure we have relevant skills and leadership capabilities
across the Group and foster a positive working environment which prouvides our
people with development and engagement opportunities.”

Shaping our culture - The IMI Way

At the heart of making IMI a great company are our values and behaviours - which, in conjunction with
the launch of our new strategy, were refreshed and rolled out across the Group in 2014, These values
and behaviours, which help shape our culture and outliine the standards and conduct everyone in the
Group should comply with, are integral to “The IMI Way' which defines how we do business. Reviewed and
endorsed by the Board our IMI values and behaviours are now embedded in all aspects of our business
including our recruitment and induction processes, our bi-annual management performance assessments
and our succession planning.

As outiined on page 11 of this Strategic Report, connecting and collaborating with colleagues across the Group to share best
practice and establish consistent Group-wide standards and process is one of our key enablers helping us deliver our strategic:
plan. This way of working, which is improving our competitiveness and profitabiity, is becoming common practice across IML.
Collaborative projects undertaken during the year included:-

*» Precision Engineering's enhanced range of compressed air
preparation units have been developed in conjunction with
our Hydronic Engineering division. The range incorporates
one of Hydronic Engineering’s new world-class ball valve
designs, which provides excellent value for money, great
performance and is perfectly matched to the needs of
our Precision Engineering customers. In addition, the
new product cffering is manufactured on a new automated
assembly systern, developed, designed and built by
Hydronic's Polish-based assembly systam supplier, which
has resulted in reduced costs and lead times. This new
product range enhances Precision Engineering's customer
offering and creates a new market for one of Hydronic
Engineering's existing products;

Connect ‘/ \7
Deliver

+ the transfer of specialist value engineering resource and
skilts from Precision Engineering to Critical Engineering
has enhanced Ciitical Engineering's world class capabilities
and has helped the division win new orders in excess of
£80 million: at our historic margin levels while still delivering,
on average, a 20% cost reduction for our customers.

Our mindset

;

‘Engineering GREAT together”

Behaviours:

Lead
Learn lmprove

WORSAPONU

w
2

SWDLINMS [MoUmi I



30 IM! ple

Corporate responsibility
Our people (cont’d)

QOur work environment

In addition to reinforcing the IMI values
and bshavipurs across our business

we are committed 10 ensuring that all
employees and workers are treated fairly
in an environment which is free from any
form of discrimination with regard to the
nine protected characteristics outlined

in the Equality Act 2010, which are age,
refigion, race, sex, disability, gender
reassignment, mamiage/civil partnership,
pregnancy and matemity and sexual
orientation. Further detail about our
Divarsity and Inclusion Policy, which was
revised in 2014, is set out below in the
paragraph titled '‘Diversity and Inclusion’,

The IMI Code

H is essential that we run our business in
an ethical way with the highest standards
of integrity. As part of their induction,
every employee who joins the Group
receives tralning in relation to our Goda of
Conduct (the *Code’), which covers anti-
bribery, anti-corruption and fair market
cormpetition. Rafresher training on the
Code is provided regularly as appropriate
and is reinforced through face-to-face
sessions at the annual IMI Way Day.

During the year Code training was
enhanced by the introduction of a
number of e-learning programmes
which utilise the Group’s global intranet
that employees, regardless of location,
are able to access. In April we ran a
Group-wide e-learning module focused
specifically on anti-bribery and anti-
comruption. The module was completed
across our businesses within six weeks,
In October, as part of our supplier
evaluation process, all our purchasing

Colleagues from Critica? Enginearing and Precision
Englnaaring collsborate during The IMI Way Day

teams participated in an e-learning
programme to raise awareness of slavery
and human trafficking to ensure neither
take place in either our own or our
suppliers’ businesses.

We encourage all employees 1o report
to their manager any incident that

is not in keeping with the IM! values
and behaviours. We also operate a
confidential independent compliance .
hotiine in more than 20 languages
which employses can use to report
issues anonymously. Hotline activity

is reviewed on a monthly basis by the
Group's Ethics and Compliance
Cormmittee, which | chair, and all reports
are investigated thoroughly and, where
required, appropriate action is taken to
resolve issues quickly. During 2016 48
cases were reported via the hotline
which compared to 97 in 2015 and
103 in 2014.

Community activities

Consistent with our values we believe we
have a responsibiity to the communities
around the world in which we operate,

In addition to creating jobs and investing
in our local communities, each year
employees across the Group participate
in what has become known as The IM|
Way Day during which they receive face-
to-face refrasher training on both The

IMI Way and the Code and spend time
supporting a local community charity or
project. As well as being the right thing to
do, these initiatives cantribute to the local
community, help bulid trust and reinforce
our tearn buiding and collaborative
approach. Some of the local charities
our employess supported during the
2016 IMI Way Day included:

Empiloyees from IMI Buschiost support s locat school for
childran and young edults with disabliities at their sportaday

A group of our graduates receive a tour of Hydronic
Enginearing’s facility in Poland

¢ a charity that provides food to families
on low incomes in and around Selangor,
Malaysia;

* a home for the terminally il in Bangalore
and Sai Kripa, a charitable organisation
which provides food, shelter and
education for homeless and orphan
chidren in India;

+ Newlands Bishop Farm near Solihull
that provides opportunities for people
with leaming disabilities and mental
health problems to learm work-based
skills, in the UK;

* a school for disabled chikiren in Bad
Oeynhausen, Germany, and

* a rehabilitation centre for recovering
alcohaolics in Paju, South Korsa.

Cade on-line
Www.lmipic. comyconporate-responeioiity

Empicyess receive acg-to-face training on The IMI
Way Dey at Hydronic Englneering’s faciity in Brazl
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Attracting good
people

Recruitment

Our performance and our ability to
aexecute aur strategy is dependent on
recruiting the best pecple with the most
relevant skills and experience who are
aligned with our values and behaviours
and our strategic armbition. During

the year we continued to improve our
recruitment processes. In particular

our graduate programme, which was
refreshed at the beginning of 2015,
continued te go from strangth to strength
as we recruited twice as many graduates
in 2016 (31) compared to 2014 (15).

Diversity and Inclusion

At IMI we believe it is essential that we
employ and retain the very best people
to serve our giobal business and our
diverse customer base. In 2015, a
revised Diversity and Inclusion Policy
was embedded in the recruitment and
othar human resource processes and
procedures that we operate across
the Group. By applying this policy,

we aim to recruit the best people to
execute our strategic priorities and to

Gender mix across the Group

Female Female % Male Mae %

All 3,157 7% 8576 TI%
employees

Managers 223 20% 9O 80%
Senlor 104 16% 530 84%
managers

Board 2 22% 7 78%
directors

reflect the location of our operations,
customers and markets. Additionally,
when creating shortlists for intemal and
recruiters take account of our palicy

and, as part of our intemal management
Managing Director is set objectives aimed
at improving diversity in their division.
These objectives include an ambition to
recruit local talent and during 2016 much
progress was made in this area. By way
of example, at the end of December 2014
across the Group, 32 of cur management
or senior technical roles were undertaken
by expatriate employees on secondment
from their horme country. Today only

11 of these positions are undertaken

by expatriates who have retumed to
roles in their home countries and have
been replaced by talent developed or
recruited locally.

During 2016 our approach to diversity
and inclusion was further embedded
by the addition of a number of diversity
leadership development programme,
Leading the Way to Engineering
GREAT, includes a session on diversity
and inclusion and we have pilcted a
standalone e-leaming programme on
via our global intranet.
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A group of 2015 intake graduates undertake a mock

{ean audit at Hydronic Engineering’s facility in

. Poland as part of their development workshop
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Corporate responsibility
Our people (cont’d)

IMI’s 2016 graduate intake during their
two week induction at HQ

Developing
our people

Development programmes

To achieve our strategy we must
continue to ensure that our employees
have the relevant business and
leadership capabilities.

in 2016 around 100 peopie participated
in our ‘Leading the way to engineering
Great' programma, which is focused
on our senior management team and
potential future ieaders. In addition,
across the Group, 200 people joined
our ‘Being a Great M| Manager'
development programme which is
targeted at empioyees who have recentty
been promoted to a management role.
The programme’s two and a half day
training course was run in China, the
Czech Republic, Germany, the UK and
the US and, in 2017, the programme
will be further extendad to include Haly,
Poland and Sweden.

IMI Learn, our e-leaming platform which
is hosted on our global intranet, was
launched in February and during 2016

over 8,000 employees around the
Group participated in e-learning modules
on a wide range of business specific
topics as well as training in relation to
anti-bribery and anti-comuption and
diversity and inclusion, both of which
are highlighted above,

Our Operations Fast Track programme,
which runs for 12 months and covers
both professional and personal
development, was first launched in
our Hydronic Engineering division in
April 2015 and has continued to be
rofled-cut across the division during
the year. The programme focuses

on our next generation of managers
and its main objective is to accelerate
their development and create internal
succession candidates.

Fobe Bamer
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graduates, one of IMI Precision Engineering's current graductes

During a week of development activities for our 2015 intake of
o)

presents his most recent project to his peers in the Crech Republic

Succession planning

During the year as part of the talent and
succession process, we again undertock
an extensiva review of our managerment
succession plans to ensure that we have
strength and depth of leadership talent
across the Group. The performancs of
our managers was assessed against

a number of criteria including leadership
skilks, values and behaviours and their
business's performance. The findings

of this process have been used 1o buid
individual development plans and inform
our future planning, thereby ensuring
that we have a pipeline of high calibre
talent throughout the Group.

Engaging
our people

At IMI we also recognise that we
must retain good people. in addition
to the development opportunities
outiined above, providing a positive
working environmant which enables
our employees to understand the
contribution they make and be fully
engaged is key o our success.

The giobal intranet has been
instrumental in keeping employees
informed and connected across the
Group and it has also facilitated cross-
business collaboration and the sharing
of best practice. In terms of face-to-face
engagement our annual Group and
divisional conferencas, which involve
our top 350 managers, serve as a
catalyst to cascade information

across our businesses and all
management who attend are required
to share conference key messages
with their broader teams. The Group's
financial results, strategic progress
and important initiatives in arsas such
as health and safety are cornmunicated
through a number of mechanisms
including regular town hall meetings.
W also work with our European
Works Council, covering 11 countries
across Europe, to further encourage
effective employes communication
and engagement.

Twice a year we publish our cross
divisional magazine, the IM! Eye, which
features news stories generated by
our businesses around the world and
is distributed in multiple languages to
employses and key stakeholders.

Wae gather feedback from employees
annually. This takes the form of a survey
that is completed at the end of the IMI
Way Day and covers a nurmber of key
areas. All survey feedback is reviewed
and areas where understanding needs
to be improved or potential concerns are
identified and further investigated via a
puise survey {a quick and effective real
time survey that gathers further detail)

in the relevant part of the business.

if required, based on the pulse data
information, appropriate actions are

put in place 10 resolve issues and

clarify understanding.

vopanposu|
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Corporate responsibility
Our operations and products

Health & Safety

The health and safety of our
employees and the health and
safety of our other stakeholders,

" including our customers and
suppliers, Is paramount. This
unconditional commitment

to health and safety is also
consistent with our strategy

to significantly improve the
operational performance and

the efficiency of our businesses.
By prioritising health and safety
and reducing the occurrence

of incidents, we will also minimise
the time spent investigating
issues' reduce the amount Early in 2018, IMI CCl Korea celebrated 2,000 days with no lost time acoidents
of time lost to absence and
sick leave and save on legal,
insurance and meadical costs.

Qur ambition is 1o achieve world-class
heaith and safety performance. To ensure gn":“"mﬂi &
that we realise this, we have embedded

a proactive continuous improvement
approach to health and safety across our
entire organisation and during the year we
made significant progress. The number of
Lost Time Accidents significantly reduced
i 2016 (15 in 2016 comparad to 31 in
2015) and a number of our facilities have
recorded significant periods of zero Lost
Time Accidants, including IMI CCI Korea
in our Critical Engineering division, which
in July 2016 marked 2,000 days without

a Lost Time Accident.

Qur proactive approach to health and
safety, which is aimed at continuously
improving the identification and
remediation of safely weaknesses in
our processes and procedures and the
removal of potential hazards in our
facilities, covers all operations and all
levels of management and includes:

= a rigorous bi-annual assessment of the

The ten attributes of safety - fourth round
assesament average HSE acores by dlvision

ten operational and safety areas we

consider most important in order tokeep === IMI Critical Enginesring
our emplcyees freefn:xn ham and our wan - |MI Pracision Engineering
oPeratmseﬁectNeand efficient. eesa. M Hydronic Engineering
This assessment process, which is [ world-class

combined with the bi-annual lean
benchmarking reviews {further details
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of which are set out oh pages 14 to 17},
is undertaken by specialist health and
safety experts in each operating unit
which drives greater ownership of the
process and ensures that health and
safety is embedded in each business.
Each local assessment is then
independently reviewed by one of the
Group or Divisional Health and Safety

champions and a combined Lean-HSE

report is produced which measures
progress since the last assessment,
identifies potential hazards,
recommends remedial actions and
targets further overall improvements.
All assessments are posted on the
Group intranet which ensures
performance is visible and facilitates
the sharing of best practice across

all of our businesses. In addition,

the combined Lean-HSE reports

are analysed to identify any commonly
racumring Group-wide hazards which
require specific remedial action. During
the year this analysis, combined with
scrutiny of our accident reports,

Product testing at Precision Engineering's faciity in
Shanghai, China

confirmed the need to reinforce our
efforts on hand injuries and in
response, a Group-wide campaign
focusing specifically on hand safety
was launched recently,

* real time monitoring of our health and
safety performance: during the year
the Group enhanced our HSE 360
IT system which operates in all our
facilities to track any and every incident
which requires first ald or any cther
medical intervention. In adgdition, in the
case of an incident requiring more than

first aid treatment, a report is issued to
the relevant divisional management
tearn and a remediation plan is agreed
and implemented; and

regular health and safety training for
all employees: every employee who
joins IMI receives ralevant health and
safety training as part of their induction
and where appropriate, participates
in further on-site training focused on
hazard identification, risk assessment
and action planning. in addition,

site management is responsible for
detailed health and safety ‘Gemba
Walke’, (a lean manufacturing term
used to describe the personal
observation of work which involves

a detailled physical review of the
factory o observe and identify real
time potential hazards and risks).
This, in addition to our bi-annual
assessment process described above,
has made a measurable impact on
both our Lean-HSE scores and
accident reduction.
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Corporate responsibility

Our operations and products (cont’d)

Our
operations

We have a responsibility to
minimise the environmental
impact of our day-to-day
operations.

Given the nature of our production
processes, our main focus is on energy
efficiercy. Historically we have regularly
conducted internal reviews of our energy
-usage. In 2015, in accordance with the
European Union Energy Directive, we
augmented this process by undertaking
independent energy assessment surveys
across our major European operations.
Data and recommendations from these
surveys were collated and fed into our
Group-wide energy efficiency programme
that was developed and rolled out during
the course of the year, This programme
has delivered a number of efficiency
improvernents including:

* Precision Engineering's Felibach facility
in Genmany installed a new boiler for
their heating system that Is estimated
will achieve annual savings of some
300 tonnes of CO2 and £100,000; and

* IMI CCl's Bmo plant in the Czech
Republic and IMI Trufio Marine's
operation in Birmingham, England,
upgraded lighting and lighting controls
and are anticipating a combined 300
tonne reduction in COz2 emissions each
year, with an investment payback on
these improverments in under two years.

During the year we continued to make
good progress to reduce our CO2a
emissions. In 2015 we set our minimum
baseline performance at 61,250 tonnes
and during 2016, we reduced this further
by 2%. In keeping with our continuous
improvernant culture, we will look to
deliver further reductions year on year.

Empioyess st Fracision Engineering's faciily in Shanghai,
Chine, inspect a pneumnatic maniickd for a customer

As detalled on pages 14 to 17, we have
made significant progress in improving
the operational efficiency of our facilities
through the application of lean processes.
A key part of the lean process is the
elimination of waste and during the year,
the improvement in the Group's inventory
turns has freed up £9.6m in cash.
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Our
products

We design and manufacture
products that help our
customers operate their
systems and processes
safely, cleanly and cost
effectively. We also sell
products that directly help

to tackie some of the biggest
issues facing the world today
including global warming
and resource scarcity.

High Integrity Pressure Protection
Systems (HIPPS), designed by our
Critical Engineering division, and installed
in pipelines and processing plants,
control the buitd-up of fluid and gas
pressure in the system and ensure

safe operation whilst avoiding harmful
emissions being released into

the atmosphere.,

o
=1

provides the highest safefy levels

HIPPS unit, designed by IMI OCI,
and gero emissions

Collapsible handrgil, actuated
with pneumatic cylinders.  —
Courtesy of Booth Engineering

We continuously look at our products to see how they
can better satisfy customer neads

The new IMI Maxseal solenoid valve,
designed and produced by our Precision
Engineering division, for a wide range of
Ol & Gas applications, uses less power
helping customers save energy without
sacrificing reliability or performance.
Eclipse, the thermostatic radiator valve,
designed and manufactured by our S
Hydronic Engineering division, delivers

a constant room temperature which

enhances the efficiency of the heating

system and saves on energy costs.

SWHMNELS (BrOUBLL
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Measurements and targets

Business performance is measured through Group-wide targets and improvement measures.

Each IMI business participates in an annual round of planning meetings with the Executive
Committee, during which performance and future plans for that business are reviewed and
updated. These business plans have all been aligned with the Group’s strategy. The Key
Performance Indicators (‘'KPIs’) set out below represent the financial and non-financial
targets which are integral to the delivery of the Group’s strategy.

Organic revenue growth Segmental operating profit

o
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Organic revenue growth excludes the

. impact of acquisitions, disposals and
foreign exchange movements. The
revenues from acquisitions are only
included in the current vear for the
period during which the revenues were
also included in the prior pericd. In 2016,
the Group’s continuing businesses
experienced a drop in organic

revenue of 5%.

In 2016, Group segmental operating
profit was £228m compared to £239m
representing & reduction of 5% on a
reported basis. On an organic basis,
after adjusting for the favourable impact
of exchange rates and acquisitions and
disposals, segmental operating profit
was lower by 17%.
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Losat time accident rate Lean agsessment Return on capital employed
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The health and safety of all our During the year we continued to improve  Retum on capital employed (‘ROCE')
employees remains paramount. our lkean scores and moved closer is defined as segmental operating profit
We measure our progress in this area towards achieving Group-wide world- after tax divided by capital employed.
by tracking our >1 day lost time accident  class operational performance. Our In 2018 ROCE was 12.5% which
frequency rate ('LTA rate’). In 2016, highest score is now 94% and the comparss to 14.3% in 2015 and reflects
our LTA rate improved relative to 2015. average has increased from 31% when the reduced operati impacted
Our work to reduce workplace hazards we first benchmarked the business bymmmt:;mnsgproﬁt pact
and integrate health and safety audits in 2014 to 66% in the year-end 2016 : )
with the Group lean audit programme assessmeant process.

in 2016 had a very positive impact on
our performance.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Our risk management processes were significantly updated in 2015 and are now well
embedded in all our businesses. These processes identify, evaluate and manage the risks
which could impact the performance or reputation of IMI and its ability to implement its

growth strategy.

The Board determines the Group’s risk appetile and reviews

the Group's risks formally throughout the year. Responsibliity for
implementing and monitoring intermal controls and other elements
of risk management, is delegated to the Group Chisf Executive
and the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee operates
alongside the Audit Commities, which has primary responsibility
for oversight of financial controls, the Nominations Committee,
which has primary responsibilty for succession risk, and the
Remuneration Committee which has primary responsibility

for remuneration and incentive structure risk.

Risk appetite

The Board is responsible for determining the nature and extent of
the principal risks it is prepared 1o accept to achieve the Group's
strategic objectives. Specific risk exposures and appetites vary
according to the nature of the risk, including the organisation's
ability to mitigate its impact.

Details on risk appetite are communicated o the Divisional
Managing Directors and the Group's Executive Committee to
ensure that decision making and behaviours across the business
are congistent with the guidance set by the Board.

Risk management

The risk management processes we operate ensure that we
have a common, Group-wide approach to the identification,
assessment and quantification of risks and the way in which
they are managed, mitigated and monitored.

ldentify and
/V assess e risks \
Monttor improveiment Identify existing mitigating
actions and report Actions and controls

\ /

Assess if farther comtrols identify monitors to
are required and inftiate ____  confirm controls are
fmprovement actions operating cffectively

QOur nisk management processes are embedded in all parts of
our operations and our bottom up risk management framework,
which is described below, ensures that the Board and the senior
leadership team is able to actively assess risks and monitor the
measures used to mitigate, transfer or avoid such risks.

All of the Group's manufacturing operations are required to
maintain an up-to-date risk profile which identifies the key
risks facing the business, assesses the mitigating processes
and controls in place to manage the risk and monitors

and measures the effectiveness of those controls. The risk
profile enables management to identify issues and areas that
require improvement and to efficiently develop remediation
action plans. During the year, the formality and rigour of risk
assessment within our manufacturing businasses was enhanced
principally through incorporating it into each business’ monthly
management reporting procedures. This monthly review
increases management ownership and accountability,

both of which are crucial to ensuring an effective risk
management framework.

Bi-annually each manufacturing operation uploads its risk profile
to the Group intranet. Each of our three divisions review ang
consolidate their most significant site level risks and mitigation
strategies into a summarised divisional risk profile, which
includes any additional divisional level risks as appropriate,
The divisional risk profiles are then consolidated into a single
Group risk profile using tha same methodology. Both the
divisional and Group risk profiles are presented and reviewed
by thae Executive Committee twice a year. The Executive
Committes’s review, which includes a detailed analysis of the
Group risk profile, the supporting divisional summaries and
actions undertaken to ensure compliance with the enhanced
requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code, are all
submitted to the Board.

The key strategic, operational, financial and compliance risks
facing the Group, in order of priority, are shown in the table on
the following pages. This analysis includes why we think the risk
is important, how we are mitigating the risk, our perception of
whether the risk has increased or not, and the main changes
during 2016.

In addition to strategic, operational and compliance risks, the
Group is also exposed to broader financial market risks, in
particular, cutrency exchange rate volatiiity following the Brexit
referendum. A description of these risks and our centralised
approach to managing them is described in Section 4.4 of

the financial statements.
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MACRO-ECONOMIC
INSTABILITY

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OR
POLTICAL INSTABILITY
[MPACTING THE GROUP’S
ABILITY TO ACHIEVE
FORECAST AND MARKET
EXPECTATIONS

RISK DESCRIPTION AND POTENTIAL IMPACT MITIGATION

. |
The Group cperates in global markets and » Divigional management monitor key customers and respond quickly to
demand for our products is dependent on changes in customer demand.
economic and sector-facing environments. » Our core foracasting process utlises early indications of reduced demand
A downturn in a global / regional economy and ensures operational output can be right sized appropriately.
or poltical instabifity could impac end- + The Group operates ecross a range of regional markats and our strategy
market demand and the Group's abiity i5 10 ensure that we have & belanced portiolio with no single dependency
1o achieve market expectations. The risks on a single market sector or geography.
associated with Brexit are not considerad
as material 10 the Group. Mmmwmmwsdmmm

Bowr O

CHANGES DURING 2018

reguiar roviews of key market and sector metrics.
-mmmthmmmmwm
performance to Improve competitiveness.,

Economic and market conditions have remained challenging throughout 2018. Critical Engineering experienced reduced activity in Ol
& Gas and Power gengration as the effects of the low oil price continue 1o impact these and related sectors. Precision Engineering
was affected by lower demand in Europe and Asia for Industrial Automation and the Connmergial Vehicle market was significantly down
in the Amaricas, The Group has conlinued to increage investment in new product development, enhanced L

ard increased value engineering infiatives to improve competitivenass, To mitigate the impact of cumant market weakness, of three
dnisions have implemented significant cost-reduction programmes which will be exacuted in the early part of 2017,

MAJOR PROJECT
IMPLEMENTAYION

FAILURE TO DELIVER MAJDR

TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJECTS

ON TIME AND ON BUDGET

RISK
MOVEMENT

Qo

CHANGES DURING 2016

Tha Group is undertaking a number of major * Continued management of nesources to execute projects.

change projects 1o adjust ta the changing = Detalled plans with clear and measurable milestones reviewsd by the
econornmic o‘gndilalg‘;s in;lmiing: busineiss Divisional Managing Directors to frack progress.

reorganisations implementation of new

IT systems Faihure to cleliver tha desred * Regular review of mjor project progress by the Executive Committee.
chjectives on tima and on budget and failure = Enhanced risk assessment process including full miligation action plans
to react quickly enough to changing market for el major change projects.

conditions, could have an adverse financial + Specialist IT and Group Assuranca reviews of major [T projects.
impact on the Group. * Detaled contingency plens.

In response to adversa market developments, the Group continues 1o execute major change projects relating 1o business re-
organisations. The continued ERP investment programme will also see a number of complex IT system iplemontations. All significant
projects during 2016 have mceived substantial senior management oversight in the form of bi-weeldy Executive project raviews to
ensure they are appropriately resounced and remain on track to defiver the objectives that were approved at project initietion.

PBODUCT QUAUTY

QUALITY ISSUES LEADING TO

FRODUCT FAILURE, RECALL,
WARRANTY {SSUES, INJURY,
DAMAGE OR DISRUPTION TO
CUSTOMERS' BUSINESS

RISK
MOVEMENT

)

CHANGES DURING 2016

ALOANSITION RISK
FAILURE TO INTEGRATE

ACOUISITIONS SUCCESSFULLY
AND DELIVER THE REQUIRED

SYNERGIES

RISK
MOVEMENT

o

CHANGES DURING 2016

The Group's ivestment in innovaive » Adhersnce (o Group-wids standard for Advanced Product Quaity
Wnaumaol}..;ﬁmﬂoorﬁm%t:bea Planning process (APGE).
priority across afl three divisions. quaity -
and safety of our products is of the highest W,ppm,,mmqn"““l”""'l managemenst sysiems, Inch.cing audits to
importance and fallure to deliver the quality
required would result in negative inancial 'W“memwwmmmuﬂm
and reputational Impact. products.
» Targetad fean events to improve quality and apglication of problem
soing tools.
* Upgrade of talent and focus on excellence in quality and
product davelopment.

The Group has continued to implament lean menusacturing meathodalogy to improve how we create velue, reduce waste and
improve performance.

Anintegral pan of the Group's strategy I8 = Cantral MBA function, suitebly resourced, working with divisions to

!omdwvdueai?mmlﬂmmt Identity hard and soft synergies within targetad acquisition opportunities.

complemant our portiolo. o = Formalised acquisition approval, due diigence and -acquisition

reduce the vakue of acquired businesses. * Documented prOCEsS and Lokl to monior and eflectively manage
100 days post-acauisiion integration.

The revised and formalised integration process used in the acquisition of Bopp & Reuther has been further enhanced.
mmmmmhammmmmemmwmmtommmmmm
across all discipines are avallable to successfully manage
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Principal risks and uncertainties (cont’d)

RISK RISK DESCRIPTION AND POTENTIAL IMPACT MITIGATION
.. ]
BEGULATORY BREACH IMI has established a framework which * Commitment 10 good governance practices which are embodied in
mmnsmm:[:ﬁm o insti?:tlesm hi%hest standands to be“lg\it:s and the IMI Way.
LEGISLATIO regulatory compliance across our business. Continued enhancement i eclaration process
OUR OWH HIGH STANDARDS As we expand our operations 1o achisve ' and continued Agorous mmm&gup Asgz‘m team,
OF ETHICAL BERAVIOUR growth It is importart that we makntain thase
stendards. Legislative requirements around « Tha annual (M1 Way Day was held [n June across the Group and
pisK tax, ant-bribery, traud end competition law included ethics training for all employees.
MOVEMENT ° TequIre Tigorous monitoring and training to * Policies, manuels and guidelines are avallable to all empioyess under
avoid financial and reputational damags. the |agal, compliance and financial sections of the IM| glcbal intranet.
* Group, division and specific territory resources dedicated to legal
and regulatory compliance.
* Training of employses focusing on how to apply the IMI Way in everyday
situations and key risk areas such as competition law, fraud and anti-
bribery and comuption. .
+ The confidential IMI hotfine to report concerns.
« Grouwp standard operating procecures are evailable on the intranet
and increased rigour arcund core legal and compliance procésses.
+ Third party agent due diigence and approval procedures, standard
agency agreemnents and terminated non-compilant agents,
CHANGES DURING 2018 IMI has a zero appetite for compliance risk and the challenging market and regulatory erwironment demancts the very highest
standards of conduct. Our processes and procedures have continuad to strengthen and embed throughout the business. During
2016 we trained over half our workforce on anti-bribery and a third of our employees on competition law using modules
hostad on our new IM Learn platform, This system provides the abiity to target particutar and tracks completion

SUPPLY CHAIN The Group has a significant number of = Montoring of risks and dewsiopment of contingency plans 10 mitigate the

FAILURE T MANAGE Wmﬁmmdmh impact of a supplier tagiune or inCreased prices.

THE SUPPLY CHAIN aiiuna 10 mest customers’ requirements Prefamad supplier ists for af! major materials components in each
respect of quality or delivery, could have a .ofthodvhbns. ma and

RISK o matsral impact on the Group's results. = Acequeate safety stock and/or dusl supply for critical components.

MOVEMENT - » Suppiler sconecard process 1o manitor performance, capablity and resiience.

CHANGES DURING 2016 The implementation of a supply scorecard. The supplier risk assessment selection 100l and introduction of commodity experts,
has resulted in & reduction in the likefhood of a critical, strategic suppier fallure. Prefermed suppliers Bsts heve been produced to
concentrate strategic purchasing with certified and approved suppliers. Framework agreemants have been introduced 1o increase
formality in standiand purchase agreements.

|

CYBER SECURITY mm:?ustorrmw « IT Security improvement programme underway across the Group.

UNAUTHORISED ACCESS | niallectual property, frauckuient .

70 0UR 1T SYSTEMS activty, theft and business interuption. b v durapi L e gl v atves trom o chdsions

Oybusmﬂymmmaﬂm partculary with

RISK o regard to fraud.

WGVEMENT « Disaster recovery plans instigated on all critical IT assats.

CHANGES DURING 2018 The Group is In the second year of a three year Gioup-wide Security Improvemant Programme and during 2016, a 24/7 security
operation centre was established 1o monitor and resolve sacurity incidents. The programme includas deploymernt of congigtent
anti-virug, firewalls, intruder detection, device coritrol and sncryption softwars across the Group. Combined with greater cyber risk
awsmaness and behaviours trom our employees, thesa developments have helpad mitigate the increasing cyber threat 1o a lavel
consistent with 2015.
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RISK

COMPETITIVE MARKETS
INCREASINGLY COMPETITIVE
MLARKETS LEADING TO

PRICING PRESSURES OR

RISK DESCRIPTION AND POTENTIAL IMPACT MITIGATION
]
mwmmammm + Compstitor tear-down and vaiue engineering procedures.
. lean 10 better utikse
mm“nm"“s .cmnuummhmmmw Heww::r:w upadyaspwolihe benchmarking
sdasormdramcedprofts. °memﬁwmmdmoducim.

LOSS OF CUSTOMERS

BOVEMENT )

CHANGES DURING 2018

* Monitoring of markets 10 ansune cost competitivenass and market shares.
« Formal market, competitor and peer reviews undertaken quarterty.

lmprwumnlshoperdomlcapabilths routine tear-down testing and competitive benchmarking of cormpetitor products tn

devalopiment .
mmmhmm particularly in the Critical Engineearing division. The APOP process is alsa producing
tangible benefits across the Group foliowing #ts successhi imtroduction in 2015,
|
mamp'sstraﬁgm » Five yaar technology roadmaps included in divisional strategies.
long-term growth achieved in part = Continued investment In research and development to ensura
by deliverif & pipeline of Inovsive new 1asget the most proftable opportunites. * "
muwmwmmmm
products will impact our abllty to grow. o

NEW PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
NOVEMENT o
"CHANGES DURING 2016

-Nawpmdl.lcllmndwﬁonmmphoa.
« Tracking of key performance metrics - lavel of sales from new
products and level of ressanch and development spend against sales.

The APOP process isunched in 2015 is now operating effectively across all three cBvisions. Hydronic Engineering, the division
which pioneered the process, continued 1o beneft from the pipeling 6f new products, generating £30m of salos in 2016
{£30m in 2015). Nawpmd.:d development is now an intagral component of the five yaar strategic planning cycle and
establishes commencial priorities and development roedmeps for all the Group's principal markats.
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Board of Directors

Lord Smith of Kelvin  Mark Seiway Roy Twite Daniel Shook Bob Stack
Chairman Chief Exacutive Executive Diraclor Finance Director Senior independent

non-gxecutive director
Nationality
Buitish Australisn British American British Arnerican
Committee membarship
Nominations Commitiee — Chair Exacutive Committee Exacutive Commirnes Exacutive Committes Nominations Committes

Remunaration Commitiea

— Chalr
Date of appointment
20156 2013 2007 2015 2008
Expertise
Sigrificant UK and international Expéarienced and proven Prpven orgenisstional and Extensiva financial BExperignced non-executive
board sxperience Chigl Exgcutiva enginsering expartise managernent experiance director at public company level
Extansive knowledge of both Solid track record running Managemsnt capabilty having Extonsive knowladge of complex  Significant Internationat
enginearing and manuiacturing international engineering run &l of IMI's diviglons procass mamsacturing across business axpearience
Strong track recond in private buginesses Extensive knowisdge of end- a rangs of industrial sectors Specialist capabilty in human
squity, mengers and acquisiions In-depth knowiedge of relevant marksets and customer base Strong international resourcas, organisational
Spocislist capabiity in Anance end-markats inclucling ofl & gas, perspective, having worked 1 changs and comporate afieirs

enargy and automotive a number of key geographies
during his time wath two lsading
glohal busmessas

Koy external appointments
Nor-executive Chaimman of Non-axecutive direcior of Non-sxacutive director of
Alllance Trus! pic Haima pic the Earthwatch (nstitute
Non-executive Chairman of the Non-exscutive director of
UK Grean nvestment Bank pic Signet Jewellars Limited

Board experience
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Carl-Peter Forster Birgit Nergaard Ross Mcinnes isobel Sharp
Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-gxecutive drector Non-axecutive director
a

Nationality g
Genmnan Danigh French Australian Britigh
Commitiee membership
Auclit Commilites Audit Committoa Audit Commities — Chalr Audit Committee
Nominations Cormmittee Norminations Committee Norminations Commitise Nominations Commitiea
Asmunemtion Committes Remimeration Commitioe
Date of appointment o
2012 2012 2014 2015 3
Experienced ntemational Expérionced non-exaoulve Considerable financial expertise  Considerable accounting, audt, 5
business leacker Hekd senior axecytive poshions and govemancs r;lgzdtfmsu?“cgm z
in-depth knowledge of tha in enginearing consultancy axpariance of working in targe expanencs i ing as =
automotive sector the Senjor Technical Partnar at =

wide sactoral ompanies 2 &

ranging in markets Delgitta in Londen, Prasident o

Expert in operstional excalience experiance including energy, oporate in global of the natitute of Charterad
and lsan manutachsing water, infrastructure and Ascountants of Scotland
Sigriicant experience in bullding industriss and membarship of the UK
tachnology maneagement Expesiance in strategy as wall Accounting Standards Board

as finance and accounting and the Financial Review Pane!
Kay sxtornal appoiniments
Non-executive dinector of Geely Nor-gxgcutive direstor of Non-executive Chairman of Nor-executive director of the
Automoblle Holdings, Hong Kong DSV A/S Safran SA UK Green Investmant Bank plc
Chairman of London Non-sxecutive director of WSP Non-executive director Non-exacutive director and
Taxi Company Globid Ing; end Chairman of and Chsirman of the Audit Audit Committee Chair of
Non-executive director of Volvo the Governance, Ethics and Committes at Faurecia SA Winton Group Uimiteg
Cars Corpotation, Gothenbing, Gompliance Committes Non-axecutiva director Honorary Professor at

Non-gxecutive dinector of and Chalrman of the Audit Edinburgh Unlvarsity
Chairman of Chomring Grouppks Gobham ple Committee at Eutelsat Business Schoal

Communications SA

OGO

S0 %

Find out more about the Board on-fline
wiww.imipic.com/about -imtieadership- and-governance/board
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Corporate Governance introduction
Chairman’s Governance letter

Lord Smith of Kelvin

Dear Shareholder

Strong governance is of great importance to me and my faliow
directors. We firnly believe it makes a real difference to Board
effectiveness, underpins a healthy culture and contributes to IMI's
sustainable success. in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 49 to 54 of this Annual Report, we describe our governance
practices and the workings of the Board and Its committees.

Compliance with the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code

| am pleased to report that IMI complied with the 2014 UK
Corporate Govemance Code (the ‘Code’) throughout the year.
Further details of how we comply with the Code are provided

in the Corporate Governance Report. In keeping with our
Group-wide focus on continuous improvement, during 2016 the
Company's Corporate Governance Framework (the "Governance
Framework'), which incorporates the vital elements of our Board
level govemnanca aangements, was reviewed and refreshed.
Changes to the Govemnance Framework included updating the
remits of each of the Board's committees and refining the matters
reserved to the Board. The Governance Framework appears on
the tM! website www.imiplc.com.

Leadership *

During my second year as Chairman, the various changes made
to the Board and the Executive during 2015 have been bedded
in. Our non-executive directors are making a positive contribution
and the dialogue with Management is open and transparent, As a
result we enjoy a good quality of discussion at mestings. Through
regular contact between formal meetings, | have developed a
strong working relationship with the Chief Executive and Mark
and | enjoy frank, constructive and suitably challenging debates.

Culture

In 2014 the Board adoptad a clear set of values which fiow
through all parts of IMI and are reflected in the culture and
behaviours of our people across the Group. These values, which
are key to the delivery of our strategy, inform all our operational
processes. They are also built into cyr people development
programmes and are assessed bi-annually as part of the steff
performance review process. Further information about our values
and behaviours is detailed in the Corporate Responsibiiity section
on pages 28 to 37.

Strategy and familiarisation

During the year we dedicated more time as a Board to reviewing
the detailed implementation of our sirategy, which we reaffirned
at our strategy day in September 2016. We wvisited two of our
major facifitias in Germany and our largest UK manufacturing
operation. In addition, several of the non-executive directors and
| attended the Group management conference and we have all
visited sites on an individuai basis. This direct contact with the
Group’s businesses is critically important as it accelerates our
understanding of IMI's operations and heips us get 1o know the
wider management team. it also allows us to see the great work
cur people do on a dadly basis which is dearly evident in the
operational improvements we are seging across the Group.

Strengthening IMI .

As highlighted in my statement on page 1, through effective
execution of our strategy we continue to see significant
improverments being made across the Group and as a result
IMI is becoming a stronger company.

Progress is being made in all parts of the Group and across all
functions. In particular, our financial controls have been further
strengthened and | am pleased to report that the level of control
effectiveness across the Group remains high. Another area
where we have seen good progress is in relation to succession
planning, which is key to IMi's long-term success. As described
in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 28 to 37,
during the year we undertook an extensive review of management
succession planning which involved an assessment of the
Group’s top 230 leadars. | am pleased with the significant
progress being made towards building a pipeine of high calibre
management talent.

| enjoy engagement with shareholders and appreciate the support
shown by our Institutional shareholders. | ook forward to meeting
shareholders again at our Annual General Meeting.

Yours faithiy| ’

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

23 February 2017




Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Corporate Governance Report

Set out below is the Board’s formal report on corporate governance and separate
reports from the Audit, Nominations and Remuneration Committees.

UK Corporate Governance Code -

Compliance statement

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and confirms that througholut the
year-ending 31 December 2016 the Company has applied

the principles of good govemance contained in the 2014 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the 'Code’) and complied with its
best practice provisions. Further details appear below, and in
the Directors’ Report and other cross-referenced sections of this
Annual Report, all of which are incorporated by reference into
this report. There are no provisions in respect of which an
axplanation is needed under the "comply or explain” requirement,

A description of the main features of the Company's internal
control systam and disclosures on other regulatory matters
including statements on going concern and viability can be found
on pages 132 1o 135 in the Cirectors’ Report. A summary of
our risk management systems and information about the risks
and uncertainties that relata 10 our business is detailed within
the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section on pages 40 to

43. Information on comporate responsibiity can be found in the
Corporate Responsibility saction on pages 28 to 37.

The Board

Composition

Throughout 2016 and to date in 2017, the Board comprised nine
direciors: the Chairman; the Chief Executive; five independent
non-executive directors; the Finance Director and one
operational executive director,

In line with the Code, ak continuing directors submit themselves
for election or re-glection at each Annual General Meeting.

The role of the Board and the clear division of responsibilities
between the Chakrman and the Chief Executive are outiined

in the Directors' Report on pages 132 to 135.

Independence of non-executive directors

The Board considers that all five non-executive directors

are free from any business or other relationship which could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement and all meet the criteria for independence under
the Code. Isobel Sharp is a co-director with Lord Smith on the
board of the UK Green Investment Bank plc, a government
owned financial institution, Cross-directorships are racognised
in the Code as a potential consideration in relation to the
assessment of independence. The Board has considered the
circumstances and regards Isobel and all of the other non-

sxecutive directors as independent. The Chairman was also
regarded as independent at the date of his appaintment to
the Board. ’

Board diversity

The non-executive directors are a diverse group from diffarent
backgrounds and nationalities and bring with them a wide range
of skills and experience in commerce, finance and industry in
various parts of the world. There are six nationalities on the
Board and two of the nine directors are female (i.e. 22%).

Our approach to diversity is set out in moms detail in the
Corporate Responsibifity section on pages 28 to 37 and

in the Nominations Committee Report on page 58.

Under the Cads, the Chikmen Is evschucked

when considerdng the independent non-
xacutive composition of the Bomd.
5 El
3 Execuiive diectons
S Indepandent nor five: ci
Dates of appointmeant
Name Date of appoimtment  Dute of curront fofter  Anticipated expity of
of appointment curent term
Carl-Peter Forster 1 October 2012 3 Jary 217 30 September 2018
Ross Mcinnes 1 Oclober 2014 3 January 2017 30 Septamber 2017
Birgit Nergaard & November 2012 3 Januery 2017 § November 2018
Isobel Sharp 1 September 2015 3 January 2017 31 Augusl 2018
Lord Robert Smith T May 2015 3 January 2017 & May 2018
Bob Stack 13 June 2008 3 Jarwary 2017 12 ko 2017

Meetings and use of Board time

The Board met on six occasions during the year including

two results reporting meetings, a day dedicated 1o strategy
discussions and regular review meetings. In addition, there were
several days spent on group site visits to three operating units.

mepany iBe1ng | uoponpo.guy
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Corporate Governance Report (cont'd)

Board activity
Highlights of Board activity in the year were: :
* Bedding in the Board and Executive membership following
various changes during 2015
= Reaffirming the commitment to the strategy
» Overseeing progress with growth and process investments
- Continuing growth invastments made in new products and
business IT systems
- Driving core process disciplines including lean, risk,
compliance, advanced preduct quality planning and
poficy deployment
* Approval and review of strategy implementation including
- Manufacturing transfers in IMI Critical Engineering
- Adopting a new organisation structure in IMI Precision
Engineering
- Reviewing the "go to market” strategy in IMI Precision
Engineering
- New product introductions in IMt Hydronic Engineering
* Overseeing risk and the continuing actions to strengthen
the internal control environment
* Reviewing talent and succession management and the
continued embedding of our people development processes
including succession plans, talent programmes and
improvemnents in management capability

Board attendance
Director Board mestings % attended wheme
eligible

Carl-Peter Forster &8 100
Ross Mcinnes &8 100
Birgit Nargaard 8/8 100
Isobel Sharp 8/6 100
Lord Smith 6/6 100
Bob Stack 6/8 100
Mark Salway 6/6 100
Daniel Shook 6/8 100
Roy Twite® 4/8 87

* Roy Twite did not participate in two meetings due to attendance at a ieadership
and strategic development progranyna at the Compeny's nacquest.

In 2017 to date the Board has met once with all members
in attendance.

Board roles and reserved matters

A description of Board roles and reserved matters is included

in the Governance Framework and sumrmnarised in the Directors’
Report on pages 132 to 135.

Induction and continuing development programmae

A formal induction process for new non-executive directors is wed
established and is the responsibility of the Chainman with support
from the Chisf Executive and Company Secretary.

Business familiarisation is at the core of induction and cortinuing
development for non-executive directors at IMI and is based
around gaining an understanding of the business and getting

to know the wider management team, In addition all non-executive
directors attend a corporate induction day for senior managers
held at head offica. There is also a committee induction process
designed to brief new committee members on the relevant
committee’s activity and the issues it faces.

Non-executive directors are regquired to visit business units
around the Group and to meet faca-to-face with senior operating
management and key corporate staff. Non-executive directors
continue to become familiar with the businesses after induction
and there is regular contact between management and non-
exacutive diractors during site visits, formal meetings and events.

Curing 2016 all of the non-executive directors made site visits
and the whole Board spent several days in Germnarty, where they
visited sites in both IMI Pracision Engineering and IMI Hydronic
Engineering. There was also & visit to the Group's largest

UK operation.

Appropriaie coaching and access to training and other continuing
professional development is avallable 1o all non-executive directors
and appropriate updates are given during the year at Board and
committee meetings. Special governance and regulatory refresher |
sessions were held during the year and were attended by all of the
non-executive directors. in 2018, these included update sessions
for all three of the standing committees and governance updates
for the Boarg which covered the EU Market Abuse Regulation

and other developments.
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Corporate Governance Report (cont’d)

Board visits to IMI Buschjost and IMI Heimeier in Germany

IMI has a substantial prasence In Germany which is home to
business units in all three divisions and IMI's largest European
market. In October the Board visited Garmany where it heid
mestings and visited two outstanding manufacturing sites,

one in Precision Engineering, IMI Buschjost, and the other

In Hydronic Engineering, IM) Heimeler.

IMt Buschiost is a key brand for Precision Engineering and offers
a comprehensive range of vaives ideally suited to the process
industry including solenoid valves, angle-seat valves, motorised
valves and systems for dust filters. IMI Heimeier is a key brand
for Hydronic Engineering and offers thermostatic radiator vaives,
actuators and room thermostats.

During the factory tours, the engineers and machine operators
had the opportunity 10 showcase new product development anc
operational improverments. Local and divisional managernent
rade business presentations and after the site visits they enjoyed
dinner with the Board,

‘The Board commended the investment in lean improvemnent,
new products and innovation and the high standards of
operational managernent. IMI's core processes were seen 10
be well embedded at gach site. The Board was very impressed
with both businesses and congratulated local management for
the progress being made,

Site visits are an important, regular feature of the Board calendar.
Such visits provide an excellent opporturity for the Board to
meet a wider group of employess and gain a more in-depth
understanding of the business.

The Board with members of IM) Buschjost's management taam

Board evaluation

In 2016 an intemal evaluation exercise was carried out through
questionnaines and canvassing comments from directors. The
Board received the findings of the internal evahsation in Dacember
2016 and relevant elements wene shared with the committees.
Whie the findings of the intemal evaluation were overwhelmingly
positive, in keeping with the Group's commitrnent to continuous
improverment, the Board agreed that sorme amsas should be further
developed over the coming year, including changes to the order
of mestings.

Action taken in response to the intarnal évaluation undertaken

in 2015 inciuded the appointment of all non-executive directors
to the Nominations Committee and subsequent training on best
practice for the expanded Nominations Committes,

The Board reviewed effectiveness, taking account of the
Financial Reporting Coundll’s best practice guidance on board
effectiveness, and the directors confimmed that the Board is
futiiling its responsibilities appropriately and that the Board

and its committees were effective. Evaluations of individual
Board directors were also undertaken to assess whether each
continuing director has demonstrated an aeffective contribution
and commitment to the role. The Chairman fed back to indhidual
directors the relevant findings.

As senior independen director, Bob Stack conducted a review
of the Chairman with the other non-executive directors and
shared the results with the Chairman. During the year the
Chairman also met with the non-executive directors to review
the performance of the Chief Executive. The Chairman passed
on to the Chief Executive appropriate feedback from the review
of his performance.

in ine with the Code, the Board has agreed that the Chainman
will arrange an externally facifitated evaluation process every
thwee years and the next such process will be conducted in
2017 faciitated by Egon Zehnder.

Standing committees of the Board

The standing committess of the Board are the Audit Committes,
the Nominations Committee and the Remuneration Committes.
Each of these commiitiees operates under writter terms of
reference which clearly sat out their respective delegated
responsibiities and authorities. The full terms of reference

of these committees are part of the Governance Framework.
The committees report to the Board on their work, normatly
through their respective chair, following each mesting.

Separate reports from the committess appear in this Annual
Report as follows: Audit Committee Report on pages 55 to 57;
Nominations Committea Report on page 58 and Remuneration
Committes Report on pages 59 to 71.
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Audit Committee Nominations Committee Remuneration Committee
Ross Mcinnes Lord Smith of Kelvin Bob Stack
Chairman Chalman Chairman
Mambership: Masmbership: Mambership:
» Carl-Pater Forster » Carl-Pater Forster » Canl-Peter Forster
+ Birgit Nargaand = Ross Mcinnes + Birght Norgaard
* isobel Sharp « Birgk Norgaard
* |sobel Sharp
« Bob Stack
Main responsibiiities: Main responsibiiities: Main responsibilities:
Financigl reporting + Board and commities composition + Define and recommend the remuneration policy
» Oversight role in relation to financial stalemants * Succession plans for the Board and for senior * Determine the individual remuneration packeges
« Roviewing significent areas of judgement and management and comporate roles for the most senior executives and the Chairman
accounting policies » Search for and recommenciation of candidates within the policy approved by shereholders
Reviewi proposed statements for appointment as non-executive directors, Chisf * Set annual and long-term incantive metrics and
Annual Report » Diversity policy and monitoring of progress = Fgport on remuneration matters and constructively
» Advising the Board on whether the draft Annual * Review and recommendation of proposals for engage with sharsholders
Report s lalr, balanced and understandable the assignment of major executive responaibilities  » Assess risk in respact of remuneration and
« Moriitoring announcernents in respect of and the appointment and removal of divisional Incentive structures in particular
financial performence business lsaders
Fnancial control and risk
* Reviewing the eflectiveness of internal
financial controls
* Reviewing financial rigk including fraud risk
* Oversight of inlernal audit
» Managing the external audit process, its objectivity,
effactiveness and cost
» Appointment of the auditor and responsibiiity
for the audit fee
= Reviewing the system for corfidential
whistigblowing and the treetrment of

mopey olemns |

ardiny

[n]




54 M1 pic

Corporate Governance Report (cont’d)

Executive Committee

The Exacutive Committee is chaired by the Chief Executive and
the other members are shown on page 9. Reguler attenclees
include the Head of Group Finance, Director of Rigk and
Compiiance, and the Head of Investor Relations. Other senior
executives and §ne managers from around the Group are regularly
called upon to aitend mestings of the Executive Committes. The
Committes meets monthly and mom often as ray be required.

The Executive Committee is the senior Management body and
as part of the broad remit set by the Chief Executive it monitors
and manages business performance, reviews progress against
strategic objectives and considers divisional management issues.
It also formulates budgets and proposals on strategy, policy and
resource allocation for consideration by the Board. The Executive
Committes is 2 Management committee which takes its authority
from the Chief Executive and is not a committee of the Board.

The Executive Committee plays a key part in risk assessment,
risk management and monitoring processes and receives
regular reports on health and safety, compliance, legal and
corporate affairs.

Investor relations

The Board as a whole seeks to maintain a balanced
understanding of the issues and concems of major shareholders
and to assist them in the stewardship of their investments.

The Chief Executive and Finance Director have primary
responsibility at Board leve! for investor relations and they,

and the Head of Investor Relations, report to the Board

on shareholder issues at every Board mesting during the

year. Financial analysts’ notes are circulated to the directors

and the Board receives regular feadback reports from the
Company's brokers and public relations advisers as well as from
Management. Dialogue is maintained with sharsholders and the
executive directors meet regularty with institutional investors:
duwring 2016 there were over 130 such meetings with institutional
sharehoiders, The Chairman and the senior independent director
also are availabla to sharsholders as needed and both have had
contact with investors during the year.

The 2018 Annual General Meeling was presided over by the
Chaimman and attended by all of the directors. The Chaimman
encouraged debate and quaestions at the formal meeting and
the directors met sharehoiders informally afterwards. Each
substantively separate issue was put to the Annual General
Meeting as an individual motion. A resolution for the approval
of the Directors' Remuneration Report was also put to the
meeting. Notice of the Annual Gensral Meeting was issued
more than twenty working days in advance and the leval of
votes lodged for and against each resciution, together with
deatails of abstentions are shown on the IM! website. The Board
values the support of shareholders and the poll results for all

- resolutions proposed at the Annual General Meeting were well
above 90% in favour in each case.

In addition to the Annual Report, the Company issues
preliminary results and interim resuits announcements, as

well as two interim management statements between results
announcements. The iMl website includes recordings of certain
key presentations made by senior Managemant, recant annual
and interim reports, interim management statements, other
corporate announcements and links to the websites of the
Group's businesses.

The Company has arranged a dealing service for the convenience
of shareholders with Equiniti (details are shown on page 156).

A sponsored Level 1 American Depositary Receipt programme
has been astablished for which Citibank, N.A. acts as depositary
(details can be found on page 156).

John{’'Shea
Group Legal Director and Company Secretary
23 February 2017
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Audit Committee Report

Ross Mcinnes
Chainman of the Audt Commitiee

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present my third report ag Chairman of the
Audit Committee. This report is intended to give an account

of the Committee and its activity in support of the Board.,

The core responsibility of the Committes is oversight in relation
to financial reporting, internal financial controls and assurance
provided by internal and external audit.

Composition of the Audit Committee

Birgit Nergaard, Carl-Peter Forster, Isobel Sham and | were
members of the Audit Committee throughout the year, All of the
Committee rmernbers are regarded by the Board as independerit
non-executive directors. | have chaired the Audit Commitiee
since 1 January 2015 and became a member on 1 October
2014. I was a career finance director until my retirement from
executive office with Safran in 2015 and | have significant
recent and relevant financial experience. | also chair the audit
committees at two French public companies, Faurecia SA and
Eutelsat Communications SA, My colleagues on the Committee
have experience at audit committee level and Isobel Shamp

is a Chartered Accountant with a strong financial assurance
background through her career in audit practice. Together

the Committes members have the skills, exparience and
objectivity to be an effective audit committee and constructively
challenge Management.

The Committee generally asks the following to join its meetings:
tha Chairman, the Chief Executive, the Finance Director, the
Head of Group Finance, the Director of Risk and Compliance,
the Group Assurance Director and the extemnal auditor, EY.

| consutt with the Finance Director and other key staff and with
the external auditor ahead of meetings to ensure issues are
well understood and the meeting papers are appropriate.

The Committee holds at least part of several meetings each year
alone with the extemal auditor and with the Director of Risk and
Compliance and the Group Assurance Director, The Committee
has the powers to call on any employees to come before it.

The Secretary to the Commities is the Company Secretary,

who Is also the Group Legal Director.

Main areas of activity

The Audit Committee met four times in 2016, including

two results reporting meetings and two planning and

review mestings.

Financial controls continued to be a key focus area for the
Committee and Management has continued to make significant
progress in strengthening intemal financial controls and risk
management processes. Based on its review of selected key
controls, EY agreed with Management's assessment that the
level of control effectiveness at full and specific scope locations
remains high at 28%. The (T investment and infrastructure
programme will further strengthen the control environment in the
years ahead and faciitate efficiency improvements in the audit.

The Committee has received reports on the six-monthly
Internal Control Declarations which are submitted by each
business unit and cover internal controls in relation to financial
affairs, [T, human resources and other key areas. The process
is managed by Group Assurance, which routinely audits and
follows up deciarations to review scores and appropriate
Improvement actions.

The Committea's work also included reviewing the financial
statements, the effectiveness of internal financial controls and
assurance processes and the significant issues of judgement
described below.

The Committee reviewed and approved for submission to the
Board the staternents on going concern and viability, which
appear in the Directors’ Report on pages 132 10 135.

The Committee remit calls upon it to advise the Board in .
relation to the fair, balanced and understandable requirements
in respact of the Annual Report and the Committee has

made a positive report to the Board in this connection. This

is also an area for review by the auditor in relation to which

it did not report any exceptions. The statement of Directors’
responsibilities on page 1386 includes confirmation by the
Board that it considers the report and accounts, taken as

a whole, to be fair, balanced and understandable.

During the year, the Committee received a technical and
governance update covering changes in accounting standards,
developments in audit reform and other key topics.

UORONPOMY
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Audit Committee Report (cont’d)

Attendance
Director Audit Committee % attended whera
meetings eligible
Carl-Peter Forster 4/4 100
Ross Mclnnes 4/4 100
Birgit Nargaard 4/4 100
isobel Sharp 4/4 100

Oversight of financial reporting

The Committee acts in an oversight role in respect of the
Annual Report and announcements with financial content all of
which are prepared by Management. The Commiittee received
reports on the annual and interim financial statemnents from
Management and the extemal auditor who presented to its
meetings. The auditor's report inciuding a summary of key
areas of audit focus is set out on pages 137 to 143. )

Significant judgements related to the financial statements

In preparing the accounts, there are a number of areas requiring
the exercise by Managament of judgement and estimation.

The Committee reviews the most significant accounting areas
involving such judgements and estimates and these are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles arising from
acquisitions

We considerad the level of goodwill held on the Group's balance
sheet in respect of a number of past acquisitions and whether,
given the future prospects of these businesses, the value of
goodwill in each case remains appropriate.

The Committee reviewed the assumptions and calculations
used by Management in the assessment of any impairment of
goodwil and intangible assets and agreed that no impaimment
charges were required save for a £5m charge in respect of
Stainless Steel Fasteners Limited, impairment was also a
focus area for EY which reported its findings to the Committee.
Section 3.2 to the financial statements on page 87 provides
detalls regarding the Group's intangible assets and goodwill
and the impairment charge mentioned above.

Revenue recognition

The Committee discussed the timing of revenue recognition
on some of the Group's larger contracts. In addition, this Is an
area of audit focus on which EY reported to the Committee.
Having reviewed Management’s process and EY's report,

the Cormmittee concluded that revenues were appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. Section 5 note C to the
financial statements on page 127 provides further information.

The Commitiee also reviewed Management'’s assessment of the
impact of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
which is discussed further in Section 1 on page 84,

Pensions accounting

The Committee reviewed the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment in respect of pension scheme liabilities, including the
actuarial assumptions used and the impact of one-off special
pension events. The Committee also reviewed reporting from
the external auditor, which concurred with the accounting

for pensions as proposed by Management. The Committee
supported Management's on-going effort to de-risk its pension
obligations. Further details can be found in Section 4.5 on
page 114.

inventory valuation

The Committes reviewed the judgements applied to standard
costing valuations and provisions against excess and obsolete
inventory and concurred with Management’s assessment.
This was another focus area for EY, in respect of which it
reported to the Committee that inventory valuation across the
Group is considered appropriate. Note 3.1.1 to the financial
statements on page 96 provides details of inventory valuation,

Other judgement areas

In addition the Commitiee reviewed the appropriateness of
restructuring costs disclosed as exceptional, property sales and
the adequacy of taxation provisions. Further details on these
matters can be found in Sections 2.2 and 2.4 respectively.

External audit independence and perforrmmance review

The Committee approved the proposed external audit approach
and its scope based on the size and level of risk of the entities
concerned. The Committee takes a risk based approach to
audit and other assurance activity. The key audit risks identified
by EY are set out in its report on page 137 and were reviewed
by the Committee in approving the audit scope and plan.

The Committee considered the independence and objectivity
of the external auditor. In assessing auditor independence the
Committee had regard to the Financial Reporting Counci’s
latest best practice guidance for audit committees. in addition,
the auditor confirmed that its ethics and independence policies
complied with the requirements of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales,

The policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit work was
reviewed and updated by the Committes in 2016 to take
account of developments in negulatory requiremeants and ethical
guidelines for the audit profession. The policy requires approval
by the Committea for any non-audit angagement which Is

rmore than trivial. The Finance Director monitors any proposed
non-audit engagement of EY and refers to the Committee

for approval as appropriate. The policy does not aliow work

to be placed with the auditor if it could compromise auditor
independence, such as, functioning in the role of management
or auditing its own work, Non-audit fees paid to the auditor were
£0.2m {2015: £0.2m)}, which represents 8% of the audit fee and
demonstrates the tight control which is maintained in this area.
No non-audit engagements involved fees above £30,000 and
the main areas of activity were tax compliance and the intenim
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results review. We are of the view that the level and nature of
non-audit work does not compromise the independence of
the external auditor.

Benchmarking of the audit fee was conducted to ensure that
it is appropriate and competitive and the Committee approved
the proposed audit fee payable to EY.

We formally reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit
process. A questionnaire was used to review the external
auditor and was completed by each member of the Committee
and by the Finance Director. Feedback was also received from
the Chief Executive, the Head of Group Finance, Group and
Divisional Managerment. The output from this process was
considered by the Committee and was provided to the external
auditor. As a resuit of this exercise the Committee befieves

the external auditor's performance has been satisfactory and
the external auditor is considered to be effective. To further
enhance the external audit process, certain improvement
actions were identified in the effectiveness review and plans
have been put in placa by EY to address thess. These included
a focus on improving continuity of staff and earlier completion
of certain locations statutory accounts,

Auditor choice, tenure and tendering

The Committee recommended and the Board approved

the proposal to re-appoint EY as the external auditor at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. EY was first appointed
as auditor for the year-ending 31 Decamber 2009, following

a competitive tendering process, after which it replaced the
previous auditor. The term of appointment is annual and there
are no contractual restrictions on the Committee's choice

of auditor.

To maintain the objectivity of the audit process, the external
audit partner responsible for the Group is rotated within EY
at least every five years and the curment Senior Statutory
Auditor, Andrew Walton, has now beéen in place for four

years and will change following completion of the 2017 audit.
Succession planning has been carried out and a new audit
partner designate has been approved by the Committes.
New regulations for audit tendering and rotation of audit firms
have been introduced which require mandatory tendering
after ten years (.. ahead of the 31 December 2019 audit)
and a change of audit firm after 20 years (i.e. ahead of the

31 December 2028 audit). The Committee does not cumrently
intend to do so but reserves the right to run a tender for the
audit role at an sarlier date Iif that is right for the Company and
otherwise, will conduct a tender by the regulatory deadiine.

internal audit

The Committee also receives reports from and monitors the
work of the internal audit function, known as Group Assurance.
Group Assurance reports through the Director of Risk and
Compliance to the Chief Executive. Group Assurance also has

a direct reporting line to the Committee. Assurance work is
primarily directed towards financial control audits but has been
broadened into other areas including major business change

project planning and implementation and internal control
declarations. The principal projects reviewed in 2016 were
major computer systems implementations in each of the
three divisions.

Group Assurance is working closely with the divisions to
develop improved monitoring and review processes to
complement the intemal and external audit coverage. The
annual plan and resourcing for internal audit were approved by
the Committee and take account of the enhanced monitoring
and review activity planned within the divisions.

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of Group Assurance
with Management and received input from the external auditor.
The Committee was pleased to note the contribution that
Group Assurance had made to the further strengthening of
internal financial controls during the year.

Compliance hotline

The Committes reviews the operation of the independent
compliance hotline for reporting concems, oversees the

more significant reports received and considers how these
are investigated and followed up. We believe that the hotiine
process and investigations are effective and that proportionate
action is taken by Management in response.

Committee evaluation

The Audit Comimittee reviewed its own performance and terms
of reference and received positive feedback from the evaluation
exercise carried out in relation to the Board and each of its
standing committeas.

The Committes approved the foregoing report on its work,

—

Chairman of tha Auflit Committes
23 February 2017

Yours faithfully
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Nominations Committee Report

-~

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chalrmnan of tha Nominations Committee

Dear Shareholder

Composition

Carl-Peter Forster, Ross Mcinnes, Birgit Nergaard, Isobel Sharp,
Bob Stack and | were members of the Committes throughout
the year. All of the other maembers of the Committee are
regarded as independent non-executive directors.

Attendance
Director Nominations % attended whers
Committes mutingl eligible

Carl-Peter Forster 33 100

.Ross Mcinnes 3/3 100
Birgit Nergaard ¥3 100
Isobel Sharp 3 100
Lord Smith a3 100
Bob Stack 33 100

Main areas of activity in 2016

N new directors have baen appointed during the year. Al of
the directors are recommended for re-election at the 2017
Annual General Meeting. The Board approved all of the
recommendations made by the Committes for the renewals
of appointment for continuing directors. Other key areas of
activity are described below.

Succession planning

The Committee reviews Board cornposition and has formulated
a structured, medium-term plan for Board succession. During
the year we reviewed talert deveioprnent and succession
planning for the top 230 roles in the Group with the support

of the Chief Executive and Group Human Resources Director.
We were encouraged to see that significant progress continues
to be made in terms of cultivating a pipeline of high-calibre
talent. Further details of the Management succession planning
process are set out in the Corporate Resporsibility section on
pages 28 to 37. The Committee noted the Financial Reporting
Council's 2016 feedback statement on UK Board succession
planning as a useful point of reference.

Review of time commitments and contributions

The appointments of the Chaimnan and non-executive directors
are made on the basis of a formal letter of appointment including -
a stated minimum time commitment judged appropriate by the
Cornmittee. The Committee considers that the time given to IMI
by each non-executive director is sufficient. The Board is satisfied
that | have the necessary time to devote to my role as Chairrman.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits a diverse pool of talent can
bring to a boardroom and remains committed to increasing
diversity in the businesses by voluntary measures. We will
continue to review the composition of our management teams
and the Board to ensure that we have tha right mix of skills and
experience while maintaining our effectiveness and execution
capabilties. At Board level, there are six nationalities, two of the
five non-executive directors ame female and there is a broad mix
of backgrounds and experience. Further information on diversity
matters is given in the Corporate Responsibiity section on
pages 28 to 37,

Committee evaluation

The Nominations Commitiee reviewed its own performance

and terms of reference and received positive feedback from the
evaluation exarcisa carried out in respect of the Board and each
of its committees, Following the Board evaluation in 2015, the
Committee membership during 2016 has included alf of the non-
executive directors and an update on Nominations Committee
best practice was provided for the expanded Committee.

The Committes approved the foregoing report on its work.

Lord Smith of Kelvin

Chaimnan of the Nominations Committee
23 February 2017
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Statement from the
Chairman of the Commiittee

Bob Stack
Chairman of the Remuneration Committea

Dear Shareholder

2016 was the second year under our remunaration policy
following its approval by shareholders in 2015. In line with

last year's approach and to simplify this year’s report, our
approved ramuneration policy can be found in the 2014 Annuat
Report on the IMI website. Our focus this year has been
twofold: to ensure consistent application of our policy and to
ensure remuneration arrangements remain appropriate in light
of the continuing tough economic and market conditions.

2018 has been a challenging year for IMI with continued
difficult economic and market conditions putting pressure
on the Group's ability to deliver progress in many of the

key financial measures. It is pleasing to report that many of
the longer term actions have bean executed well and the
new product pipeline, operational improvements and ERP
implementation have al made excellent progress in the year.

Group profit before tax has decreased by 5% to £208m while
organic revenue was lower by 5% to £1,649m. EPS was also
lower by 4% in 2016 and shareholders received a dividend of
38.7p — an increase of 1% from last year.

Despite the challenges encountered, we remain focused

on executing our strategy, investing in the business and
capitalising on long-term growth opportunities. In particular,
the investmeants made over the course of 2015 and 2016 give
us improved potential to grow shareholder value in the long-
term and we remain confident that we are well positioned to
capitalise on future market recovery. The Commities believes
that the remuneration anangements in place will continue to
support the strategic business plan and ensure a strong focus
on growth and efficiency.

How were pay outcomes linked to performance in 20167

Remuneration for the executive directors is closely tied

to business performance, with a high proportion of total
remuneration delivered through variable pay linked to our
strategic plan. At IMI we remain committed to a pay-for-
performance philosophy and as a result of the performance
challenges | have outlined, the outcomes under our variable
pay schemes are below the on-target level.

Annual incentive awards to executive directors for 2016 were
based on a combination of Group profit before tax (40%),
organic revenue growth (20%), cash conversion {(20%) and
strategic and personal objectives (20%). Although only
threshold levels were achieved in respect of Group profit before
tax and organic revenues, above larget levels were achieved
for cash conversion which together with achievement against
strategic and personal objectives resulted in the annual
incentive bonus payments, and consequently the single total
figure, being marginally higher than last year. The Commitiee
is confident that this represents a fair reflection of parformance
in the context of the aforementioned challenges faced by the
business. Summary outcomes against financial targets are
presented in the chart below:

Target Maximum
Gi profit
‘befors tax 16%
Organic revenue:
growth %
Cash convarslen ©%

Additional to the annual incentive awards is the IMI Incentive
Plan, which is further explained on page 66. This plan was only
implemented in 2015, the first vesting of the award will be in
2018. M W Seiway and R M Twite were granted a matching
share award and performance award in 2014 and the awards
vesied at 0% and 0% respectively. -

uoponpoRLYy

mopoy sibeeng |

€
<
(%]
=
&

ARUNNE ULy



60 Ml plc

Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Statement from the Chairman of the Committee (cont’d)

What decisions were made in 20167

The Committee reviewed remuneration arrangements for

the executive directors during the year and decided that no
change to remuneration palicy or 1o structure in 2016 or 2017
is appropriate or necessary.

The Committee reviewed the base salary levels for executive
directors in light of 2016 business performance and concluded
that an increase of 2%, effective 1 January 2017, was
appropriate and in ine with the wider employes workforce.

The Chaiman and non-executive dinector fees were also
reviewed and were increased by 2%, effective 1 January 2017.

Looking forward

The Committee will keep the existing remuneration policy under
review to ensure it continues to support IMI's strategic
objectives. With this is mind, it is noted that the remuneration
policy was last approved by sharaholders in 2015 and is due to
be reviewed before a policy is put to the 2018 Annual General
Meeting. This policy review will be a key area of focus for the
Committee ahead of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

Yours fzﬂy : ;

Bol

Chaiman of the Remuneration Committee
23 Febnsary 2017
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Committee presents the Directors’ Remuneration Report, which will be put to shareholders for an
advisory (non-binding) vote at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 4 May 2017. The report includes
details of the Committee, the pay received by our executive directors during the year in accordance with
our current remuneration policy (approved on 7 May 2015) and comparative internal and external data.

The Remuneration Committee (‘the Committee’)
Composition

The members of the Committes throughout the year were
Bob Stack (Chairman), Carl-Peter Forster and Birgit Nergaard.
In accordance with the 2014 UK Corporate Governance
Code, all of the non-executive directors were regarded by

the Board as independent.

Responsibility

The Committee determines the remuneration policy and rewards
for the executive directors and, in his absence, the Chairman.
The Committee also reviews the remuneration packages

of those at the next most senior level of management and

has considered the levels of pay across the broader Group.

A copy of the Commitiee’s terms of reference, which are
reviewed annually, is included in the IMI Comporate Govermnance
Framework and available in the Corporate Governance section
of the IMI website.

Internal advisors to the Cornmittee

During the year, the Committee consutted the Chief Executive,
regarding the packages of the other executive directors and
senior managers. It also received support from the Finance
Director, the Group Human Resources Director, the Head

of Group Reward and the Company Secretary, who is also
secretary to the Committee. None of these individuals were
involved in determining their own rermuneration,

External advisers to the Committee

Independent remuneration consultant, Wilis Towers Watson,

is formally appointed by the Committee and provided advice
on directors’ remuneration to the Cornmittee in 2016. The
Committee noted that the firn are actuaries and administrators
for the IMI Pension Fund. The Committee is comfortable that
these activities do not represent a conflict of interest and that
objective and independent advice continues to be received

by the Committee from the dedicated team servicing it at

Willis Towers Watson.

During 2016, Willis Towers Watson has also supported
management on soms broader reward and human resource
matters. The fees charged by Willis Towers Watson in respect
of advice and services to the Committee {otalled £50,000
and for support to management totalled £17,000 in 2016.
Willis Towers Watson are signatories to the Remuneration
Consultants’ Code of Conduct in the UK.

A summary of the Committee activities during 2016

The Committee had three formal meetings during the year,

and each was attended by all members. The principal agenda

items were as follows:

= a review of total compansation packages of the exacutive
directors and the most senior management of the Group
to ensure alignment with IMI's strategic growth plan;

* approval of achievernents and outcomes under the
incentive plans;

» consideration of the fees for the Chairman,;

= setting the framework and target lavels for the 2016 incentive
cycle including review of the performance targets attaching
to the 2017 long-term incentive plan awards;

s approval of the granting of share awards to executive
directors and certain other levels of management;

= a raview of the UK corporate govemance environment
relative to remuneration;

* a risk review of the remuneration framework;

= a review of the engagement of the independent remuneration
consultants to the Committes; and

» a review of the Committes's own performance, constitution
and terms of reference.

Attendance
Director Remunerstion % attanded
Committes mestings  where eligible
R J Stack 3 100%
C-P Forster 3 100%
B Norgasrd 3 100%

Voting outcome at the 2016 Annual General Meeting

The following tatle summarises the details of votes cast for
and against the remuneration report resolution including those
votes withheld. The Committes was pleased with the level

of support shown by sharehclders and will continue

to consider the views of, and feedback from, sharsholders
when setting and reporting on remuneration arrangements.

Directors’ Remuneration Votes for Votes against Votes withheld
Reoport

Annual Remunerution Policy 98.73%

1.27% 2,408,779
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Remuneration Report (cont'd)

. |
Executive single figure table {audited)

Annusl Other tems in the nature
Flod pay variable pay Long-term variable pay of remunaration
(E000) {0000}
Shae Subtotal
Annusl Matching  Performance fong-term AN~ Dividend
Taxabie incentve Plan Sham warinble squivalent Totel
Director Base salary Penalon banefits banus {'SMP’} Ptan (‘PSP pay ¢ sham plans paymants #2000)
: Pages Pages
See page Paga 64 Page 64 Page 65 854068 Page 67 87 1068 Page 60 Page 60
2018 785 236 42 ™ - 38 38 4 - 1,808
M W Seiway
206 770 2 50 81 - . ] - 1,887
2018 454 158 19 amn - - . 4 - a7
R M Twite
2018 445 158 19 194 135 - 136 4 - 883
2018 410 82 34 252 - - 4 - %2
D J Shook
2018 400 80 100 183 - - - - m

R M Twite sarved on the Board of Halma pic during the year and received fees of £51,000 in respect of this appaintment which he retained.

These figures have been calculated as follows:

Base sslary:
Pension;
Taxable benefits:

Annugl incentive bonus:

Share Matching Plan:

the actual salary receivable for the year.
the cash allowance peid In liew of pension.

the gross value of alf taxable benefits (or benefits
that would be taxable in the UK) received in the year.
the value of the annual incentive payable for
paerformance in respect of the relevant financial

year (hall of this is automatically defivered In shares
when the executive does not meet the share
ownarship reguiramerit).

the value on vesting of the matching shares that
were subject to performance over the three-year
pericd ending on 31 December in the retavant financial
yaar (see share price assumptions adjacent).

the value on vesting of shares that were subject

", 10 performance over the three-year pariod ending

on 31 Decembar in the relevant fnancia! year
(ses share price assumptions adjacent).

Share price assumptions’

Dividend equivelent
payments:

for shares vasting In 2077, that related to performance
in the thres years 1o 31 Decembar 2016, the average
share price over the final three months of 2016
1.007.51 pance is used to estimate the valug of shares
on vesting. For sharas vested in 2016, relating 10
performance in the three years to 31 Decamber 2015,
previously reported figures® are updated to reflect the
actual sham price on the date of vesting (825.50 pence
for the Share Matching Plan and 838.00 pence for the
Performance Share Plan).

:  the value of free shanes at award and dividends under

the Employee Share Ownership Plan in the relevant
financial year and the intrinsic valug of Save as You
Earn shane options on the date of grant in the relevant
financial year (applying a 10% discount as permitted
under the Save as You Eam Share Plan).

the value of dvadend equivalent shares on vested but
unexercised awargs under the share plans, valued at
the price on the dividand payment date.

* The avenage share price over the final three months of 2015 (840.93 pence)

was used,
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Comparative data of pay spend
The fotiowing inforrnation is intended to provide additional context
negarding the total remuneration for executive directors.

Relative importance of pay spend
2018 2015 Change
(Em) (Bm)
Acquisitions . - 106.2 -100%
Dividends 1042 1025 2%
Total employment costs for Group 566.6 508.2 1%
(see Section 2.1.3.1 on pape 89)

In 2016, the total dividend for the year of 38.7 pence represented
an increase of 19% over last year's 38.4 pence.

Relative percentage change in remuneration for
Chief Executive

The Committee actively considers any increases in base
pay for the Chief Executive relative to the broader employse
population. However, benefits and bonus payments are not
typically compared given they are driven by a far broader
rangse of factors, such as local practices, sligibility, individual
circumstances and role,

Chief Executive Employees’
Base salary 2% 2%
Benefits -18% 5%
Annual bonus 28% 3%

' All UK head office employees. This comparison excludes our international
workiorce which we feel would not provide a true comparison given differing
local market factors.

Historical performance and remuneration

In addition to considering executive remunaration in the
context of internal comparisons, the Commities reviews
historical outcornes under the variable pay plans.

The graph below compares IMI's total shareholder return
(‘TSR') to the FTSE100 over the last eight years. We compare
performance to the FTSE100 as IMI has been included in the
index in the past and it is a position where IMI aspires to be. -
TSR measures the returns that a company has provided for
its sharehciders, reflecting share price moverments and
assuming reinvestmenit of dividends {(source: DataStream),
with data averaged over the final 30 days of each financial year.

As the graph below fllustrates, IMI's absoluts and relative TSR
pearformance has been strong over the last eight years. This is
reflected in the outcomes under our variable pay plans, which
are largely driven by the financial performance of the Group
and IMI's share price.

Value of a hypothetical £100 investment
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Remuneration Report (cont’d)

|
The following table summarises tha total remuneration for the Chief Executive over the last sight years, and the outcomes of short

and long-term incentive plans as a % of maximum,

Financial year-anded 31 December 2009" 2010 2011 2n2 my 20147 2008 2018
Total remuneration 2.547 4,439 12,289 7.954 6,688 1,567 1,667 1,886
(single figure, £000}

Annual variable pay 1% 98% 85% 47% 82% 308% 40% 50%
{% of maximum}

Long-term vaniable pay Ba% a97% 95% 100% 100% -

(% of maximum} -

Share Matching Plan

Long-tenm variable pay 45% 100% 100% 100% 82.6% 3.5%
{% af maximum) -

Performance Share Plan

' Raprosents rerrunaration for M J Lamb who was Ghiel Exaculiva from belore 2008 uniil 31 December 201 3.
2 Rapresants rermuneration for M W Selwey who was appointsd Cheef Executive on 1 Jamsary 2014,

Executive remuneration received in respect of 2016

Baso salary

Salarnies effective January 2016 were agreed taking into account
a range of factors including the prevalling economic conditions,
the financial performance of the Group and salary increases

for other employees. The average increase for employees

was 2.7%, compared to 2.1% for the executive directors.

M W Selway's, R M Twite's and D J Shock’s salaries were
increased by 1.9%, 2.0%, and 2.5% to £785,000, £454,000
and £410,000 respectively.

Pension

Executive directors are entitied to receive a taxable cash
allowance instead of pension benefits. With the Committee's
approval the executive directors may, at their discretion,
radirect part or all of their altowance into any defined
contribution pension arrangement in the country in which they
are contracted. M W Selway receives a cash allowance of 30%
of salary and D J Shook receives a cash allowance of 20% of
salary. R M Twite receives a cash allowance of 35% of salary
as a legacy obligation from his appointment as an executive
director which continues to be honoured.

Pension benefits for past service

R M Twite was previously an active member of the defined
benefit IMI Pension Fund. He opted out with effect from

1 February 2007, before he became an executive director
and as a result, he retains past pensionable service up

to that date in the IMI 2014 Deferred Fund ('the Fund’).

The key elements of the benefits in the Fund ars

summarised below:

« the normal retirerent age under the Fund is 62 and
A M Twite may retire from employment with IMI any
time after age 60 without actuarial discount;

» on death after retirement, a dependant’s pension is
provided aqual 1o 50% of the member's pansion;

 should he die within the first five years of retirerment,
the dependant’s pension is increased 1o 100% of the
mamber's pension for the remainder of the five year period; and

» pensions in payrnent, in excess of any guaranteed minimurm
pension, are increased each year in line with price inflation
up to a maximum of 5% in respect of pension buttt up before
1 January 2006, and 2.5% in respect of pension built up
after 1 January 2006.

Accrued penaion Accrued pension

in the Fund as at in the Fund as st

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

B000pa £000pa

R M Twite 70 68
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Benefits Annual incentive bonus

During the year the executive directors received a number of The 2016 bonus plan focused on the financial performance of
benefits. Thase are summarised below and amounts less than IMI during the year, considering Group profit before tax {40%),

£10,000 p.a. are combined. organic revenue growth (20%), cash conversion (20%) and
strategic and personal objectives (20%). Health and safety —
MW Saheay A M Twvits D J Shook will serve as an underpin to ensume bohuses are only paid
e 05 26 206 2ms_zms  Out when minimum standards are achieved.
Nor~cash benefits (£000) 2016 was a challenging year for IM) with difficult economic and &
o ) ; 2 2 s » markset conditions contributing to weaker than targeted financial
results when compared to 2015: o
Cash Denefits and taxable allowances {£000) = Group profit before tax decrsased to £208m in 2018 from
Company 20 20 1 7 14 1 £218m in 2015, representing a 5% decreass;
oy and fuel « Group revenue decreased by 5% on an organic basis
compared to 2015;
; i _ . . ™ _ e cash conversion was 95%, compared with 97% in 2015;
Other *‘ » : . 5 * e the total dividend for the year increased by 1% compared
Total 42 50 19 19 “ 100 1o 2015; and
= strong performanca for health and safety with leading
In addition to the above benefits and allowances that are measures showing benefits from lean and HSE integration
induded in the single figure {refer 1o table on page 62), In the year.

the executive directors are also beneficiaries of cornpany policies
that have no taxable value, including directors’ and officers’
insurance, death in service cover, travel insurance, the use

of a company driver and personal actident cover.

Summarised in the table below is the achievement against Group targets set at the beginning of the year alongside the resulting
contribution to bonus payout.

Annual bonus metrics' 2018 Actual Payout as a Weightingas a Contribution 3‘
performance performance® percentage of percenitage of total topayout as a ]
required maximum bonus opportunity percentage of g.
maximum bonus =
opportunity
Group profit before tax ~ Threshold £172.5m £180.4m 16% 40% 6%
Targel £197.2m
Maxdmum £216.9m
Group organic Theashoid £1,454m £1,486m 9% 20% 8%
revenue grow! Target £1,494m
Mavimum £1,534m
Group cash conversion  Thrashold 76.0% 95% 82% 20% 18% -
{FY figures shown) Torget 20.0%
Maxdmum 98.0%

' R M Twite's annual borus opportunity is dependant on a combination of Group (35%) and Critical Enginearing (45%) financlal objectives in ina with his role's
responsibiities. The Cormmittee balleves thet the dvisional targets are commercially sensitive and these ans therefore not disciosad In the table above.

T Actudl performance s siated et the exchange rates used in the largess.
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In addition, each executive director has a numbaer of personal objectives agreed with the individual during the first quarter of

the financial year, and which pertain to areas directly within their rerit. The Committee seeks to set personal objectives that are
demanding and measurable, and in all cases they are subject to a robust and rigorous validation exercise at both the half and

full year which take into account multiple points of reference. These personalobgechves and the Committee’s assessment of

each executive director’s performance against them is described below.

Individual performance metrics 20148 performance required Payout as a Weighting as  Contribution to payout
percentage of a percantage 8% a percentags of

maximum of total bonus . maximum bonus

opporiunity opportunity

Individual performance cbjectives MW Selway: 88.2% 20.0% 17.8%

are robustly set and are customised  Opjectivas incluced areas such as organisation,
for each individual. All ebjectives strategy, fnancial integrity and sm;?: projects.
are measurable and are objectively

oo o e o mor o
key performance Indicators. Objectives included areas such as diversity,

strategy, core process and specific projects.

D J Shook: - B6.O% 20.0% 17.2%

Objactives included areas such as strengthening
nvestor/analyst relationships, financlal process
improverments, sirategy and specific information
technology projects.

In aggregate this resulted in the following annual incentive bonus outcomes:

2016 maximum Total bonus Tota! bonus Achisvement of share Bonus dellvered Bonus dellvered

bonus cpportunity awarded {£000) awarded ownership guidelines n form of cash in form of shares

(% of salary) (% of salary) at 31 Dec 2018" {ROOD} {£000)

M W Ssiway 200% 781 100 21% 390 as
A M Twite 150% 3 . 69 141% an

D J Shook 125% 252 (3] 16% 126 126

! Executive directors ane subject to guidelines which require them to build a shaneholding in iVl worth at least 250% of salary loc MW Selway, 150% of salary for D J Shook and
200% of zalary for R M Twite. When assassing compliance with this guideline the Committee revews both the level of beneficial share ownership and vested but unoxercised
share incentive awands on a post-tax basis. Athough M W Selway and T J Shook continue to make progress towards this grideline, and have a material interest In the
Company's shares (83 can be noted in the table on page 70), 38 a consequence of awards nat having vested the Commities has determinad that hall of the annual borus
payable to M W Selway and D J Shook shal be defivered in shares which must be held for a period of ai least three years ari uniil the sharehoiding guideline has been met.

Share interests granted to executive directors during 2016 (audited)

Grants made under the IMI Incentive Pian ("fiP’) The following grants were approved and made in 2016;
Grants under the IIP were made on 8 March 2016 in the form
of nil-cost options. Awards are due to vest on 9 March 2019, WP shares  Vaius on date of Awardasa -
subject to performance in thres core areas aligned 1o our awarded ";o';’,, per °°‘"i§fa':
longer-term strategic pricrities: return on capital employed MW Selway 215,007 1962 250%
(25%), relative Total Shareholder Return (25%) and Group ! .
profit before tax growth (50%). R M Twite 98,553 908 200%
The performance targsts that apply o the 2016 iP awards are D J Shaok el bl 150%
as follows: * The thvee day average mid-market price on the date of award was 921,33 pence.
ROCE Relative  Group profit Lavel of
TSR before tax vestng  “The IIP is also used to grant deferred bonus awards exercisable
growth after three years 1o satisfy annual bonuses delivered in the form
Threshoid 40% Median 25% 2% of shares. Details of these additional IIP awards made in 2016
Maximum 50% Upper 7.5% 100% are shown in the table on page 70 under the ‘without
Quarthe performance conditions’ colurmn.

Waighting 26% 25% 50%
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Awards vesting under liegacy share plans

The Share Matching Plan ('SMP’) - the last grant made under
this plan was in 2014 and it wilf vest in April 2017. :

M W Selway and R M Twite received an award under the SMP
in April 2014.

Vesting was subject to the achievament of an Economic Value
Added ('EVA’) performance condition, measured over the three
years ending 31 December 2016. The calculation of EVA is
based on segmental operating profit after tax with appropriate

adjustments, less a capital charge on the invested capital
in the business reflacting IMI's cost of capital.

The performance measure considered compound annual

" growth in EVA over the three financial years from 2014 to

2016 compared to EVA in the preceding three financial years.
Awards lapse for negative compound growth. However,

for positive growth between 0% and 6%, 10% to 25% of
matching shares vest; and for growth betwean 6% and 17%,
25% to 100% of matching shares vest. Within each rangs,
vesting is calculated on a straight-line basis.

Over the period IMI delivered compound annual EVA growth of -5.6% based on three-year EVA from 2014 to 2016 of £479.7m
compared 1o three-year EVA from 2011 to 2013 of £570.3m. The rasultant vesting outcome in April 2017 is nil:

Shares Initid  Value on date Number of Additional Total matching  Value of matching
invested by the . matching of award' matching shares dividend shares vesting  shares on vesting?
executive award (£000) vesting equivatent {£000)
shares
M W Salway 8,528 26,148 390 -
A M Twite 17,356 85,494 a76 - -

1 The mid-market price on the data of award was 1,400.00 pence.

* Awards will lapse in full on 1 April 2017 as a result of the EVA performance threshold not heving been met.

The Performarnce Share Plan ('PSF) - the last grant made
under this plan was in 2014 and will vest in March 2017.

In March 2014, awards were made to M W Selwey and R M
Twite with vesting of the awards subject to the achievement
of three independent performance conditions: EPS growth
(50%), relative TSR {(25%) and organic revenue growth
(2596}, measured over the three-year period ending

31 December 2016,

On appointment (1 October 2013) M W Selway was made
an award under the PSP worth 200% of salary subject to
four independent performance conditions: TSR (20%)
measured over the period 1 October 2013 to 30 September
2016, organic revenue growth (20%), EVA (20%) and EPS
(40%) each measured over the period 1 January 2013 1o

31 December 2015. The award vested in October 2016.

= EPS growth
Under the PSP, EPS is defined as adjusted basic earmnings
per shana before the post-tax impact of any reported
exceptional items, which may include impairment losses,
profit/ loss on disposal of a subsidiary, rationalisation costs,
acquired intangible amortisation and IAS 39 charges or
credits for changes in the fair value of financial instruments.
EPS was chosen as an appropriate measure becausa it
rewards absolute growth in undertying eamings and because
the Committee believed it worked well in combination with
TSR which is an external, relative measure of performance.

Growth of 6% per annum would trigger the minimurn level of
vesting (26% of the EPS element), increasing on a straight-
line basis such that the EPS elernent of the awards were
eligible to vest in full for EPS growth of 15% per annum,
Over the three year period ending 31 Decamber 2016 IMI
delivered EPS growth of -10.9% per annum, decreasing
EPS from 72.6 pence in 2013 to a comparable 51.4 pence -
at the end of 20163. Qver the three year period ending 31
Decermber 2015 IMI delivered EPS growth of -5.7% per
annum, decreasing EPS from 64.7 pencain 20124 to a
comparable 54.2 pence at the end of 2015%,

3 Adjusted for 2014 shara consolidation and the acquisition of Bopp & Reuther.
* Adjusted for 1AS 19.

* Relative TSR

TSR is defined as the movement in share price during

the performance period, measured in local currency, with
adjustments to take account of changes In capital structure
and dividends, which are assumed to be reinvested in shares
on the ex-dividend date. TSR was chosen as a measure as it
is an external, relative benchmark for performance that aligns
executives' rewards with the creation of shareholder value.

The October 2013 and March 2014 peer groups sach
comprised of the companies shown on page 68, adjusted
to take account of merger and acquisition activity during
the perforrnance period in line with the Cormmittes’s
established guidelines.
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At the end of the three-year performance periods ending
30 September 2016 and 31 December 2016, the Company
ranked 34 and 35 respectively in the peer groups. The
Committeg was in agreement that the outcomss under

the TSR measure was reflactive of the general underiying
financial performance of the Company. '

= Organic revenue growth
Organic growth is calculated as an average annual growth
rate, 10 encourage continued focus on organic growth.
Revenue is defined as segmental revenues before exceptional
items adjusted, at the Committee’s discretion, to exclude the
impact of material acquisitions and disposals by the Company
compieted during the performance period and to remove the
impact of exchange rate movements.

Onganic revenue growth of 2.7% per annum would trigger the
minimum leve! of vesting (25% of the crganic revenue element)
increasing on & straight-line basis such that this element of
the awarnds were eligibla to vest in full for growth of 8% per
annum. Over the three year period ending 31 December 2016
iMi delivered growth of -2.5%. Over the three ysar period
ending 31 December 2015 IMI delivered growth of -0.7%.

* Economic Value Added ('EVAY)
Vesting in respect of the 2013 PSP award made to
M W Selway was subject to the achievernent of an EVA

condition, measured over the thres years

ending 31 December 2015. The calculation of EVA is based
on segmental operating profit after tax with appropriate
adjustments, lsss a capital charge on the invested capital in
the business reflacting IMI's cost of capital. The performance
measure considered compound annual growth in EVA over the
three financial years from 2013 to 2015 compared to EVAin
the preceding three financial years. Awards lapse for negative
compound growth, However, for positive growth between 0%
and 6%, 10% 1o 25% of shares vest; and for growth betwesn

UK us

BBA Aviation Bargwamaer
Bodycote Eaton

Cobham Emaerson Electric
GKN Flowserve Com
Halma Honeywel
Johneon Matthey IDEX

Maggitt ingersoll-Rand
Rotork linols Tool Works
Spectris Johnson Controls'
Spirax-Sarco Engineering Maniowoc
Vesuvius Parkar-Hanntfin
Weir Group Pentair

Japan Continental Eurcpe
Amada Adlas Copco
Fanuc Heidelbeng Druckmaschinen
NSK Wetso Corporation
SMC Sancvik

THK SKFB

Yaskawa Electric Sulzer AG

' Johnaon Controls acquired Tyco intemnational in September 2018,

6% and 17%, 25% to 100% of the shares vest. Within

each range, vesting is calculated on a straight-line basis.

As disdlosed in last year's report, over the period ending 31
Decermber 2015, IMI delivered compound annual EVA growth of
2.9% hased on three-year EVA from 2013 to 2015 of £657.4m
compared to three-year EVA from 2010 to 2012 of £511.5m.

The 2013 PSP award in respect of M W Selway will vest only in relation to the EVA target having been met to an extent and
consequently will vest at 3.46%. The 2014 PSP award in respect of M W Setway and R M Twite will lapse in full as a result of the

perfoormance thresholds not being met.
Inltial award Value on dats of Number of Additional dividend Total shares Value of shares on
awand? shares vesting squivalent shares vesting vesting
(£000) (£000)
M W Selway 98,792 1,500 3,418 339 3,757 a8
2013
M W Selway 75,050 1,114 .
2004°
R M Twite 29,300 430 B -
20n4

T The thrme day average rnid-market price on the date of the 2013 and 2014 awards was 1,518.33 pance and 1,467.00 pence respectively.
1 Awards will lapsa in full on 11 March 2017 as a result of the performance thresholds not having been met.




Annual Report and Accounts 2016

All-ermployes share plans

Executive directors are eligible to participate in the all-employee share plans on the same terms as other eligible employees at IMI.
In 2016, M W Selway, R M Twite and D J Shook received free share awards under the All Employee Share Ownership Plan.
D J Shook received Save As You Earn awards in 2016 of 2,129 shares.

All Employes Share Ownership Pian SAYE
Divid Total value under
Number of shares Value of free Numnbar of opticns Value of SAVE ends the all-employee
awarded share award" swarded . options? (E000)  chare plans (£000)
(£000) {£000)
2016 363 4 - 4
M W Selway
2015 289 4 B3B8 1 5
2018 3683 4 - - 4
A M Twite
: 2018 289 4 - - 4-
2016 242 2 2,129 2 4
D J Shook

1 In 2016 free shares ware awarded at a share price of 980.71 pence (1,245.00 penca in 2015).
2 In 2016 SAYE awards wera made at a 10% discount and the vakue shown is thé intrinsic gain at the date of tha grant, calculated in accordance with the

single figura requirements {on page 62). Sea Section 4.7.1 on page 122.

Diviclend payments

Under the SMP and PSP, dividend equivalent payments are
made on vested but unexercised share awards, which take the
form of nil-cost options. Dividend equivalents, while notionally
tracked by IMI from grant to exercise, are not paid or transferred
to the participant until the point of exercise. These have been
included in the single figure (the table on page 62) based on
the number of dividend equivalents notionally accrued in the
financial year, valued at the price on the dividend payment date.
Any residual cash is rolled over and applied to the subsequent
dividend equivalent purchase.

Payments to past directors (audited)

it is the Committee's intention to disclose any payments to past
directors, including the vesting of share-based awards post
departure on a basis consistent with the executive directors.

As all of the subsisting SMP and PSP awards made to D M Hurt
in 2014 {who natired from the Board on 7 May 2015} have kapsed
in full due to the minimum performance thresholds outlined
above not being met, there were no payments to past directors .
during the year. .

Dividend equivalent payments for vested but unexercised
nil-cost option awards will continue to be made to past
directors under the terms of the oniginal grant.
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e R
Chairman’s and non-executive directors’ single figure table (audited)

The following table summarises the total fees and benefits paid to the Chairman and non-executive dreclors in respect of the
financial years ending 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Director . 2016 (£000) 2015 (£000)

Base faes Aditional fees Total Base fees Additional fegs Total
Lord Smith of Kelvin 306 - 306 185 - 186
C-P Forster 61 L} 60 60
B Nemaard 61 - 81 80 - 80
R J Stack 61 28 87 60 2 82
R Mcinnes 61 16 Tr 60 15 %
| Sharp a1 - 81 20 - 20

! Joinad the IM) Board in 2015 and became the Cheimnan at the 2015 AGM. Annualised fee for tha Chalman in 2015 was £300,000.
2Inchudes fees for being Chakman of the Remuneration Committes and Senior Independent Director,

3Inghudes fees for being Chalman of the Audit Committas.

4 Joined the IMI Board on 1 Septembar 2015 and is a member of the Audit Committes.

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited)

The following table summarises the share interests of any director who served during the year as at 31 December 2016 or at the date
of retirement from the Board.

Duwring the period 31 December 2016 to 23 February 2017 there were no changes in the interests of any current director from those
shown save for purchases within the IMI All Employee Share Ownership Plan on 10 January 2017 of 12 shares on behalf of MW
Salway, R M Twite and D J Shook at 1,067p per share and 14 February 2017 of 10 shares on behalf of each of M W Selway,

R M Twite and D J Shook at 1,216.75p per share.

Director Total EBenaficial Scheme interests
interests interests Nil-cost options All-employes
With performance conditions Without performance conditions share plans
Unvested Vested but Unvested Vested but
unaxercised unexercised
M W Selway 567,785 9,335 496,087 3.757 57.457 . 1.149
A M Twite 408,825 120,354 281,751 - - - 8,820
D J Shook 135,426 4,000 120,014 - 10,814 - 498
Lord Smith of Kelvin 8,300 8,300 - - - - -
C-P Forster 2,825 2,825 - - - . -
B Nargaard 26825 2.825 - - - . -
R J Stack 13,125 13,125 - - - - -
R Mcinnes 3,000 3,000 - - - - -
| Sharp 3,000 3,000 . . - - -

From 2015, the Committee requires M W Seiway to build up a shareholding of at least 250% of salary, 200% of salary in the case
of R M Twite and 150% of salary for D J Shook, to mimor the IMI Incentive Plan award. At the end of the year R M Twite significantly
exceeded the share ownership guideline.
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Application of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy in 2017

Service contracts

The unexpired terms of the non-executive directors’

senvice cantracts can be reviewed in the Board's Corporate
Governance Report on page 49.

Executive director fixed pay )
Salaries effective January 2017 were agreed taking into
account a range of factors including the prevailing economic
conditions, the financia performance of the Group and salary
increases for other employees.

The average increase for employees was 2.6%, compared
10 2.0% for the executive directors. M W Selway's, R M
Twite’s and D J Shook's salaries were all increased by 2% to
£801,000, £463,000 and £418,000 respectively,

Other alements of fixed pay {benefits and pension) will remain
unchanged.

incentive pay
Annual bonus

In accordance with the approved remuneration policy, the

annual bonus plan will be operated as follows in 2017:

¢ as in 2016, the 2017 maximum bonus opportunity is set
at 200% of salary for M W Selway, 150% for R M Twite
and 125% for D J Shook;

* as in 2016, the annual bonus for M W Selway and D J Shook
will be subject to performance in Group profit before tax
(40%), organic revenue (20%), cash conversion (20%) and -
strategic and personal objectives (20%). Health and safety
will sarve as an underpin to ensure bonuses are
only paid out when minimum standards are achieved;

* as in 2016, the annual bonus for R M Twite in 2017 will
be subject to performance in Group profit before tax
{35%), Critical Engineering operating profit (15%}, Critical
Engineering organic revenue (159%), Critical Engineering
cash conversion (15%) and strategic and personal
objectives (20%); and

* the Committee has determined that the targets
associated with the performance measures will be disclosed
retrospectively on the sama basis and to the same extent
as for 2016 targets (see annual bonus metrics tabie on

page 65).

IM! Incentive Plan ('IF'")
In accordance with the approved remuneration policy,
the IIP will be operated as follows in 2017:

* 2017 awards are set at 250% of salary for M W Selway,
200% for R M Twite and 150% for D J Shook; and

= awards will vest subject to performance in three core areas
aligned 1o our longer-term strategic prionties: returmn on
capital employed (25%), relative Total Shareholder Retum
{25%) and Group profit before tax growth (50%).

The parformance targsts that will apply to the 2017 IP awards
are as follows:

ROCE Ralative  Group profit Levei of

TSR before tax vesting
growth
Threshold 40% Median 2.5% 25%
Maximim 50% Upper 7.5% 100%
quariile
Weighting 25% 25% 50% -

Fees for the Chairrnan and non-executiva directors

The Chairman and non-executive directors’ remuneration
increased by 2%, effective 1 January 2017, This Is in line with
the executive directors and the wider employee workiforce.

Share ownership for the Chairrman and non-executive directors
The Chairman and non-executive directors are encouraged to
hold some shares in IMI within a reasonabile period after their
appointment. As at 23 February 2017, the Chairman and
non-executive directors hold IMt shares as set out in the

table on page 70.

Bob Stack jﬂp%

Chairman of the Ramuneration Committee
for and on behalf of the Board

23 February 2017
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Financial statements
Finance Director’s Introduction

Introduction from Daniel Shook

Dear Shareholder

Welcome to the financial statements section of our Annual Report.

My financial review commentary is set out in this section alongside the primary statements. These financial statements are presented

with the primary statements first, followed by five sections: ‘Basis of preparation’, ‘Results for the year®, ‘Operating assets and

kabiities’, ‘Capital structure and financing costs’ and 'Other notes’.

I inues to enhance Its overall control environment and financial risk management. Operational improverments in the year have
i further working capital reductions and the Group's pension position remains strong despite adverse discount rate and

movergents during the year.

conditions remain challenging, IM! is strengthening its business foundations to enable us to benefit long-term.

el Shook
Finance Director
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Excsptional Exceptional
Reported ems Statutory Reportad ltermns Statusory
Notes £m £m m m tm £m
Revenue 2.1 1,649 8 1,657 1,857 10 1,567
Segmenial operaling profit 2.1 22717 221.7 239.4 239.4
Reversal of net economic hedge contract kosses 2.21 5.8 5.6 7.6 7.8
Restructuring costs 222 {3.5) (18.68} (22.3) 2.9 27.1) 29.2)
Gaing on special pension events 223 2.8 2.8 0.1 9.1
Impairment lossas 2.2.4 (5.0} {5.0) - -
Acquired intangible amortisation 2.24 {20.5) (20.5) _ {32.2) (32.2}
Loss on disposal of subsitiaries 225 - - 0.4} 8.4) (8.8}
Operating profit 224.2 {35.9) 180.3 2368.9 (51.0) 18590
Financial income 4.3 4.5 12.6 1719 3.2 20.9 24.1
Financial sxpense 43 {21.9) {19.4) {41.2), {21.6) (25.9) {47.5)
Net financial ncome relating to defined benefit pension schemes 4.5.3.3 1.1 1.1 0.2 0.2
Net financial expense (16.2) (8.8) {23.0} {18.2) (5.0) (23.2)
Profit before tax 208.0 {42.7) 1653 218.7 {56.0) 162.7
Taxation 2.4.5 {43.7 1186 {32.1} (48.1) 8.7 (39.4)
Profit from continuing operations after tax 164.3 {31.1) 133.2 170.6 (47.3) 123.3
Proftt from discontinued operations after tax 25 - . 6.7 8.7
Total profit for the year 164,32 {31.1) 133.2 1708 (40.8) 130.0
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 161.9 130.8 168.2 127.8
Ncm-oontrollng interasts 4.8 24 24 24 24
Proftt for the year 164.3 133.2 170.6 130.0
Eamings per share 23
Basic - from profit for the year 50.8p 48.3p 82.2p 47.2p
Dited - from profit for the year 594p 48.0p 681.7p 46.8p
Basic - from continuing operations §9.8p 48.3p 62.2p 44.7p
Dited - from continuing operations §9.4p 48.0p 61.7p 44.4p
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Commentary on the consolidated income statement

Results summary

Reporied revenus increased by 6% to £1,649m (2015: £1,557m). After
adjusting for a favourable exchange rate impact of £179m and the contribution
from acquisitions and disposals, organic revenus decreased by 5% rafiecting
difficult market conditions, particularly in Critical Engineering which continues
to be impacted by the low oif price.
Segmental operating profit of £228m {2015: £239m) fell by 5% on a reported
basis and by 17% a1 constant exchange rates and excluding acquisitions and
disposals. The segmental operating marngin was 13.8% (2015: 15.4%). Further
information on the each of the division'’s sagmenial rasults is includad within
the performance review section on pages 22 to 27. Statutory operating profit
was £188m (2015; £186m) after the daduction of exceptional items which
are discussed in mone detail below.

Repaorted net interest coets on net borrowings were £17m (2015: £18m),
reflacting the repayment of USE75m of borrowings in July 2018. These were
coverad 16 times (2015: 15 times) by continuing eamings befone Interest,
tax, depreciation, amortisation, impairment and exceptional kems of £273m
(2015: £275m). The net pansian financing income under IAS 18 was £1.1m
(2015: £0.2m).

Profit before taxation and exceptional items was £208m (2015: £219m),
a decrease on the pravious vear of 5%.

The effactive tax rate for the Group before exceptional items reduced to 21%
{2015: 22%). The total reported 1ax charge for the year on continuing operations
was £44m (2015: £48m) and continuing reportad profit after tax was £184m
(2015: £171m). The Group sseks 1o manage its tax afiairs within its cone tax
principies of compliance, faimess, value and transparency, in accordance with
the Group's Tax Policy which is explained further in Section 2.4,

Exceptions) items
Operating profit was £188m (2015: £186m) after the deduction of exceptional
tems which are discussad below:

Reversal of net economic hedge contract kosses

For segmental reporting purposes, changes in the fair value of economic
hacdgas which are not dasignated as hedges for accounting pumoses, fogether
with the gains and ‘osses on their settiements, are included in the segmental
ravenues and operating profit of the relevart business segment. The exceptional
ftern at the operating level reverses this ireatment and the loss of £6m (2015:
£8m) and records a charge within interest {see Section 2.2.1),

Restructuning costs

The restructuring costs treated as exceptional in 2016 of £18m (2015: £27m)
are as a result of & number of significant restructuring projects across the
{Sroup, In particular within Critical Enginsering and Precision Engineering.
This restructuring is explained in more detall in Section 2.2.2 on page 80.
Restructuring costs of £4m [2015; £2m) that arose from noimal recuming
©cost raduction axercises have not baen treated as exceptional,

Pensions

During 2018, following the conversion to a non-inflation finked pension for
certain members of our UK Funds, an excaptional net gain of £6.1m was
mafised. In addition, following further restructuring exercises in Switzerland,
a curtaitmer pain of £1.4m was recognised. These exceptional gaing wane
partialiy offset by an exceptional loss of £4.7m relating 1o the distribution of
pension assets to members from our previously overfundad Swiss schemes.

impaiment and acquired intangible amortisation

The Group recorded an exceplional impairment charge of £5m (2015: nilj
against the goodwill associated with the Stainkess Steel Fastenars ('SSF")
CGU in the M Critical Enginesring division. Acquired intangible amortisation
decreasad to £21rm (2015: £32m} foliwing the full amortisation in 2015 of
the order book acquired from Bopp & Reuther.

Loss on disposal of subsidianes

Thers were no disposals of subsidiaries during 2018,

Financing costs

A net charge arosa on the revaluation of financial instruments and derivatives
under 1AS 39 of £7m (2015: £5m) principaly reflecting movements in axchange
rates during the year on forward foreign exchange contracts.

Taxation
An excaptional tax credit of £12m (2015: £9m) arose in connection with
business rastructuring and other exceptional iterns.

Profit from continuing operations after tax and exceptional items
Proft after taxation and exceptional lems was £133m (2015: £123m).

performance of the Group is provided by reporiad esmings per share. Detalls
of this calculetion are given in Section 2.3 to the Group financial statements
on page 91. Reported EPS was 59.8p, a decrease of 4% on last year's 62.2p.
Statutory basic EPS was up 2% 10 48.3p (2015: 47.2p) and stetutory dikited
EPS was up 3% to 48.0p (2015: 46.8p).

Exchange rates

The most important foreign cumencias for the Group remain the euro and the
US doliar and the relevant average rates of exchange for the consolidated
income statemant were:

2018 2015
Euro 1.22 1.38
US doflsr 1.36 1.53

The movement in average exchange rates between 2015 and 2018 resulted in
our reportad 2016 revenue being 11% higher and segmental operating profit
being 13% highar as the average euro and US dollar rates against steriing
were 12% and 119% stronger, respactively.

it the exchange rates as at 6th February 2017 of US$1.25 and €1.18 were
projected for the full year and applied to our 2016 resdts, it is estimated that
reported revenue woukd hava been 6% higher and segmental operating profit
would have been approximately 7% higher.




Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2018 2015

Profit for the year

tems reclassified to profit and loss in the year

Foreign exchange loss reclassified to income statement on disposal of operations

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss

Change in fair value of effective net investment hedge derivatives

(2.8) m.o

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations net of hedge setttements and funding revaluations 9.4 29

Fair value loss on available for sale financial assets

Related tax effect on items that may subsequently be reclassified to profit and loss

0.6 (1.8)

37.2 (11.4)

teme that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit and toss

Re-measurement joss)/gain on defined benefit plans

78.2) 27.8

Related eation effect

153 (5.6

Taxation in refation to restructure of UK Pension Fund

Effact of taxation rate change on previously recognisad items

[Px) )

(85.4) 17.6

Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year, net of taxation

(28.2) 8.2

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of taxation

105.0 138.2

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent

102.6 135.8

Non-controfing imerests

24 2.4

Total comprahansive income for the year, net of taxation

105.0

Commentary on the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity

Movements in sharsholders' squity

Shaneholders’ equity at the end of 2016 was £543m {2015: £548m). Movements

in sharghoiders’ equity can be spiit into three categories:

« the profit for the year atiributable to the equity shareholders of £131m (2015:
£128m). This is discussad on the page opposite the income statement.

« gther comprehansive incoma movements in the year decreased shamsholders'
equity by £28m (2015: £8m increase). Thase are discussed below.

* movaments taken directly to equity in the year reduced shareholders’ equity
by £106m {2015: £88m). These are discussed overieaf.,

Other comprehensive income

When tha Group makes unrealised gans or l0sses on agsats and labilties,
instead of being recorded in the income stetemnent, they are credited or
charged to resarves and recorded in the staterment of comprehensive incoma.
In gocordance with the amendment o IAS 1, thesa items are allocated between
those items that have been reclassified to the incomae statement, thosa that
may be reclassified to the income statement and those items that will not
subsequently ba reclassified to the income statement.

Any net investment hedge darivatives which have not setiled by the year-end
are marked to market on the balance sheet at the year-end and the movements
ara recorded in the hedging resarve. This movement is also included in other
comprehansive income and in 2016, amounted 10 a loss of £2m (2015: £10m
loss) inchuding the related taxation effect.

The Group's fonsign denominated net assets ane translated inlo stering using
exchange rates pravailing at the year-end. To the extent that these differ from the
rates used at the previous year-end 1o transiate net assets at that date and from
the average exchange rate used to transiate foreign denominated income during
the year, a difference on reserves arises, which is includad in other comprehensive
income, along with the settiement of net Investment hedge dervatives and
revaluations of foreign dabt, which are used to pratect the Group from this
exposure. Thesa itams (including the related taxation effect) amounted to a
gain of £39m in 2016 {2015: loss of nil).

Movements in avaitable-for-sale assets, which are principally used to fund defined
baenefit obiigations in the US, are also recordad in other comprehensive inoome and
amountad 1o a gain of nil (2015: loss of £1m) including the related taxation effect.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equlty
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Share Capitel Totat Non-
Share premium  redernption Hedging  Transiation Retained parant  controling Tola
capitsl account resone raserve reserve eemings equity inerests equlty
£m £m fm £m £m £m £m m m
As at 1 January 2015 81.7 10.8 174.4 10.7 {0.4) 2321 509.3 448 554.1
Profit for the ysar 127.6 1276 24 1300
Other comprenensive income/{expense) (10.1) 1.8 18.5 8.2 8.2
Total comprehensive incomasexpense) {10.1) 1.8 144.1 135.8 24 138.2
Issua of share capital 01 10 1.4 1.1
Dividends paid (102.5) {102.5) - '(102.5)
Share-based payments (net of tax) 0.1 0.1 0.1
Shares issued by:
arnployee share schems trust 2.3 23 23
Income eamed by partnarship (4.4 {4.4)
As at 31 December 2015 81.8 118 174.4 0.6 1.4 2761 548.1 428 588.9
Changes in equity in 2016
Profit for the year 130.8 130.8 2.4 133.2
Other comprehensive income/(sxpense} {2.2) 394 (85.4} (28.2) - (28.2)
Total comprehensive income/{expense) {2.2) 304 654 102.6 24 105.0
Iasue of share capital - 0.3 0.3 0.3
Dividends paid (104.2) ($04.2) {0.8) (105.0)
Share-based payments (net of tax) 5.8 5.8 58
Shares acquired for: .
employse share scheme frust {7.4) {7.4) {7.4)
Income eamed by partnership : - 4.4) (4.4)
As at 31 December 2018 81.8 121 1744 (1.6) 40.8 235.7 5432 40.0 583.2

Actuarial movements in the Group's defined benefit pension obligations are also
recorded in other comprehensive income. The Group completed a bulk insurance
buy-in exercise in relation 10 certain members of the UK Funds during the year
and the difference betwsen the valua of the hiabilities insured and the cost of the
premium 1o insure them has been recognised in other comprehensive income.
These movements ara sxplained in detell in Section 4.5 on page 114. Together
with the taation effact, the loss in the year was £83m (2015: £22m gain).

Hemsa recognised directly in equity

Movernents in reserves which represent transactions with the shargholders of
the Group are recogrised directly in equity rather than in the income statement
or through other comprehensive income.,

0.1m (2015: 0.2m) shaves were issued during the vee, reaksing £0.3m (2015:
£1.0m) in the share capital and shars premium account.

The 2015 final dividend of 24.5p per share and the 2016 interim dividend of 14.0p
per share were paid during 1he year (2015: 2014 final dvidend of 24.0p and 2015
intevim dividend of 13.8p), which reduced equity by £104m (2015: £103m).

The crecit for share-based payments, which reverses the £6m (2015: £1m)
cherged through the incorne stetement in the year, thereby defemng the reduction
in resarves unti such time as the options are exercised, is also recognised here,
together with the revarsal of the associated nil tax credit (2015: £1m).

The charge to leserves relating 1o the purchase of shares by the employes trust to
satisfy share options, net of amounts recaived from empioyess represanting the
price on exarciss for those options was £7m {2015; £2m cradit), refer to Section
4.8 for more information.
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 December 2016

2018 2015

Notes £m fm
Assets
Intangible assels 32 5212 457.2
Property, plant and equiprnent . 33 266.2 230.8
Empiloyee benefit assets . 4.5 57.8 as.7
Defarred lax assets 247 228 19.8
Other recelvables - 57 4.6
Total non-curvent assets 873.7 801.1
Inventories. 311 255.2 233.3
Trade and other recelvables 342 400.5 351.4
Other current financial agsets 446 29 28
Current tax 71 104
Irvestments 4.4.6 0.9 27.0
Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 79.7 114.2
Totel current assets 775.3 738.1
Total assats 1,649.0 1,540.2
Liabilitiss
Bank overdraft [X] (12.2) {6.4)
interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4.2 (6.8) 54.1)
Provisions 36 19.9) {25.1)
Current tax 62.8) {44.6)
Trade and cther payabias 3.1.3 {407.9) (342.1
Other curront financial kabiities 4.46 {13.5) {6.9)
Total current liabilities (523.1) {481.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 42 (343.3)' (200.6)
Empioyes benefit obigations 45 (137.8)] {84.3)
Provisions 36 [19.1)] {17.5)
Deferred tax kabikties . 24.7 32.0)] {(53.5)
Other payables . {10.7) (24.2)
Total non-curent labilities (542.7) {470.1)
Yotal liabilities (1,065.8) {851.3)
Net assots 583.2 588.9
Equity
Share capital 4.6.1 s 81.8
Share premium 121 1.8
Other reserves 213.6 176.4
Retained samings 235.7 276.1
Equity attributable to owners of the parent ’ 543.2 546.1
Non-controffing interests 4.8 40.0 42.8
Total equity 583.2 S88.9

Approved by the Boerd of Directors on 23 February 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman
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Commentary on the consolidated balance sheet

Net debt

Net dabt at the year-end was £283m companed to £237m at the end of the
previous yeer, largely reflecting the impact of sterfing depraciation on the Group's
euro and US doltar denominated dabi. The net debt is composed of a cash
balance of ©80m (2015: £114m), a bank overdraft of £12m (2015: £6m) and
Interest-bearing loans and borowings of £350m (2015: £346m),

The year-end net debt to EBITDA ratio was 1.0 times (2015: 0.8 times) based on
continuing EBMTDA before exceptional iteme. Foliowing the repayment of US$75m
thering the year, at the end of 2016 the loan notes totaled £343m (2015: £341m),
with a weighted average maiurity of 4.3 years (2015: 4.6 years) and other Icans
inclucing bank overdrafts totelled £20m (2015: £10m). Total commitied bank loan
faciities available to the Group at the year-end were £301m (2015: £294m),

of which Enil {2015; £nil) was drawn.

intangible assets

The value of the Group's intangible assets increasad 1o £521m at 31 December
2018 (2015; £457m) This increase was due 0 exchange gains of £75m (2015:
£9m loss) and additions 1o intengible assets of £24m (2015: £20m), partially ofiset
by the amortisation charge for the year of £20m 2015; £38m) and impairment of
£6m (2015: Eni).

Property, plant and aquipment ('PPE")

The net book value of the Group's PPE at 31 December 2016 was £268m (2015:
£231m). Capital expenditue on PPE amounted to £47m (2015: E51m), with
significant capital expenditure on axpanding our existing manufacturing faciities
in Geemnany and China within IMI Critical Enginearing and a revamped factory
layout which promotes operational excellence in the Czech Republic in Precision
Engineering. Including capitalised intangible assets, total capital expenditure wes
£71m (2015: £71m) and was 1.5 timas (2015: 1.9 tmes) tha depreciation and
amortisation charga {excluding acauined intangible amortisation) for the year of
£46m (2015: £38m).

Working capital

The increase in the Group’s trade and other receivabiles of £49m is due to foreign
exchange movernants of £56m, partially offset by favourable cash movements
of £7m.

The Group's inventory increased by £22m during the year due 1o foreign
exchange movernents of £40m, partialty offset by favourable cash movements
of E18m.

The Group's trade and other payables increased by E52m due to foreign
exchange movements of £47m and fevourable cash movements of £6m.

The working capital cash movements during the year ane discussed in more
datail in tha narmative opposite the consolidated cash flow statement.

Taxation

The current tax asset reduced to £7m (2015: £10m) as the Group ecoversd
tax prepayments from prior years. The cument tax kabilty increased by E17m to
£82m (2015: £45m) due 10 currency movemeants and limitations on UK double
tax relief 2gainst overseas tax labikties. Deferrad tax assats increased by £3m
to £23m (2015: £20m) and deferred tax iabiites decreased by £22m during
the year to £32m (2015: £54m). The significant moverments, nat of the effect of
foreign exchange moverments, relate to the defemed tax recognised in raspect
of the pangion funds, the effect of the amortisation of intangible assets and the
reduction of the provision for the tax effect of unremitted earnings of overseas
subsidlaries. Mora analysis of the defarmed tax movement in the vear is shown
in Section 2.4.7.

Pensions

The Group has 63 {2015: 63) defined benefit obligations in existence as at
31 Decembar 2016. The Group racognises there is a funding and investment
risk inharent within defined benefit arrangements and seeks to continue is
programme of closing overseas dafined benefit plans where possible and
providing in their place appropriate dafined contribution amangements.

Tha net deficit for defined benefit obligations at 31 December 2016 was £80m
{2015: £4m surplos). The UK funds surplus was £24m as at 31 Decermnber 2016
{2015: £89m) and constituted 88% (2015: BB%) of the total defined benefit
liakiltias and 94% (2015: 95%) of the tolal defined benefit assets. The meduction
in the UK surplus in 2016 principally arose from actuarial losses of £76m related
to movements in the discount rate and activitios during the year to further de-risk
the position.

The deficit in the overseas funds as at 31 December 2016 was £103m (2015:
£84m). The increase in the overseas deficit 15 predominantly as a result of adverse
exchange movements of £15m during the year,

Detalls of movemants in actuanal assumptions are discussed in Section 4.5,

Foreign exchange and interest rate risk

Further information on how the Group manages its exposure to these financial
risks is shown in Section 4.4 of the financial staterments on page 105. The most
important foreign curmancies for the Group remain the euro and the US dollar
and the retevant closing rates of exchange for the balsnce sheet were:

As at 31 December
2016 2015
Euro 1.17 1.36
LS doftar 1.23 1.47
Return on capital employed

Post tax retum on capital employed {'ROCE') from coniinuing operations weas
12.5% compared to 14.3% in 2015, Continued investment in the business

in the year and the underlying performance in 2016 has impacted the ROCE
metric alongside an adverse impact from the weakening in steriing.

Dividend .

The Board has recommanded a final dividend in respect of 2016 of 24.7p
(2015: 24.5p) per share, an increase of 1% over the 2015 final dividend.

This makes the total dividand for 2016 38.7p (2015: 38.4p). The cost of the
final dividend &= expected 1o be £67m (2015: £B8m), leading 1o a total dividend
cost of £105m (2015: £104m} in respect of the year ended 31 Decemnber 2016.
Dividend cover basect on reported earnings for the continuing businesses is
1.5 times (2015: 1.6 times). As detaled in ncle C9 of the Company financial
staternents on page 148, al of the retained eamings at both 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2015 are considered to be distributable reserves.

Whilst the Group does not have a formal dividend policy or payout matio, the
Groups aim is 1o continus with progressive dividends, which typically ncreass
at a steady rate for both the interim and final dividend paymaents, with an
alm that the dividend should, through the cycls, ba coverad by at least two
times reported eamings. In making its dividend recommendations, the Board
considers the levels of cash and debt within the Group, forecasted opereting
and capital cash fiow requirements and the availability of disiributable reserves.
The Board also monitors the Group's dividand cover based on reportaed
eamings for the continuing business. For more details refer to Section 4.4.4.4.

Share price and sharsholder return

Tha shana price st 31 December 2016 was £10.40 (2015: £8.62) and the
average for tha year was £9.80 (2015: £11.34) rapresenting an increase of 21%
and decrease of 15% respectively. Based on the 2016 averaga share price,
the proposad total dividend of 38.7p represents a yield of 4.0%.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
£m Bm
Cash fiows from operating activities
Opearsting proft for the year from continuing operations 188.3 185.9
Qperating profit for the year from discontinued operations - 0.9
Adjustmants for;
Depreciation and amortisation 66.3 70.4
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 8.0 6.9
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries . 8.8
___Gain on special pension evenis (2.8}, 8.4
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {1.6){ 8.9)
Equity-setiled share-based payment expense 58 1.1
Decrsasa/{increase) in inventories 175 3.5)
Decrease In trade and othar receivables 6.8 20.2
increase/idecrease) in trade and other payables 55 7.3
(Decrease)increass in provisions and employes benefits 8.6)| 5.6
Cash generated from the operations 285.2 282.0
Income taxes paid (31.7) (36.2)
Cash generated from the operations after tax 263.5 245.8
Additional persion scheme funding - UK and oversaas {1.9) {2.9)
Net cash from operating activities 251.8 2429
Cash flows from investing activities
Interast received 4.5 3.2
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6.8 120
Purchase of investmenis {0.4) 0.8)
Ssttlement of transactional derivatives {2.4) 5.0)
Settlement of curency dervatives hadging balance sheet {41.8) 29.0
Acquisitions of subsidlaries net of cash - {106.2)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and non-acquired intangiblas {70.8) {70.6)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiares net of cash - 0.8
Net cash from investing activities 104.2) (137.8}
Cash flows from financing activitiea
Interest paid (21.8) (21.6)
Payment {0 non-controling interest {4.4) 4.9
Sharss (acquired for)/issued by employee share scheme trust 74 23
Proceeds from the issue of share capital for employee share schemes 0.3 1.1
Net {reperyrnart)/drawdown of borowings 54.6) 107.9
Dividends paid to equity shareholders and non-controlling interest {105.0) {102.5)
Net cash from financing activities {192.9) 17.2)
Net (decreass)increasa in cash and cash equivalents {45.5) B87.9
Cash and cash equivalents et the start of the year 107.8 20.8
Effact of exchange raie fluctuations on cash held 5.2 {0.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 87.5 107.8

* Net of bank overdrafts of £12.2m (2015: £6.4m).

Notes 10 the cash fiow appear in Section 4.t.
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Commentary on the consolidated cash flow statement

2018 2015
Movemeant in net debt £m em
EBITDA* from continuing operations 273.0 2751
Working capital movements 29.8 18.4
Capital andi development expenditure {70.9) {70.6)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 0.4
Provisions and employea benefit movements™ {2.2) (4.1)
Other 18.2 13.0
Operating cash flow (pre-exceptional items)™ 245.9 232.2
Exceptional itemns™™ {25.2) 9.6)
Operating cash flow (post-exceptional items) 220.7 2226
Tax paid (3.7 36.9)
Interest and derivatives {61.5) 56
Cash generation 127.5 192.0
Additional pension schema funding {1.9) 2.9)
Free cash flow before corporate activity 1256 189.1
Acquisitions (before nst cash acquired) - (109.2)
Dividends paid 10 aquity shareholders and
non-controlling interest (105.0} {102.5)
Proceeds from ckeposal of subsidiaries - 1.4
Payment to non-controling interest {4.4) {4.4)
Net (purchase)issue of own shares {r.1) 34
Nat canh flow (excluding debt movaments) 9.1 22.2)
Opening net debt (236.9) (200.0)
Net cash disposed . {0.8)
Net debt acqusired - 5.6)
Foreign axchangs transiation {54.8)} 8.3)
Closing nat debt a2l (2369

* Reported eamings before interest (£16.2m), tax (£43.7m), depreciation
(£37.8m), amortisation (£8.0m) and impalrment (£3.0m).

* Movement in provisions arxd empkyse benefits as per the statement of
cash flows (£8.6m), adjusted for the decrease in exceptional restructuring
provisions {£3.1m) and the decrease in provisions relating to discontinued

** Operating cash flow (pre-exceptional items) is the cash generated from
the operations shown in the stiaternant of cash flows less cash spert
acquiring property, plant and equipment, non-acquired intangible assets
and investrents; plus cash received from the sale of property, plant and
sguipment and the sale of investments, after adjusting for the cash impact
of exceptional items. This measure best reflects tha undarlying operating
cash flows of the Group.

*+ Cash impact of excaptional Hems, inciuding an outflow refating 1o
restruciuring costs of £21.9m and a cash outilow of £3.3m in relation
to discontinued operations.

Reconciliation of EBITDA to movement in net dobt

The Group's consolidaled staterment of cash flows is shown on the opposite
page, which reconclles the operating profit for the yesr 1o the change in cash
and overdrafts in the balance sheet as required for financial reporting pumposes.

However, becaues the Group's debt financing also includes other interest-
bearing liabilities, it is movre insightful to consider the effect of the transactions
in the year on the net debt in the balance sheet. Accordingly, a reconcilistion
between EBITDA (pre-exceptional tems) and net debt is shown in the table to
the left, upon which this section provides commentary.
Operating cash flow

The operating cash flow (pre-exceptional items) was £246m (2015: £232m).
After the £25m (2015: £10m) cash outlow from exceptional items, the
operating cash flow [post-exceptional items) was £221m (2015: £223m).
This represents a conversion rate of total Group segmental operating profit
aftar restructuring costs into operating cash flow of 107% (2015: 106%).

Nat working capital balances decraasad by £30m (2015: £18m) during the year.
Inventory decreased by £18m (2015: €4m increase) due to decraases in invertory
within Critical Engineering and Precision Engineering. The Group's receivables
decreased by £7m (2015; £29m) as a result of both a reduction in revenue and
increased efiorts across the Group 10 improve the collection of receivables.
Payables increased by £6m {2015: £7m decraase) due to payment timing

and proactive suppher tarm management acress each of the divisions.

Cash spent on property, plant and equipment and other non-acquired
intangibles in the year was £71m {2015: £71m) which was equivalent to

1.5 times (2015: 1.9 times) depreciation and amortisation thereon. Continuing
ressarch and development spend including capitaiised intangible development
costs of £8m (2015: £5m) totated £57m (2015: £52m).

In 2016 the Group paid tax of £32m (2015:; £38m) which was 73% (2015: 75%)
of the reported tax charge for the year. This reflects tha timing of estimated tax
payments on account and is discussed in more detall in Section 2.4.

In 2016 there was a £62m cash outflow (2015: £6m inflow) from interest and
derivatives, including a £42m outfiow (2015: £29m inflow) from the settiament
of currency derivatives hedging the balance sheet.

After payment of interest and tax, lhefmeeashﬂwgeneraiedfromopemtbns
was £128m (2015: £102m).

Free cash fiow bafore corporate activity

As noted in Section 4.5, following the spacial pension svents in Switzerland,
£2m of additional pension contriibutions were made. Free cash flow before
corporate activity was £126m (2015: £189m).

Net cash outfiow faxcluding debt movements)

Dwidends paid to shareholders totalled £104m (2015: £103m) and thers was
a cash outfiow of £7m 2015: £3m inflow) for net share purchases to satisly
employee share options.

The tolal net cash inflow {excluding debt movements) was £9m (2015: outliow
of £22m).

Closing net debt

The opening net debt was £237m (2015: £200m). There were exchange rate
iosses of £55m (2015: £8m), principally on US dollar and euro denominated
bomowings. After the net cash inflow in the year of £9m {2015: £22m outflow),
closing net debt was £283m (2015: £237m).
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Section 1 - basis of preparation

1.1
introduction

M pic (the ‘Company’) is a company domiciled in the United Kingdom.

The consolidatad financial statements of the Company comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries {togethear referred 10 as the "Group’). The Company financial
statemants present information about the Company as a separate entity and
not about the Group. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in sccordance with intemnational Financial Reporting Standards as edopted by
the EU and applicable law (#RSs’). The Company has elected to prepare iis
Parent Company Financial Statements in accordance with FRS 101 and these
are presented on pages 144 to 148. The financial statements were approved
by the Board of Dirsctars on 23 Fabruary 2017,

1.2
Basis of accounting

The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterfing (which is the
Company's functional currency), rounded to the nearest hundred thousand,
except revenues, which are rounded to the nearest whole milon. They are
prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and
abiities are statect at their fair value: denvative fnancial instruments; avalable.
for-sale financial assats; financial assets and labiities identified as hadged
items; and assets and liabilities acquired through business combinations.
Non-current assets and liabilties held for sale are stated at the lower of
their carrying amounts and their fair values lass costs to sell,

The policies described in this section and in the accompanying sections have
been applied consistently throughout the Group for the purposes of these
consolidated financial statements except as discussed below. Reider to Section
5.4 for the Group's significant accounting policies.

i) New or amended EU Endorsed Accounting Standards adopted
by the Group during 2016

The following amended standards were adopted in these financial stalements
during 2016, none of which had any impact.

« [FRS 5 "Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’
# IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’

= IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statemnents’

* IFRS 12 'Disciosure of interests in Other Entities'

» I1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Fnancial Statements’

* JAS 16 ‘Properly, Plant and Equipment’

» 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’

= |AS 34 ‘interim Financial Reporting”

 |AS 38 ‘Intangibie Assels’

Hi) Issued Accounting Standards which are not sffoctive for the year
onded 31 Decomber 2016

The IASB and IFRIC have issued a number of new accounting standards and
amendments with an effective date after the date of these financial staternents.
* IFRS 9. Fnancial Instruments’ (2014)

A finalised version of IFRS 9 was Issued in July 2014, incorporaling
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, general hedge
accounting and da-recognition. The Group has complatad an initial Impact
assessment of IFAS 9 and noted that several of the Group's equity investments,
currently held at historic cost, will need to be recognised at fair value under
IFRS 9. In addition, the Group intends to reassass the effectiveness of its

cash flow hedging. The standard will be adopted from 1 January 2018,

* [FRS 15 ‘Revenus from Contracts with Customers' (2015}

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be appfied 1o

all contracts with customers. Guidance is providad on topics such as the paint
at which revenue is recognised, accounting for vanable consideration, costs of
fulfilling and obtaining a contract and various related matters. New disclosures
about revenud are also introduced. The Group has completed an assessment
of IFRS 15 and concludad that the adoption of this standzard on 1 January 2018
will not have a significant impact on the financial statements. In the vast majority
of cases, the contracts within the Group do not meet the ¢ritena under IFRS 15
for recognising revenue over 1ime and therefore we will continue 10 recognise
revenus at a point In time when contro! passes 1o the customer. Currently thers
are certain isolated contracts within IMI Critical Engineenng which would mest
the criteria for recognising revenue over time under IFRS 15 However, the
financial impact of changing the revenue recognition for these contracts is

not expected 1o be significant.

* IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ {2015)

IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognise assets and abiities for all lsases unless the lease term is 12 months
or less or the undarking asset has a low value. The Group has completed an
initial impact assessment of iFRS 16 and noted that & significant portion of
leases curently accounted for as operating isases {therefora off balance sheet)
would be recognised as assets with a corresponding liabdity under IFRS 16.
The standard will be adopted from 1 January 2019.
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Section 2 - results for the year

What you will find in this section

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the following pages you will find disclosures
explaining the Group's results for the year, including segmental information, exceptional items, taxation and earnings ' -
per share. You will also find a summary of the Group's alternative performance measures, including the definition of
each and the rationale for their use.

2.1
Segmental information

Organicravemegrowmandopéraﬂ'lgproﬂmﬂ\emm-termkeypenormmi'ldcatorsormeasuestmlmﬂectmewaythepeﬂormmotm'
Group is managed and monitored by the Exacutive Committee. In this saction the key constitueris of these two KPI's, being the Group's reported revenues
and segmental operating peofits, are analysed by reference to the performance and activities of the Group's segmants and their operating cosis.

211
Segmental information

Segmental information is presented in the consolidated financial statements for each of the Group's operating segments. The operating sagment reporting format
reflocts the Group’s management and internal reporting structures and represents the information that was presented to the chisf operating decision-maker,

being the Executive Committes. As described on papge 2, each of the Group's three divisions has a number of key brands across its main markets and operational
locations. For the purposes of reportable segmental information, operating segments are aggregated into the Group's three divisions, as the nature of the products,

production processes and types of customer are simiiar within each division. Inter-seoment revenue is insignificant.

IM] Critical Engineering
IM) Gritical Engineering Is & world-leading provider of critical flow contro) , Reqondiation to
solutions that enabie vital energy and process industries to operate safely, APM Definftion Hattory mensure
cleanly, refiably and more efficiently. Reported These measures all exclude Sea income
e 5 revenue axcepiional tems. statau;:lt on
IMI Precision Engineering speciakises in developing motion and fluid conirol Reparted profit peae
1echnologies for applications where precision, speed and relablity are essentias,  2efore fax
IMI Hydronic Enginooring Reporied sarnings
IMI Hydronic Engineering designs and manutactures technologles which deliver P o 2®
optimal and energy efficient heating and cooling systems to the residential and
commarcial bullding sectors. Reported These measures exclude See income
mental exceptionat lems, undertyi statement on

Pedormm Is measured based on reparted segmental operating profM which zg?arating profit mstmp::luﬁng costs andeuﬂzldrgrﬁ(ing 76 and sawn?lgle
is defined in the table opposite. and margin gains and losses on disposal of | reparting nota in
Businasses antar il forward cumency and metal contracts to provide econonmic subsidiaries. Section 2.1.1.
hedges against the impact on profiability of swings in rates and values in
accordance with tha Group's policy to minimise the risk of volatiity in revenues, Organic Movements are after adjusting for | See segmentat
costs and margins. Segmental operating profits are therelore charged/credited growth excaptional items and the impact | reporting note in
with the impact of these contracts. in accordance with IAS 39, these contracts do of acquisitions, disposals and Section 2.1.1.
not meet the requinements for hadge accounting and gains and losses are reversed movaments in exchange rates.
out of reported revenue and operaling profit and are recorded In net financial
income and for the ofthe I stetement. Oparating Operating cash flow is cash See cash flow
Altemative Porformance Measures cash flow generated from the operations as | commentary on
To facitale a more meaningful review of performance, certain alternative shown in the statement of cash | page 83.
performance measures (APMs') have been Included within this Annual Report. flows fess cash spent acquiring
Thase APMs are used by the Exscutive Committee to monitor and manage the BroOpery. Dt and eduipmant.
performance of the Group in order 1o ensure that decisions taken align with "ggi”q”;mer',:‘;‘_‘:?‘ o assats
its long-term interests. These APMs exclude exceptional and other lems in D tvoc) from the 52l of
order {0 best reflect the underlying performance of the Group. Movemenis in property, plant end eguipment
reported revenue and sagmental operating profit are givan on an organic basis and the sale of investmants,
(;ee deﬂnx opposite) ::ithat performance IsF;ot e&s&c:;ed by acquisitions, alter adjusting for the cash

sposals meverments in exchange rates, ernative performance i f ional lems.
measure, tha table opposite details the definition and a reference 1o where it pact of excsptional fiems
can be reconciled to the equivalant statutory measure.
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Section 2 - results for the year
(cont’d)

The foliowing table ilustrates how the results for the segrmems reconcile 1o the overall results reparted in the income statemant.

Revena Operating proft Operating margin
2018 2015 2016 2015 2018 2015
£m ©m m £m % %
Continuing operations :
IMI Critical Engineering 851 631 81.8 93.1 12.68% 14,8%
IM! Precision Engineering 708 662 118.5 117.7 16.7% 17.8%
IMI Hydronic Enginesring 280 264 51.9 518 17.9% 18.6%
Comorate costs {24.5) {23.2)
Total reported revenus/segmental operating profit and margin 1,649 1,557 227.7 2394 13.8% 15.4%
Restructuring costs {non-axceptional) {a.5) 2.1)
Loss on disposal of subsidianies (non-exceptional) - [0.4)
Total reported revenue/operating profit and margin 1,640 1,667 2242 2369 13.8% 15.2%
Reversal of net aconomic hadge contract losses 8 10 5.8 7.8
Restructuring costs (18.8) 27.1)
Gains on special pension events 28 8.1
impairrment losses (5.0) -
Acquired Intangible amortisation {20.5) {32.2)
Loss on disposal of subsidianes - (8.4)
Statutory revenue/operating profit 1,657 1,567 188.3 1859
Net financial expense (23.0) {23.2)
Statutory profit bafore tax from continuing operations 165.3 182.7

The following table fustrates how revenue and operating profit have been impacted by movements in foreign exchange, acquisitions and disposals.

Yaar anded 31 December 2015 Year ended 31 December 2018
Movernent
As in foreign As Reported Ovganic
reported axchange Dispossls Organic reported Organic  growth (%) growth (%)
Reported revenue
IMI Critical Engineering 631 77 5) 702 851 6851 3% 7%
IMI Pracision Engineering 662 72 1 733 708 708 7% -3%
IMI Hydronic Engineering 264 30 264 280 290 10% 1%
Total 1,557 179 - n 1,729 1,649 1,649 8% -5%
Segmental operating profit
IMt Critical Engineering 83.1 14.4 0.1 107.6 81.8 81.8 -12% -24%
IM| Precision Enginsering 117.7 126 1.1 1314 118.5 118.5 1% -10%
IMI Hydronic: Engineering 51.8 5.6 57.4 51.9 51.9 0% -10%
Comorate costs {23.2) (23.9) (24.5) (24.5)
Total 239.4 32.6 12 273.2 227.7 221.7 -5% 1%

Segmental operating profit margin (%} 15.4% 15.8% 132.8% 13.8%
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The following table ilustrates how the segmental assats and fabilities reconcile 10 the overall lotat assets and liabilities reportad in the balance shest.

Aseets Liabfities

2018 205 2018 2015

fm £m &m om

IMI Critical Engineering 752.6 682.1 230.9 196.9
IMI Precision Engineernng 482.0 419.2 103.2 90.7
IMI Hydronic Engineering 204.1 165.8 63.2 53.7
Total segmental assots/liabliities 1,438.7 1,266.8 397.3 313
Corporate items 15 2.1 55.8 615
Employea benefits 57.8 88.7 1371.6 - 84.3
Investments 269 270 - -
Nat debt iterns 70.7 114.2 382.3 351.1
Net taxation and others N4 343 1128 1131
Total assets and liabilities in Group balance sheet 1,845.0 1,540.2 1,065.8 951.3

The following table includas other information to show how certain costs are allocated between the sagments of the Group.

Restruchsing Cagitel
Losts” axpanditure Amortisation™ Depraciation

016 2015 2018 2015 18 2015 2006 2015
£m £m m o &m om £m &m
IMI Gritical Engineering 19.7 13.4 25.2 224 24.0 © 33.2 13.3 1.7
IMI Precision Engineering 26 13.6 274 30.4 25 3.0 18.7 14.1
iMI Hydronic Engineering - 2.2 17.5 7.2 18 1.3 7.2 6.3
22.3 20.2 701 70.0 28.1 315 37.2 321
Corporate costs - - 0.8 0.6 0.4 - 0.6 08
Total 223 20.2 708 70.8 28.5 ar.bs 37.8 329

* Restructunng costs include both exceptional and non-exceptional.
** The amartisation figures above include the amortisation of acquired intangibles. £198.9m (2015: £30.8m) is included In respect of Critical Engineering, £0.5m
(2015: £1.2m} is inciuded in respect of Precision Engineering and £0.1m (2015: £0.2m} s included in respect of Hydronic Engineering.
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Section 2 - results for the year
(cont’d)

The following table shows a geographical analysis of how the Group's revenue is derived by destination.

ans 2015
£m £m

UK 75 90
Gemany 240 219
{ther Westemn Europe 360 344
Western Europe 830 563
USA ) 327 311
Canada 17 23
North America 344 334
Emenrging Markets 520 505
Rest of World 80 85
Total reported revenue 1,649 1,557
Raversal of economic hedge contract losses 8 10
Total statutory revenue 1,657 1,567
Reported revenue by destination {2016} Reported revenue by destination (2015)
Rest cfthe UK  Rest ofthe UK
World 5% World 6%
5% 4%
Emerging : WestemEwope  Emerging Wastem Europe
Markets 38% Markets 36%
3% 32%
North Amesica North America
1% 22%
The folowing table shows a geographical analysis of the location of the Group's property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

2018 2015

£m £m

UK .7 7758
Germany 251.5 223.2
FRest of Erope 238.2 205.3
USA 152.1 1264
Asia Pacific 51.1 39.0
Rest of World 168 13.8
Total 767.4 658.0
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212
Operating costs by function

The following tablle is included to show how much of the operating costs
deducted from revenue to amive at the Group's post-exceptional operating
profit, relate 1o cost of sales, seling and distribution costs, administrative
expenses and exceptional items.

The aggregate gains made by directars on the exercise of share options was
£0.2m 2015: £2.9m}). The remuneration, as defined in the Companies Act 2006
Schedule 5, for the executive directors comprises fixed and annual variable

pay as set out in the tabia on page 62 of the Remunersation Report. For details
of the non-executive directors' remuneration please refer to page 70 of the
Remunaration Report.

2.1.3.2 Qperating leass charges and operating lease cammitments

The Group enters into leases for property, plant and equipment assets when
doing 0 represents a more cost-effective or lower risk option than purchasing

2018 2015 thern. This leacis to an income statement charge for the year and future
Em £m commitments for the Group in respact of these laases.
Reported revenue 1,649.0 1,557.0
Cost of sales (923.8)] {866.7) Conlinuing operating costs indude a charge of £14.7m {2015: £14.7m)
Segmental groas profit 725.2 I 890.3 relating to the lsase of properties and a charge of E?ﬁﬂ! (2015: £7.7m)
relating to the lease of plant and machinery. The continuing commitments
Selllnganddlslributloncosts {223.6) (199.9) In respect of non-cancellable operating leasas in place are shown in the
Loss on disposal - 0.4)
Restrucluring costs (3-5!| 2.1) 2016 2015
Reported operating profit 224.2 236.9 Land and Landand
Exceptional tems* (35. (51.0) bulkiings Others bidings Others
Statutory operating profit 188.3 185.9 £m £m £m o
. . . . Within one year 15.9 7.1 13.7 8.6
The excaptionsl cosls ere anelysad! in delal in Section 2.2. in he second to th year 303 100 B4 8.6
After five yaars 17.6 - 20.7 -
2.1.3 727 174 73.8 15.2

. Specific elements of operating costs

Certain spacific items of operating expenses are disclosed to provide the
reader of financial staterents with more information regarding these costs.
This section provides this analysis.

2.1.3.1 Employee information
The average number of peopte empicyed by the Group during the year was:

2016 2015
IMI Criticgl Engineering 3,838 4.238
IMI Precision Engineering e e e e, 284 5482
IMI Hydronic Engineering - __ _1843; 1862
Corporate B 18 131
Total Group 11,081 1,71

The aggregate smployment cost charged to operating profit for the year was:

2.1.3.3 Ressarch and development expenditure

The continuing cost of research and development expenditure charged directly
to the income statement was £48.4m (2015: £46.7m). In addktion, amortisation
of capialisad intangible developmeant costs amountad 1o £3.1m (2015: £2.6m)
and across the Group a further £8.1m (2015: £5.3m) was capitalised.

2.1.3.4 Exchanpe impact on operating activities net of
hedging arvangements

The transactiona! foreign exchange losses in the Group were £1.5m
(2015: losses of £1.3m).

2.1.3.5 Audiit Foen

The Group engages its auditor, EY, to perform assignments in addition 10 their
statutory audit duties where thelr expertise, experience and knowledge of the
Group should enable them to perform thase assignments more efficiently than
The Group's policy on such assignments Is set out in the Audit Committes
Report on page 56. Foes eamed by EY and its associetes during the year
are sst out below:

2018 2005

m om 2016 2015
£m fm

Weges and salaries  _ e e L WSB] 4278 e eamed by the Company's auditor for the audit
Share baged payments . i} 5.8 1.1 ofthe Companys anrualeccounts . 0.2

Social security costs 2.6 77.0  The audi of the Company's subsidiaries,

Pension costs” 123 22 pusuantiolegislation 24|25
Total 506.6 5082 Texcomplanceservices . 03] 01
QOther assurance services 0.1 0.1
* In 20186, pension costs includs the £2.8m gains on spacial pension Total 2.8 2.9

avents which are disclosed as exceptional items, see Section 4.5.3.3.
The 2015 comperatives include a curtailment gain of £4.2m in relation
10 our restructuring exercise in Switzeriand and settiement gaing of
£4.9m relating to other exercises in Switzerdand and the US.
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Section 2 - results for the year

(cont’d)

2.2
Exceptional items

The Group uses the exceptional items category in the income statement 1o
classify separately items of both income and expense which are suficiently
large, volatile or one-off in naturs to assist the reader of the financlal statements
to gain g better understanding of the underlying performance of the Group.

The foflowing items are considared to be exceptional in these financial statements,

2.2.1
Reversal of net economic hedge contract
losses/gains

For segmental reporting purposes, changes in the feir value of economic
hadges which are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes, together
with the gains and losses on thekr settisment, ane included in the reported
revenues and operating profit of the relevant business sagment. The exceptional
tems at the operating level reverse this treatment. The financing exceptional
iterns reflect the change in value or settiement of these contrasts with the
financial institutions with whom they were transacted, The former comprised
a raversal of & loss of £5.6m {2015: reversal of a loss of £7.6m) and the latter
amounted to a loss of £8.8m (2015: kiss of £5.0m).

222
Restructuring costs

The restructuring costs treated as exceptional in 2018 of £13.8m {2015: £27_ 1m}
ane as a rsult of a number of significant restruciuring projects across the Group,
predominantly in Critical Engineering. These inchude £7 8m relating to the dasure
of one our Critical Engineering sites in Germany, £1.7m from the closure of

one of owr Critical Engineering sites in italy, £3.2m for the continuing Europsean
restruchuring exercise commenced in 2015 and £5.6m from tha restructuring

of our Swedish business.

Exceptional restructuring costs in 2015 included £9.8m relating to a lamge
Euwropean restructuring exerciss acroes each of the divisions and £9.3m in relation
1o the restructring of our Switzeriand business. £3.6m was slso incumed in relation
1o the closure of two of our Petrochemical sites in taly and Gemnary, £1.7min
relation to the closure of our Canadian Nuclear business and £1.1m as part of
Critical Enginearing’s localisation plan in China.

Other restructuring costs of £3.5m (2015; £2.1m) are not includied in the measure
of segmental operating profit reported to the Executive Commitiee. These costs
have been charged below segmental operating profit and includad in reported
operating profit as, based on their quantum, they do not meet our definition of
excoptional toms.

2.23
Gains on special pension events

During 20186, following the conversion o & non-inflation inked pension for certain
members of our UK Funds, an exceptional net gain of £8.1m was realised. In
addition, following further restructuring exercises in Switzerland, a curtailment
gain of £1.4m was recognised. These exceptional gains were partially offset

by an exceptional loss of £4.7m, relating 1o the distrioution of pension assets

to members from our previously overfunded Swiss schemas. Gains on special
pension events in the UK, US and Switzerland of £9.1m were recognised in 2015.

2.2.4

Acquired intangible amortisation

and impairment losses

As reportad on page 98, following complstion of the Group's annual impairment
review, an exceptional impairment charge of £5m {2015: nil) was recorded
against the goodwill assoclated with the Stainless Steel Fasteners ('SSF) CGU
in the IMI Critical Enginesring division. As described in 2.2.2, an impairment

charge of £2.2m (2015: £6.8m) was recognised against property, plant and
equipment directly resulting from a number of significant restructuring projects.

Acquired intangible amociization decreasad to £21m (2015: £32m) iollowing
the full amortisation in 2015 of the order book acquired from Bopp & Reuther.
An analysis by segmaent of acquired intangible amortisation is included in
Section 2.1.1.

2.25
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries

No subsidiaries were disposed of during the yeer. Losses on the disposal of Scott,
28.J 8A and part of our NPSL business in 2015 are discussed in Section 3.5. :

226
Taxation

The tax effacts of the above items are included in the exceptional column
of the income statement.
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Earnings per ordinary share

Eamings per share ‘'EPS'} is the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each share (excluding those held in the Employee Benefit Thust or by the Company).
Basic EPS measures are caloulated as the Group profit for the vear attributable to equity shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the yvear. Diluted EPS takes into acoount the dilutive effect of all outstanding shars options priced below the market price, in antving &t the umber
of shares used in its calcutation,

Both of these measures are also presenied on a reporied basis, to remove the effects of exceptional itemns, being ftems of both income and expense which

are sufficiently large, volatile or one-off in nature to assist the reader of the financial statements to get a betier understanding of the underlying performance
of the Group. The nate below demonstrates how this calculation has been performed.

2018 2015

Key million millon
Weighted average number of shares for the pumose of basic eamings per shane A 270.8 270.6
Dilutive affact of employea share options 1.8 19
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share - B 2726 2725

Key Bm £m
Statutory profit for the year 133.2 130.0
Non-controling interests (2.4 2.4)
Statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent [+] 130.8 127.8
Statutory profit from discontinued operations, net of tax - 6.7)
Continuing statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent D 130.8 1209
Total exceptional charges included in profit before tax 42.7 56.0
Total exceptional credits inchuded in taxation {11.8} B.7
_En_mmcforupomd EPS E 161.9 168.2

Key 2016 2015
Statutory EPS measures
Statutory basic EPS C/A 48.3p 47.2p
Statutory dituted EPS B 48.0p 46.8p
Statutory basic continuing EPS DvA 48.3p 44.7p
Statutory diluted continuing EPS [+7:] 48.0p 44.4p
Reported EPS measures
Reported basic EPS E/A 5§8.8p 82.2p
Reported dited EPS E/B 50.4p 81.7p
Discontinued eamings per share

Statutory basic discontinued eamings per share were nil (2015: 2.5p). Statutory diuted discontinued eamings per share were nil (2015: 2.4p).
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Section 2 - results for the year

(cont’d)

24
Taxation

Ml operates through subsidiary companies all around the world that pay many
different taxes such as corporate incoma taxes, VAT, payrol withholdings, socia!
sacurity contributions, custormns import and excise duties. This nota aggregates
only thogs corporate income taxes that ane or will be levied on the individual
profits of IM) pic and its subskiiary companies for periods leading up t0 and
including the balence sheet date. The profits of each company are subject 10
certain adjustments as specified by applicable tax laws in each country to arrive
at the tax liability that is expected 1o result on their tax returns. Where these
adustments have fulure tax impact then defermad taxes may also be necorded.

2.4.1
Tax governance, risk and strategy

M recognises its corporate responsibility to ensure that all businesses within the

IMI Group follow responsible tax practices. Accordingly, the IMI Tax Policy sets the
core principles of compiliance, faimess, value and! trensparency for the managerment

of the Group's tex affeirs.

‘This Policy has been approved by the Boand, fully communicated to subsidiary
businesses and Is reviewed to ensura responsible business practices across
the Group ans maintained. A robust tax governance framework has aeo been
estabiished under which tha Executive Committes and the IMI Boand are appraised
on a reguiar basls of any matenal or significant tax matters, so that appropriate
action can be effected. Through the IMI Globel Intranet the Group communicates
poiicias, procecures, guidance and best practices to improve the management of
taxation across {ts subsickary compenies worldwide.

Compliance: IM! sseks 10 manage its taxation chiigations woridwide in compiance
with all applicable tax iaws and reguigtions, as wel as fully in fine with the Group's
Code of Conduct. Accordingly, the tax cortribution by the individua: businesses
is monitorad end standard processes installed such that alt corporate tax retums
shoukd be accurately and timely fled with the tax authorities around the world and
the declared taxes paid on time. Furthermore, the preparation and fiing of the
corporate ncome tax retums for IMI subsichery compeanies woridwide have been
largely outsourced tC one tax acsory firm.

Tax laws are often complex, which can lead 1o inconsisient interpretations by
differant stakeholders. Where this occurs, IMI may reduce uncertainty and
authorities to obtain early resciution and securing edemal tax advice to ensurs the
robust interpretation of tax laws and practices.

Falmess: Ml seeks to record its profits across the subsidiary companias anound

the word on an arm's langth basis in accordance with intemationally accepted

best practices, recognising the relative contributions of pecple, assats, imelactual
property and risks borne by the various businesses. The resulting allocation of profits
is regularly tested for compliance with this standard. IMI is preparad to mest the
enhanced transfer pricing disclosures and documentation recommended by the
Base Erosion & Profit Stifting {oommeonly refeed to as BEPS) initiative by the OECD.

Vailue: Ml manages the impact of teation on its businesses in a responsible
manner by only adopting legitimate, commertial and genaerally acceptable positions.
In particular, IM! seeks to follow not only the law liself but the intention of tha local
laws whers this can reasonably be ascertained. As a UK Headdguartered group,
IMI's profits are ultimatety subject to UK taxation, although as the Group pays
significant taxes overseas, the overall effective tax rate for the Group is marginally
above the UK stetutory tex rate.

Transparency: iM| aims to build positive working refationships with tax euthorities
by co-operating in a constructive, open and timely manner. (M| seeks to disciose Its
tax effairs in its published accounts and taxation retums fully in accordance with the
applicable standards end, whane appropriate, will supplement its tax disclosures with
further information to better irformn, and to be transparent 10, its stakeholders.

Ml engages external support 10 manage tax risks and achieve the strategic
objectives outined ahove. Tax fisks am regularly assessed for all companies within
tha Group, promptly addressed and rporied so that they may be appropriately
provided and disclosed in the relevant accounts and tex returns. To the exdent that
entified tax risks ane matevial they will be reported to the Exacutive Committee
through the Group's process for strategie risk management 88 described at page 40.

24.2
UK corporation tax

The average weightad rate of corporation tax in the UK for the 2016 calendar
year was 20% (2015: 20.25%). Changes 10 the rate of UK corporation tax
ware substantively enactad in 2015 1o reduce the rate 1o 19% from 1 Aprl 2017
and to 18% from 1 April 2020. The budget of 18 March 2016 then proposed
to furthar reduce the mte to 17% from 1 Aprll 2020. This additional change was
substantively anacted on 8 Septernber 2016, UK deferred tex assets and lebifties
have therglore predorminantly been calculated using a rate of 17% (2015: 18%).

24.3
Tax payments

During the year, the Group mede payments of corporate income tax of £31.7m
(2015; £36.2m), principally arising as follows:

Jurisdiction of companies making corporate income tax payments:

There is normally an element of volatilty in the annual payments ot corporate
incoma taxas due o the timing of assessmants, acquisition and disposals,
axcepliond itlerns and paymeants on account in the many couritries iy which the
Group operates. Changes in the jurisdictions in which profits are eamed can
also have an impact which may take time to be reflacted in the tax cashfiow.
Tha level of payments made during 2016 reduced from 2015 as the Group
recovered certain 1ax prepayments, principally in the US.

The Group makes substantial other tax payments relating 10 employmen,
consumption, procurement and investrent to local authorities anound the world.
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Tha incoms tax chargs is apportioned between continuing and discontinued

2.4.4 operations in the income staternent as follows:
Recognised in the income statement '
This section sets out the curnent and deferned tax charges, which together 2ms 2015
compriss tha total tax charge in the incoms statement, £m £m
' Current tax charge
2016 2015  Continuing operations 48.0 30.3
£m €m  Discontinued operationa - {1.4)
Current tux charge 480 3r9
Current tax charge 42.5 345  Deferred tax charge
Adjustments In respect of prior years 5.5 as  Continuing operations ] 5@;, 0.1
48.0 7.9 15.9) 0.1
Deforred taxation
Originetion and reversal of temporary differances {15.9) 0.1 2016 2015
Total mcome tax charge 321 ] 38.0 fm tm
Total income tax charge
Contirwing operations 321 30.4
Discontinued operations - {1.4)
3za 38.0
2.4.5

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Ag IMI's head office and parent company is domicied in the LK, the Group references its effective tax rate to the UK conporation tax rade, despite only & small proportion
of the Group's business being in the UK. Therefore, the following tax reconciliation applies the UK corporation tax rate for the year to profit before tax, both before and

aftar ecxcaptional items. This resutting tax charge is reconciled to the actual tax charga for the Group, by taking account of specific tax adjustments as follows:

€016 2015
Excettional Exceptional
Raportad hems Statutory Reported kems Statutory
Section £m £m o £m m fm
Profit before tax from continuing operations 208.0 42.7) 165.3 0n8.7 (58.0) 162.7
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 25 - - 53 5.3
Profit befare tax 208.0 42.7) 165.9 218.7 (50.7) 168.0
Income tax using the Company's domestio rate of tax of 20% (2015: 20.25%) ®8 8.5) 331 443 (10.3) 340
Effects of:
Non-deductibie tems 3.2 0.8 38 2.7 15 42
___Non-taxable loss on disposal of businesses - - 0.1 0.5 08
Release of defarred tax assst - - 1.0 16 26
Utiisation of loases on which no deferred tax had been recognised {1.0) 1.0} {2.6) - {2.6)
Current year losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 3.5 3.5 3.2 - 3.2
Change in future tax rate on UK deferrad tax (3.0} (3.0) 5.5) - @
Differing tax rates (2.8} a.n . (6.8} 0.1 (3.5) B3.4)
Under provided in prior years 2.2 2.2 4.8 0.1 49
Tota! tax In Income statement 24 8.7 11.6) R4 481 {10.1) 8.0
Income tex expense reported in the consolidated income statement 437 (11.6) 321 48.1 8.7 394
Effective rate of tax - continuing operations: 21.0% 18.4% 22.0% 24.2%
Income 1ax afiributable to discontinued operations 2.5 - - (1.4) {1.4)
Effective rate of tax - discontinuad operations: -28.4%
Total tax in income statement 24 43.7 a1.8) 321 48.1 (10.1) 38.0
Effective rate of tax - total Group: 21.0% 19.4% 22.0% 22.6%




Section 2 - results for the year
(cont’d)

.|
2.46
Recognised outside of the income statement

in addition to amounts charged 1o the income stalemant, some current tax and deferred tax is (credited)/charged directly to equity or through other comprehensive
income, which can be analysad as follows:

2018 205
£m fm
Deferred tax:
On equity-setiled transactions - 0.8
On change in value of effactiva net investment hedge derivatives . 0.9)
On available for sale financial assets - 0.6
On re-measurement gains and on defined benefit plans {12.8) 10.7
(12.8) 10.1
Current tax:
On pension restructuring - 0.5)
On foreign currency transiation differences _- 31
On change in value of sffective net investment hadge derivatives 0.8} -
On equity-settiad transactions - 0.1
(13.4) 12.8
Of which the following amounts are {credited)/charged:
to the statement of comprehensive income {13.4){ 11.8
to the statement of changes in equity - 1.0
t1a.4) 12.8
2.4.7

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred texes record the tax consequences of tamporary Gifferences between the accounting and taxetion recognition of certain items, as explained below:

Asssts Liabiites Net

2016 2015 2018 M5 20186 2015

&m fm om £m m tm
Non-cument assets 11 19 {“6.9) (48.1) (45.8) ©@6.2)
Inveriories 4.2 KX 1) @) 0.9 1.0)
On revauation of derivativea [ 07 2.0 2.2) 0.2 5

Ermployoe benefits and provisions 2.1 30,0 (2.9) (159 38.2 4.
Other tax assets 05 09 - . 0.5 0o
48.7 36.6 (57.9) (70.3) 5.2 BN

Offsetiing within tax jursdictions 125.9) (168 26.9 168 - -
Total deferred ax assets and linbilities 228 198 {32.0) 535 ®.2) 3.0
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The movement in the net deferred iax balances has bean recognised In the financial statements as analysed below:

Recognised Recognised
inthe ouinide the
Balancs at Income Income Acquisitions  Balance at
1Jan 16  statermant statement Exchange /disposals 31 Deci18
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Non-cument assets (48.2) 7.9 - {.5) - {45.8)
nventories (1.0 0.7 - (0.6} - (0.9)
On rgvalusation of derivatives (t.5) 0.3 - . - (1.2)
Employee benefits and provisions 14.1 74 128 3.9 - 38.2
Other tax assets 08 (0.4) . - . 0.5
Net deferred tax labliity {33.1 15.9 12.8 {4.2) - 9.2
Racognisad  Recognisad
inthe outsideths
Batance st Income: income Balance &t
1.Jan 15 siaternent siatemard  Exchangs Disposals 31 Dec 15
£m £m £m Em fm £m
Non-current assets {37.1) 8.3 - _20 {19.4) {46.2)
inventories {0.6] (0.2} - ©.2) - (19
On revalugtion of derivatives (0.5 1.8) 0.9 {0.1) - {1.5)
Employee banefits and provisions 228 {5.1) {11.0) 0.3 0.1 14.1
(Other tax assets 25 (1.3) - 0.3) - 0.9
Net deferred tax lability (5.9} 0.1) (10.1) 1.7 (19.3) (33.7)

Al exchange movements are taken through the translation resarve.

248
Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Defermed tax asssts of £56.2m (2015: £48.9m) have not been racognised in respact of tax losses of £47.9m (2015: £32.8m), interest of £61.3m (2015: £59.0m)
and capdal losses of £119.1m (2015: £123.2m). The majority of the tax ksses have no expiry date. No daferred tex asset has been recognised for these temporary
differences due to uncertainty over their offset against future taxaide profits and therafore their recoverabiiity. In some instances, these balances are also yet 1o be
accepted by the tex authorities and $o could be chaflenged in the event of an audit.

1t is likely that the majority of unremitted earmings of oversaas subsidiaries would qualify for the LK dividend axemption, However £48.9m (2015; £74.3m) of those
eamings may stil result in a tax lighiity principally as a result of withholding taxes levied by the overseas jurisdictions in which those subsidianes operate. Thegse
tax lisbilities are not epected 1o exceed £2.9m (2015; £5.3m), of which £2.7m (2015: £4.7m) has been provided on the basis that the Group expects 1o remit
thase amounts. The balance has not been provided as the Group is able 1o contro! the timing of dhidends and does not expect to pay up thess amounts In the
foresseable future.

25
Discontinued operations

When the Group has assets and labilties that have been soid in the year or are likely to be sold rather than being held for continuing use and when accounting
standards require, these assets and labiities are included in current assets and kabilities end dencted ‘held for sale’ rather than in their usual categories.

il they represent a significant enough proportion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued operations, This means that their tracing performance, i.e.
their revenues, costs and other items of incomne and eogoense, are no longer reported within the headline figures in the income statement and are instead reported
in 8 separate [ine, net of tax, called 'discontimsed operations’. These amounts no longer form panoiconnmﬁngeamhgspershara Comparative figures are
restated to be shown on the same basis.

This enables the incoms statement for the curant and prior year to be presented on a consistent basis and to corvey a more forward-looking version of the
results for the year.

Thera has been no profit or loss from discontinued operations in 2016.

The prior year comparative includes a pre-tax and post-tax gain of £4.4m as a result of the finalisation of a number of matters refating to the disposal of the Retad Disperse
businesses as well as a pre-tex gain of £0.9m and post-tax gain of £2.3m relating t0 cther discontinued cperations.
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

What you will find in this section

This section shows the assets used to generate the Group's trading performance and the liabilities incurred as a result.
Liabilities relating to the Group’s financing activities are addressed in Section 4. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are shown in Section 2.4.7. On the following pages there are sections covering working capital, non-current assets,
acquisitions, other payables due after more than one year, provisions and pensions.

3-1
Working capital

Working capial represents the assets and liabiities the Group generates
through its trading activities. The Group therefore defines working capital
as trade and other receivables, inventory and trade and other payables.
Working capital is managed very carefully to ensure that the Group can
meeat its trading and financing obligations within its ordinary operating cycle.

To provide the Executive Commitiee with insight into the management

of working capital, an important measure monitored is cash corversion.
Cash conversion is defined as the operating cash flow (as defined in the
commentary on the cash flow staternent) divided by the segrmental operating
profit which thenefore represents the proportion of segmental operating profit
generated during the year that has been convertect into cash.

3.1.1

Inventories
2m8 2015
£m £m
Raw materials and consumables 770 76.8
Work in progress 113.9 99.7
Finished goods 84.3 548
255.2 2333

In 2018 the cost of inventories recognised as an expense (being segmental
cost of sales) amountad to £923.8m (2015: £866.7m). The Group's invertory
increased by £21.9m due to foneign exchange movements of £39.4m.
These increases wer partially offset by a £17.5m decrease due 10
favourable cash movements.

In 2016 the write-down of inventonies 10 net realisable value amounted 10 £9.1m
(2015: £5.8m). The reversal of write-downs amounied to £1.8m (2015; £2,5m).
Write-downs and reversals in both years relate to on-going assessments of
inventory obsolescence, excess invantory holding and inventory resale

values across all of the Group's businesses.

3.1.2
Trade and other receivables
2018 2015
€m £m
Current
Trade receivables 337.0 291.3
Other receivables 426 30.8
Prepayments and accrued income 20.8 203
400.5 351.4
Raceaivablas are stated after:
Allowance for imparment 1.5 K]

Tha increase in the Group's tracle and other receivables of £49 1m is due to
foreign exchange movernents of £55.8m, partially offset by favourable cash
movements of £6.8m.

The Group's exposure 10 credit and markst rigks related 1o trade and other

receivables is disclosed in Section 4.4,
3.1.3
Trade and other payables
2016 2015
tm m
Curvent
Trade payables 2142 171.2
Sccial sacurity and other taxation 223 211
Other payables 23.0 58
Actcruals and deferred income 148.4 143.9
407.9 3421
Non-cutrent
Other payables 10.7 242
418.8 366.3

The Group’s frade and other payables increased by £52.3m due to foreign
exchange movernents of £46.8m and favourable cash movements of £5.5m.
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3.2
Intangible assets

The following section shows the non-physical assets used by the Group 1o generate revenues and profits. These assats inchude goodwill, customer relationships,
order books, patents, develapment costs and software developmen costs. The cost of these assets is the amount that the Group has paid for them or, when they
have arisen due to a business combination, the falr value of the specific intangible assets that could be sold separately or which arise from legal rights.

In the case of goodwil, its cost is the amount the Group has paid In accuining a business over and above the fair value of the individual assets net of the liablities
acquired. The value of the goodwi can arise from a number of sources, but in nalation to our mone necent acquisitions, it has been represented by post-acquisition
synergies and the sidlls and knowledge of the workforce. The value of the Group's intangible assets, with the exception of goodwill, reduces over the number of
years over which the Group expects to use the assat, the useful e, via an annual amortisation change to the income statament.

Tha Group spiits its intangible essets between those arising on acquisitions and thoss which do not, because the amortisation of acquired intangibles meets the
definition of an exceptional tem as described in Section 2.2.

Whera thare are indications that the value of intangible assets is no longer representative of their value to the Group, for axample where there is a customer
relationship recognised but revenues from that customer ara recucing, or where goodwill was recognised on an acqussition but the performance of the business
scquired is below expectations, the directons review the value of the assets to ensure thay have not falien below their amortised values. If this has happened,

a one-off impainment charge is recognised. This section explaing the overall camying values of the intangible assets within the Group and the specific judgements
and estimates made by the directors in amiving at these values.

3.2.1
Analysis of intangible assets
Non-soquired
Acouired Other Tota Othernon-  intangities
custormer acouirad soquired acquired unciar
Goodwil relaionships  inlangiles  inangibles  intengibles  consruction Total
fm o £m fm o tm £m
Cost
As st 1 January 2015 320.7 1312 82.1 534.0 52.6 0.7 5973
Exchange adjustments .5 7.0 1.8) a0 02 0.1) (13.9)
Acquisitions 525 4390 20.7 171 10 - 1181
Disposals of subskiianes 2.4) 1.0} (15.0) 8.4) 5 . (18.4)
Adcitions - - - - 59 14.1 20.0
Transfers from assets in the courss of construction . - . N 60 6.0) -
Disposals B - s N 0.9 - 0.9
As at 31 December 2015 368.3 166.4 86.0 618.7 84.8 18.7 702.2
Exchange adjustments 60.6 270 13.9 101.5 10.8 27 115.0
Additions - - - - 1.2 12.7 23.9
Transfers from assets in the course of construction - - - - 9.9 {9.9) -
Disposals - - - - {0.8) 0.1) 0.9
As at 31 December 2018 426.9 1934 99.9 720.2 959 24.1 840.2
Amortisation .
As at 1 January 2015 27.8 92.8 75.6 198.3 333 - 220.6
Exchange adiusiments 1.3) 2.9) 0.6 {4.8) ©0.3) - 5.1)
Disposals of subsidianes ©.9) 0.7) {14.5 (16.1) - - (18.1)
Disposals - - - - 0.9) - {0.9)
Amortisation for year - 19.7 125 322 53 - 375
As at 31 December 2015 258 109.0 73.0 207.6 474 - 2450
Exchange adjustments 41 8.1 123 M5 50 N 404
Disposals - - - - ©0.n N ©.n
impairment 5.0 N - 6.0 0.8 - 5.8
Amortisation for year - 18.0 2.5 205 8.0 . 205
As at 31 December 2018 34.7 145.3 87.8 267.6 514 - 319.0
Net book value at 31 December 2015 340.7 57.4 13.0 4119 74 18.7 457.2

Net book value at 37 December 2016 392.2 48.3 12.1 452.6 44.5 241 521.2
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

(cont'd)

3.2.2
Goodwill impairment testing

Goodwil is nat sublect to an annual amortisation charge. Insiead, its camying value is assessad annually by comparison 10 the future cash flows of the business
to which it relates (the cash generating unit, or 'CGU'). These cash flows are discounted to reflect the time value of money and this discount rate, together with
the growth rates assumed in tha cash flow forecasts, are the key assumptions in this impaiment testing process.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (‘CGUSs') based on the synergies
expected {0 be derived from the acquisition upon which the goodwil arose. The
Group has 20 (2015: 20} cash generating units to which goodwill is allocated.
The compasttion of CGlUs reflects both the way in which cash inflows are
genarated and the intemal reporting structure. Where our businesses operate
closaly with each other we will continue to review whether they should be
treated as a single or combined CGU.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment as part of the overalf assessment of
assats aganst their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its valus in use. Value in usa is
determined using cash flow projections from financial budgets, forecasts and
plans approved by the Board covering a five-year period and include a terminal
value muttiple. The projected cash flows reflect the latest expectation

of demand for products and services.

The key assumptions in these calculations are the long-term growth rates and
the discount rates applied to forecast cash flows in addition to the achievernent
of tha forecasts themseives. Long-term growth rates are based on long-term
esconomic farecasts for growth in the manufacturing sector in the geographical
regions in which the cash generating unit operates. Pre-tax discount rates
specific to each cash generating unit are calculated by adjusting the Group
post-tax weighted average cost of capital {WACC') of B% (2015: 8%) for the
tax rate relevant 1o the jurisdiction before adding risk premia for the size of the
unit, the characieristics of the segment in which it resides, ard the geographical

This exercise resulted in the use of the following ranges of values for the
Wey essumprions:

2018 2015
% %

9.0-149| 9.9-16.2
0.9-21 1.0-2.1

Pre-tax discount rate
Long-term growth rate

Following our impainment review, the goodwill associated with the Stainlass
Steel Fagteners {'SSF") CGU, within the IMI Critical Enginearing division, was
oonsidered to be impaired. This impairment has arisen due Lo a continued
deterioration in the end markets that SSF sell into. A value in use calculation
was used 1o determine the £2.0m recoverable amourt of the SSF CGU,
which used a discount rate of 11.5%. As a result, the Group has recognised
an axceptional impairment loss of £5.0m.

For the purpose of assessing the significance of CGUs, the Group uses a
threshold of 20% of the total goodwill balence. Goodwill of £85.1m (2015
£78.4m) associated with the Control Valves CGU in Critical Engineering

ig considerad to be significant. The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined fom a valug in use cakculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use valuation are the discount rate, growth rate and oparating
cashfiows. These estimates are determined using the methodology discussed
above. The discourt rate applied for Contro! Valves is 10.9% (2015: 12.5%)
and a growth rate of 2.1% (2015: 1.6%)} is eppled into perpetuity,

No other CGUs have gooowdll that is considered significant in the context
of the Group's total goodwil balance, nor do any CGUSs use the same key
assumptions for the purposes of impainment tasting in either this year or
the last.

The aggregats amount of goodwill arising from acquisitions prior 10 1 January
2004 which had been deducted from the profit and loss reserves and
incorporated into the IFRS transitional balance sheet as at 1 January 2004,
amounted 1o £364m. The cumulative impeirment recognised in relation o
goodwill is £39m (2015: £34m).
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3.3
Property, plant and equipment

The following section concems the physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and profits. These assets include manutacturing, distribution and

office sites, as well as aquipment used in the manufacture of the Group's products. The cost of these assets represents the amount initiely paid for them.
With the exception of the Group’s land and assets under construction which have not yet been brought into use, a depreciation expense is charged to the

income statement to refiect the annual wear and tear and the reduction in the value of the asset over time. Depreciation is calculated by reference to the assets’
useful livas, by astimating the number of vears over which the Group expects the asset to be used. As we do for our intangible assets (see Section 3.2), if there

has been a fechnological change or decline in husiness performance the directors review the value of the assats to ensure they have not fallen below their

depreciated value, if an asset's value falls below its depreciated value, a one-off impalmment charge is made against profit.

Assets in the
Land & Plant & oourse of
buldings squipment  construction Total
&m m &m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2015 183.4 533.8 20.0 7172
Exchange adjusiments 3.0} 0.4) 0.1 (12.3)
Acquisitions 0.4 3.8 - 42
Disposais of subsidiaries 0.4) R.0 - (3.4)
Additions 1.8 229 259 50.68
Transfers from assets in the course of construction £3 18.0 24.3) -
Digposals 8.0) 42.5) - (50.5)
As at 31 Decamber 2015 159.5 5246 21,7 705.8
Exchange adjustmemts 271 81.7 20 11038
Additions 1.8 20.9 24.3 47.0
Transfers from assets in the course of construction 2.3 22.4 (24.7) -
Disposals . (8.3) {24.2) (0.9) (32.9)
As at 31 December 2016 182.4 825.4 22.9 830.7
Depreciation
As at 1 Jarary 2015 777 413.0 - 490.7
Exchange adjustments {1.4) 7.0} - {8.4)
Disposals of subsidiaries - (1.7; - {1.7)
Disposals (3.4) (42.04 - (45.4)
Impaiment charge 51 1.8 - 8.9
Depreciation 3.3 2086 - 329
As a1 31 December 2015 81.3 393.7 - 4750
Exchange adjustmenms 145 62.9 - 774
Disposals 5.3) (22.6) - (27.9)
Impalrment charge 1.4 0.8 - 2.2
Deprociation 3.9 339 - 378
As at 31 Dacember 2016 85.8 468.7 . 564.5
NBV at 31 December 2015 78.2 130.9 21.7 230.8
NBY at 31 December 2016 86.6 158.7 229 2668.2

A nat impairment charge of £2.2m relating 1o contining operations occumed during the year (2015; £5.9m) as described [n Section 2.2. The recoverabla amount
of these asssts has been determined using thair fair value less costs to seit, estimated by both internal and extemal valuation specialists.

Group condracts in respect of future capital expenditure which had bean placed at the balance sheet date relating 10 the continuing business amounted to

£7.4m (2015: £6.9m).

Included in the 1otal net book valua of plant and equipment is £0.6m (2015: £0.7m) in respect of assats aoquired under finence jeasas. Depraciation for the year

on thess assets was £0.2m (2015; £0.3m).
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities
(cont'd)

|
3.4 '
Acquisitions

The following section discusses businesses acquired by tha Group, which have given rise to the additions to the scquired intangible assets (including goodwill)
reported in Section 3.2 and which contnibuted to the Group's profits, working capital and other batance sheet asset and Fabilities,

3.4.1
Acquisitions in the current year

There were no acquisitions during 2016.

3.4.2

Acquisitions in the prior year

On 2 January 2015, the Group acquired the entire share capitat of B&R Holding GmbH {'Bapp & Reuther’) for a cash consideration of £100.2m (€140.8m),
racognising identifable net assets of £56.7m and goodwill of E52.5m.

Bopp & Reuthar is a leading manufacturer of safety, control and shut-off vaiva techinology for protess industries as well as conventional fossil and nuciear power
plants workdwide. Its head office and manufacturing plant is located in Mannheim, Germany and it has service centres in Germary, Austria, Romania and Ching.
Bopp & Rauther joined the MI Critical Engineering division and is now effectively integrated into its control vaive business ('CCI).

3.5
Disposals

3.5.1
Disposals in the current year

There were no disposals of subsidiaries during 2016.

3.5.2
Disposals in the prior year

Asterm 5AS (‘Asterm’}
The Group disposed of Asterm SAS on 21 January 2015 for proceeds of £0.4m resulting in a post-tax loss on disposal of £0.4m.

IMI Seott Limited ("Scott’)

The Group disposed of IMI Scott Limited on 30 October 2015 for proceeds of £1.2m resulting in a post-tax loss on disposal of £2.1 million, after disposing of
£2.7m of net assets and incurming £0.6m of associated costs.

Zimmermann & Janasn South Africs (Ply.) Ltd (‘Z&J SA)

Tha Group disposad of Zimmenmann & Jansen South Africa (Pty,) Lid on 13 November 2015 for proceeds of £0_2m resulting in & post-tax ioss on disposal of
£4.4m. Net assets disposad of equalled £2.2m, with associated costs incurred of £0.4 and & foreign exchange loss of £2.0m

Nano Porous Solutions Limited ('NPSL")

The Group disposed of non-core elements of Nano Porous Solutions Limited on 16 Decamber 2015 for proceeds of £0.7m resulting in a post-tax loss of £1.9m.
The remainder of the NPSL. business was transfemad to Norgren UK,
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3.6
Provisions

A provision is recorded instead of a payable (see Section 3.1,3) when there is less certainty over how much cash will be paid and when the payment might be made.
When the Group has an obiigation relating to previous evants and when i is probable that cash will be pald to seitie Iit, 8 provision rather than a peyable Is recorded.
In this situation, an estimate is required.

The principal estimates made in respect of the Group's provisions concem the timing and amount of payments required to:

» cover tha costs of known restructuring projects;

» reimburse customers for potential product warranty claims;

* gnsute that cument and former manufacturing sites meet relevant environmental standards;

= reflect the estimated outcome of ongoing legal disputes; and

* provide against indemnities followang the disposal of subsidiaries.

Analysis of the Group's provisions:
Erwironrmental,
Tracle: lega) &
Restructuring warrantios indemnity Total
£m £m m m
Current 125 9.3 33 '25.1
Non-gurrent 09 6.2 104 175
At 1 January 2018 13.4 15.5 13.7 az26
Arising during the year 18.3 5.2 {0.5) 24.0
Utilised during the year {22.4) (5.1} [%) 3.2
Exchange adjustment 1.8 1.8 - 36
At 31 December 2018 121 174 8.5 39.0
Curmrent 1.1 8.0 0.8 19.9
Non-current 1.0 2.4 8.7 18.1
121 174 9.5 3%.0

The resinsGturing provision reflects residual amounts committed but not spent in reiation to a number of specific projects and the majority is expected 1o be utiised
within the naxt 12 months.

Trade warranties are given in the normal course of business and cover a range of periodis, typically one to two years, with the expected emounts falling due in less
than and greater than one year separately analysed above. Amounts set aside represant the directors' best estimate regarding the amount of the settliements and
the timing of resolution with customers.

Erwironmental and legal provisions recognise the Group's obligation to remaciate contaminated land at a number of curment and former sites, together with current iegal
cases for which a settiement is considered probabile. Because of the long-term nature of the iiabiities, the timeacales are uncertain and the provisions represent the
directors’ best estmetes of thess costs.

Provisions for indermnities included in the agreed terms of disposals of subsidiaries are pravided for based on the expecied probability of indemnified losses that
may be suffered by the purchaser.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

What you will find in this section
This section outlines how the Group manages its capital and related financing costs. The directors determine the

appropriate capital structure for the Group, specifically, how much cash is raised from shareholders {(equity) and how
much is borrowed from financial ingtitutions (debt} in order to finance the Group’s activities both now and in the future.

The directors consider the Group's capital structure and dividend policy at least twice a year ahead of announcing

results in the context of its ability to continue as a going concern and deliver its business plan.

The Board is mindtul that equity capital cannot be easily flexed and in particular raising new equity would normally be
likely only in the context of an acquisition. Debt can be issued and repurchased more easily but frequent adjustments

{ead to high transaction costs and debt holders are under no obligation to accept repurchase offers.

4.1
Net debt

Net debt is the Group's key measure used to evaluate totael autstanding debt, net of the current cash resources. Some of the Group's bormowings {and cash)

are held in foreign currencies. Movemants in foreign exchange rates affect the sterling value of the net debt,

a) Reconciilation of cash and cash equivalents

2016 2015

£m m

Cash and cash equivalents in current assets 79.7 114,2

Bank overdraft in current abilties {12.2) 6.4)

Cash and cash squivalents 87.5 107.8
b) Reconcilistion of net cash to movement in net borrowings

2018 - 205

m £m

Net (decrease)/increasa in cash and cash equivalents excluding foreign exchange and net cash disposed/acquired (45.8) 85.7

Net repayment/(drawdown) of borrowings 54.6 {107.9)

Decreass/{increase) in nat debt before acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange 8.1 22.2)

Net cash disposed . £.8)

Net dabt acquired - 6.6

Currency transiation differences (54.8) 8.3)

Movement in net borrowings In the year 46.7) {36.9)

Net borrowings at the start of the year {236.9) (200.0)

Net borrowings at the end of the year {282.6) (236.9)
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<} Analysis of not debt
Borrowings end
finance leases due
Cash and cash within afer more Yote!
equivalents one year than one year net cobd
£m £m fm £m
At 1 January 2016 107.8 {54.1) {290.6) (238.9)
Cash flow excluding seftiement of cumency derivatives hedging balance sheet and net cash disposed of/acquired 3.0 63.1 1.5 50.9
Settlement of curency derivatives hadging balance sheet {41.8) (#1.8)
Cumency transtation differences 5.2 (5.8) {54.2) (54.8)
At 31 December 2016 87.5 (6.8) (343.3) (282.6)
4.2

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group borrows money fom financial institutions in the form of bords and other financial instruments. These genarally have fbeed interest rates and are for

a fixed term or are drawn from committed borrowing facilities that generally have floating interest rates.

This saction providas information about the terms of the Group's intenest-bearing loans and bomowings. For more information about the Group's exposune to

interest rate and foreign currency rigk, see Section 4.4.3.

2006 2015
&m £m
Current liabilttles.
Unsacured loan notes and other loans 6.3 53.6
Finance leasae Kablities 0.5 0.5
6.8 54.1
Non-cusment dabilities
Unsacured loan notes and other loans 342.8 200.2

Finance lsase liabifities

05

0.4

343.3

2080.6
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d)

4.3
Net financing costs

This section detais the Income generated on the Group's financlal assets and the expense incurred on borrowings and other financial assets and Babiities,
The finance income and expense takan into account in ariving at adjusted eamings only includes the income and expense arising on cash balances,
borrowings and retrement benefit obligations. The finance income or expense on mark-to-market movemenis on interest and forelgn exchange derivatives

Recognised in the income etstement

2018 2015
Financial Financial
Interest  instruments Total Intereat  instruments Tota
&m £m &m £m £m £m
Interest income on bank deposits 4.5 4.5 3.2 3.2
Financial instrumants at fair value through proft or loss:
Other economic hedges
- current year trading 56 5.6 14.5 14.5
- future year transactions 7.0 7.0 84 6.4
Financial income 4.5 12.6 171 32 209 24.1
Interast axpenss on intarest-bearing loans and borrowings (21.8) {21.8) 21.6) (21.6)
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss:
Other economic hedges
~ GuITent year trading .5 (7.5 {16.8} (16.8)
- future ysar transactions {11.9) {11.9) 8.1) 9.1}
Financial expense (21.8) (19.4) .2 21.6) {25.9) {47.5)
Nagt financial income relating to defined banafit pansion schemes 1.1 1.1 0.2 0.2
Net financial expense {16.2) {8.8) {23.0) {18.2) {5.0) 23.2)

Included in financial instruments are current year trading gains and lpsses on economically sflective transactions which Tor management reporting purposes are
included in reported revenue and operating profit (see Section 2.1). For statutory purposes these are requiad o be shown within net financial incoms and expense
above, Gains or losses for fuhue year transactions are in respact of financial instrurnents held by the Group fo provide stability of future trading cash Bows.

Recognisad in other comprehonsive income

2016 2015
Em £m
Change in fair value of effective portion of net investment hedges 2.8) 1.0}
Foraign currency tranglation differences 394 2.9
Change in fair value of other inancial Bssels - (.7
Income tax on tems recognissd in other comprehensive Income 0.6 {1.8)
Total Itams recognisad in other comprehensive income (net of tax) 7.2 {11.4)
Recognisad in:
Hedging reserve {2.2) {10.1)
Translation reserve 39.4 0.2}
Retained samings ] - 1.1)
37.2 {11.4)
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4.4
Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financlal risks: interest rate,
foreign exchange and base melal price movements in eddition to funding and
Iquidity risks. The financial instruments used 1o manage the undarlying risks
thernsebves introduce exposure 1o creckt risk, market risk and liquadity risk.

This saction presents information about the Group's exposure to each of
thesa risks; the Group's objectives, policies and processes for measwring
and managing risks, including each of the abova risks; and tha Group's
managermert of capital,

441
Overview

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Group's risk management framework. As described in the Corporate -
Governance Report on page 44 the Executive Committea monitore risk and
internal controls and the Audit Committee monitors financial risk, while the other
Board committees also play a part in contributing to the oversight of risk.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with
the Group's financial risk management policies and procedures and roviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation 10 the financial risks
faced by the Group. The Group Assurance depertment underfakes both negular
and ad-hoc reviews of risk managemaent controls and procedures, the resufts
of which are reporied to the Audit Committes.

The following sectiong discuss the management of specific inancial risk
factors in detal, including credit rick, foreign exchange risk, interast rate risk,
commodity risk and liquidity risk.

442
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 10 the Group if a customer or
courterparty 1o a finencial instrument falls to meet its contractual obligations,
and arisas principally from the Group's receivables from customers, cash
and cash squivalents held by the Group's banks and other financial assets.
At the end of 2016 these totalled £437.9m (2015: £417.9m).

4.4.2.1
Managing credit risk arising
from customers

The Group's exposure to cradit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characieristics of each customer. The demographics of the Group's customar
base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which custormens
operate, have less of an influence on credit risk. Our largest single customer
accountad for 2% of cur 2016 revenues {(2015: 2%).

Geographicafly there is no unusual concentration of credit risk. The Groups
contract approval procedura ensures that large contracts are signed off at
exacutive director level at which time the risk profile of the contract, including
potential credit and foreign exchange risks, is reviewed. Credit risk is minimised
through due diigence on potential customers, appropriate crecit imits, cash
flow managsment arxj the use of documentary credits where appropriate.

4422
Exposure to credit risk in respect
of financial assets

The maximum exposurs 10 credit risk for financial assets is represented by their
carrying vaise and is analysad betow: ~

Carvying amount
2018 2015
£m om
Cash and cash equivalents .7 107.8
Investments 02 18.7
Forward exchange contracts” - 0.1
100.9 126.6

* Forward exchange contracts include the net amount recaivable by each
entity in the Group, from each fnancial institution, reflecting the Group's
maximum credit exposure since individual entities within the Group have
the right but not the obligation to settie these net.

4423
Exposure to credit risk in respect
of trade receivables

Carrying amount
2018 2015
om £m
UK 173 18.4
Garmany 29.6 25.9
Rest of Europe 108.0 77.0
USA 40.8 43.6
Asla Pacific 83.6 741
Rest of World 50.9 52.3
337.0 291.3

The maximum exposure to credi risk for trade receivables at the raporting
date by segment was as folows:

Carying amourt

2018 2015

£m £m

IMI Critical Engineering 180.8 156.8
IMI Precision Engineering 100.5 95.68
IM! Hydronic Engingering 45.9 389
337.0 291.3




108 IMI plc

Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(cont’d)

4424
Impairment provisions for trade receivables

The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

2016 2015
Gross  Impairment Gross  Impaimment
Bm £m £m om
Not past due 287.6 0.5) 247.9 0.3)
Past due 1-30 days 28.2 {0.5} 22.9 0.5)
Past due 31-90 days 1.8 {0.5) 14.4 0.7)
Past due over B0 days 20.7 {9.9) 150 {7.4)
Total 3484 {11.4) 300.2 {8.9)
The ret movemnent in the allowance for impairment in rasper:toﬂrade
receivebles during the ysar was as follows:
2016 2015
£m m
Net balance at 1 January 8.9 7.1
Utiised during the year 1) {1.0)
Charged 1o the income statemant 3.8 a5
Relgasad (1.6} 0.4
Exchange 14 0.3
Net balance at 31 Decomber 114 8.8

The net impairment charge recognised of £2.2m (2015: charge of £3.1m)
redatas o tha movement in the Group's essessment of the risk of non-recovary
from a range of customers across all of its businesses.

4,425
Managing credit risk arising
from counterparties

A group of relationship banks provides the bulk of the banking services,
with pre-approved credit fmits set for each institution. Financial derivatives
are enterad into with thase core banks end the underlying credit exposure
to these instruments ig included when considering the cradit exposure to
tha counterparties. At the end of 2016 credit exposure including cash
deposlied did not exceed £14.0m with any single institution {2015: £23.2m).

4.4.3
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes In market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and commoadity prices will affact the Group's
income and cash fiows or the value of its financial instruments. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within accapiable parameters.

Under the management of the central treasury function, the Group enters
into derivatives in the ordinary course of business and also manages financial
liabilities in order to mitigate market risks. Al such transactions are carisd
out within the guidelines set by the Board and are undertaken only if they
relate 10 underlying exposures.

4431
Foreign exchange risk

The Group publishes consolidated accounts in sterling but conducts

much of its global business in other currencies. As a result it is subject to
the risks associated with foreign exchangs movements affecting transaction
costs (‘transactional risk’), translation of foreign profits { profit translation
risk') and translation of the underlying net assets of foreign operations
{‘asset translation risk’).

a) Managsment of transactional risk

The Group's wide geographical spread both in terms of cost base and customer
locations helps to reduce the impact on profitability of swings in exchange
rates as well as creating opportunities for central netting of exposures. i is the
Group's policy to minimise risk to exchange rate movements affecting sales
and purchasss by economically hedging or netting cumency exposures at the
time of commitmernt, or when thare s a high probabiity of fulure commitment,
using cumency instruments (primarily forwang axchange contracts). A proportion
of forecast exposures are hedged depending on the level of confidence and
hedging is periodically edjusted following reguier reviews. On this basis over
50% of the Group’s annual exposures to transactional risk are |ikely to be
hedged at any point in time and the Group's net transactional exposure 1o
different curmencies varias from time to time.

b) Management of profit transiation risk

The Group is exposed 1o the translation of profits denominated In foreign
currencies into the sterling-based income statement. The interest cost related

1o the currency kabfities hadging the asset base provides a pantial heage to this
exposune. Short-term currency option contracis may be used to provide limited
protection against sterding strength on an opportunistic basis. The translation
of US dollar and euro-based profits ropresent the most significant translation
exposures for the Group.

¢) Management of asset transiation risk

The Group hedges its net investmaents in its major overssas operations by way
of external cumency loans and forwand cumency contracts. The Intention is to
manage the Group's exposure 1o gains and losses in Group equity resulting
from retranslation of curmency net assets at batance sheet dates.

To the extent that an instrumsnt usad o hedge a net investment in a foreign
operation is determined to be an effective hedge, the gain or loss arising

is recognised directly in reserves. Any ineflective portion is recognised
immediately in the incoma statement.
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d) Currency profile of assets and kiabilities

Assate

subject
Btdunge 1o Intesest Other Total Tots
Cash* Debt reterisk  netassets  netassets | netessels
2018 2018 2016 2016 208 2016 2015
£m £m £m m m £m fm
Sterding 25 - 387 412 25 437 12
US dollar 5 (215) 81 (148) 164 15 -
Euro 4 (129) (286} 411) 422 " 60
Other 34 [14] {182) ($35) 256 120 17
Total 68 (351) - (283) 866 _ 583 580

* Cash Is stated net of overdrafts,

Exchange contracts end non-stering debt are financial instruments used as cumency hedges of overseas net assets.

4.4.3.2
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed 1o a number of global interast rates through assats and liabiities denominated in jurisdictions 1o which these rates are applied,
mast notably US, Eurozone and UK rates. The Group is exposed to these bacause market movements in these rates will increase or decrease the interest
charge recognised in the Group income staternent.

) Managsment of interest rate risk

The Group adopts a policy of maintaining a portion of its Eablities at fixed interest rates and reviewing the balance of the floating rate exposure 1o enswe that € interest
rates rise giobally the effect on the Group's income statemant is manageable.

Interest rates are managed using fixed and floating rate debt and financial instruments including interast rate swaps. Floating rate labilties comprise short-term debt
which bears interest at short-termn bank rates and the kability side of exchange contracts where the interest elerment is based primarily on three month inter-bani rates.

All cash surpluses are invested kx short periods and are freated as floating rate investments,
mmmmmmmmmmmmwwmmmmmmm
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(cont’d)

b} interest rate risk profile

The following table shows how much of our cash, interest-bearing liabiities and exchange conracts sttract both fixed and fioating rate interest charges,

and how this is analysed betwsen cumencias:

Assets Weighted
Debtand  Cashand subjoct Weighted average
sxchangs  exchangs  tointerest Flozting Flxed avange period
conracts  contracts rate risk rate rate faed  for which
2016 208 2018 206 2096 intsrest rate  rate i fixsd
o £ £m fm £m % years
Sterling - 412 412 412
US dollar {215) 65 {150} 85 {215) 6.7 2.0
Euwro 414) 4 410)_ (282) {120) 1.4 83
Other (168) 34 (135) (13%)
Total {768) 515 (283) 80 (343)
Assets Waighted
ODebtend  Ceshand subject Weighter! average
axchange axchanga to intarest Rosting Foed average peariod
contracts  contracts rate risk rate rala fac) for which
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 inforestrate  rate i fad
on om £m om £m % yoars
Stering - 335 335 335 -
US dollar [7x]] 20 (141) a0 {231) 8.8 2.4
Euro {320] 3 (317) (207) {110) 14 9.3
Other (148} 35 114) (114} -
Total (700) 463 237) 104 (341)
4_4_3_3 Funciing for tha Group 13 co-ondinated centrally by the treasury function and
. . comprises commitied hilateral faciities with 8 core group of banks, and a series
Commodity risk of US loen note issues. The level of facilities is maintained such that facities

‘The commodity inpuis fo the Group’s production process typically consist
of base matats. Commodity risk for the Group is the risk that tha prices of
these inputs could rise, thus reducing Group profits.

The Group's operating companies purchase metal and metal components
and are therefore exposed to changes in commodity prices.
Managemant of commodity risk

The Group managss this exposurs through a centralised process hedging
coppev, zinc and aluminium using a combination of financial contracts and local
supply agreements designed to minimise the volatility of short-term margins.

4.43.4
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.

a) Management of liquidity risk

The Group's approach to menaging liquidity is 1o ensure, as far as possible,
1hat it will always have adequate resources to meet its kiabikties when they
{all due, with sufficient headroom to cope with abnormal market conditions.
This position is reviewed on a quartarly basis.

and term loans excead the forecast peak gross debt of the Group over a roling
12 month view by an appropriate amount taking into account markat conditions
buybacks. In addition, we undertake regular covenant compliance reviews 10
ansure that we remain lully within thosa covenant kmits. Ar the end of 2016 the
Group had undrawn committed faciiities totaling £301m (2015: £294m) and
was holding cash and cash squivalerds of £80m (2015: £114m). There are no
significant seasonal funding requirements or capital intensive Investment areas
for the Group.

4.4.4
Capital management

Capial management concarns the decision as 1o how the Group's activities
are financed and specifically, how much of the Group capital is provided by
bomowings (or debt) and how much of it is financed with equity raised from
the issue of share capital.

The Board's policy Is to maintain a balance sheet with a broad capital
base and the strength 1o sustain the future development of the business
including acquisitions. This section discussas how the Board views the
capital base of the Group and the impact on leverage, distribution policy
and investment policy.
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4.4.41
Overview

The Board monitors the geographical spread of its sharshoiders and
employess ame encouragad o hold shares in the Company. The undertying
capitef base of the Group includes tolal equity and reserves and net debt.
Employee benefit obligations net of deferred tax form part of the extended
capital base, Managemaent of this element of the capital base is discussed
further in Section 4.5 of the financial statements. Undravwn committed funding
facilities are maintained as described in Section 4.4.5.1 to provide additonal
capital for growth (including acquisitions and organic invesimants) and fiquidity
raquirements as discussed above.

4442
Capital base
2016 2015
£m £m
Total equity 583 589
Gross debt including overdralts 363 361
Gross cash (80) (114)
Capital base 886 826
Emplcyes benafits and deferred tax assets 57 249
Extended capital base 923 802
Undrawn funcing faciities 301 204
Available cepilal base 1,224 1.006

Part of the capital base Is held in curmrencies to broadly match the currency base
of the assets being funded as describad in the asset transiation rigk section.

4443
Debt or equity

The balance between debt and equity in the capital base of the Group is
considered regularly by the Board in light of market condiitions, business
forecasts, growth opportunities and the ratio of net dett to continuing EBITDA
before exceptional items. Funding covenants curmently imit net debt 10 a
maximum of 3.0 times EBITDA. The net debi 10 EBITDA ratio at the end of
2016 was 1.0 times (2015: 0.9 times). Through the iife of our five year plan,
the Board would consider appropriate acquisitions that could take net debt up
to 2.5 times EBITDA on acquisition, provided thal a ciear plan exists to reduce
this ratio back to under 2.0 times. It is expected that at these levels our debt
would continue 1o be perceived as investment grade, The potential benefits to
equity shareholders of greater lsvarage are offset by higher risk and the cost
and availabikty of funding. The Board will consider ralsing adkitional equity in
the event that it ig required to support the capital base of the Group.

4444
Dividend policy and share buy-backs

As part of the capital management process, the Group ensuwes that adequate
resarves are availabls in IMI pic in order 10 meet proposed shareholder
dividends, the purchase of shares for employee share scheme incentives
and any on-market share buyback programme.

Whiilst the Group does not have & formal dividend policy or payout ratio,
the Group's aim is to continue with progressive dividends, which typically
increase at a steady rate for both the interim and final dividend payments,
with an aim that the dividand shoukd, through the cycle, be covered by at
least two times reported earnings. In the event that the Beard cannot identify
initiatives and acquisitions, the retum of funds to shameholders through sharg
buybacks or special dividends will be considered. it should be noted that

a number of shares are regutarty bought in the markat by an employee
benoft trust in order 10 hedge the exposure under certain management
inceantive plans. Detals of these purchases are shown in Section 4.6.2

to the financial statements.

4445

Weighted average cost of capital

The Group currently uses a post-tax weighted average cost of capital (WACGC")
of 8% (2015: 8%) as a benchmark for investmant returns. This is reviewed
regularly in the light of changes in market rates. The Board trecks the Group's

return on invested capital and seeks to ensure that it consistently delvers
returns in excess of the WACC,

4.4.5
Debt and credit facifities

This section provides datails regarding the specific borrowings that the Group
has in place 1o satisfy the debt elements of the capitel management poicy
discussed above.

4.4.51
Undrawn committed facilities
The Group has various undrawn committad borrowing facilities. The feciities

available at 31 December in respect of which all conditions precedent had
been met ware as follows:

2018 2015

m £m

Expiring within one yeer 50.0 22.4
Expiring between ona and two years 50.6 75.0
Expiring after more than two years 200.0 197.1
300.6 2042

The weighted average lfe of these fecilities is 2.7 years (2015: 3.2 years).
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d)

4452
Terms and debt repayment schedule

The terms and conditions of cash and cash equivalents and outstanding loans were as follows:

Effactive Camying  ConWaciual o ito 2o 30 410 5 yoars
interest rate velue cash flows <1 year <2 years <3 years <4 yoars <5 years and over
% £ €m £m m fm &m m om
2016
Cash and cash equivalsnts Floating 79.7 19.7 79.7
US ioan notes 2018 5.08% {121.6) (129.9) {7.3) (122.8)
US ioan notes 2018 761% {81.0) Mﬂ (6.2) 6.2) (84.5)
US loan notes 2022 T17% {12.2) {17.5) {0.9) ©.9) {0.9) (0.9) {0.9) {13.0)
US loan notes 2025 1.30% {128.0) (142.3_} (1.8} (_]_g) {1.8) (1.8) {1.8) {133.8)
Finance leases ' Varlous {1.0) {1.0) {0.5) 0.2 {0.1) (0.1) {0.1)
Bank overdrafts Floating {12.2) (12_.9 {12.2)
Unsecured bank loans Floating {6.3) {6.6) {6.5) 0.1}
Total {262.6) (27.2) 43 (131.8) (87.3) (2.8) 2.8) {148.8)
2015 '
Cash and cash equivalenis Floating 114.2 114.2 1142
UJS loan notes 2016 7.26% {50.9} 53.0) {53.0)
US ican notes 2018 5.98% {101.7} (114.8) (6.1) B.1) (102.6)
US loan notes 2019 7.681% (67.8] {86.4) 5.2) 5.2 5.2) (?_O_B_)r
US loan notes 2022 717% {10.2) {15.1) 0.7 0.0 0.7) 0.7 0.7 (11.6)
US loan notes 2025 1.38% {110.4} (124.5) (1.5) 1.5] {1.5) {1.5) {1. {117.0)
Finance leases a\_{arious (1.0} 1.0} 0.5) 0.3} {0.1) 0.1)
Bank overdrafts Floating (6.4) 6.4 64)
Unsecured bank lcans Floating {2.7) {2.9) 2.7) (LU {0.1)
Total {236.9) {289.9) 38.1 (13.9) {110.2) {73.1) 2.2} {128.6)

Contractual cash flows include undiscounted committad interest cash fows and, where the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosad is determined
by reference 1o the conditions existing at the reporting date.
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4.4.6
Fair value

Financial instruments included in the financial statements are meesurad at either fair value or amortised cost. The measurement of this fair value can in some
cases be subjective, and can depend on the inputs used in the calculations. The Group generally calculates its own far values using comparable observed
market prices and a valuation model using the raspective and retevant market data for the instrument being valued.

4.46.1
Total financial assets and liabilities

The table below sets out the Group's eccounting classification of each dlass of financial assets and liabilities, and their fair values at 31 December 2016
and 3 December 2015. Under IAS 39, all derivative financial instruments not in a hedge relationship are classified as derivatives at fair value through the
income statement. The Group does not use derivatives for speculative wmmmtmmaalmmmmwmmmgvademmm
All transactions in derivative financial instruments are undertaken 1o manage tha risks arising from underlying business activities.

Fair value

Other  Avallable for Al Toial

Designated  derhatves  salpassels |  amortised camying  Fair viluo

ot farvalus ot falvvalue &t foir value cost value W difierent

£m £m £m £m £m £m

2016

Cash and cash eguivalents 79.7 79.7
Bank overdrafts {12.2) f12.2)
Borrowings due within one year (8.8) 8.8

Bomrowings due after one year (343.4) {343.4) (360.7)
Trade and other payables’ {402.3) (402.3)
Trade recelvables 337.0 337.0
Investrments 22 8.7 29.9
Qther current financial assets/liebilitins) -
Derivalive assets™ 29 29
___Derivative habiitiss™ (5.7) 7.8) {13.5)
Total (5.7) 4.5 100.9 {419.0} (328.7)

2015

Cash and cash equivelents 114.2 114.2
Bank overdrafts 8.4) 8.4)

Bomrowings due within one yeer (54.1) (54.1) {55.6)

Bormrowings due after one year {200.6) (200.6) {308.3)
Trade and other payablas* (352.8) (352.8)
Trade receivables 201.3 201.3
Ws 18.7 8.3 270
Dearivative assets™ 2.8 28
Derivetive kabiities"** {2.9) 8.0) 8.9)
Total {2.9) {3.2) 132.9 {404.1) (277.3)

*Trade and other payables exclude corparation tax and other tax labilities and includa kabikties of £10.7m (2015: £10.5m) falling due after more than one year.
**Includes nll (2015: £0.2) faling due after mora than one year.

*** Derivative liablities include ablities of £0.7m {2015: £0.3m) faling due after more than one year: £0.7m in 1-2 years and nil in 2-3 years (2015: £0.3m in
1-2 yrs and nil in 2-3 yrs). Derivative liabilities designated at fair valua represent the fair vaiue of net investment hedge derivatives. The increase in value
of net investmeant hedge derivative liablities in the year of £2.8m is shown in the consolidated statement of comprahensive income (net of tax).

There are no other financial liabilities includad within payables disciosed above and finance leases disclosed in Section 4.4.5.2.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont'd)

The following table shows the Group's financial instruments held at fair value.

Quoted prices in
active markets Significant
for idenical other
gsseisand  observable Unobservable
fgblies inputs npuis
Level ¥ Lovel 2 Levet 3 Toal
m £m m m
As at 31 December 2010
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity instrurmeants® 21.2 .2
Cash and cash equivalents 79.7 n7
Forsign curency forward contracts 29 29
100.9 2.9 - 103.8
Financial liabllities measured at fair value
Fareign curency forward contracts {13.5) {13.5)
- (13.5) - {13.5)
As at 31 December 2015
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity instruments* 18.7 18.7
Cash and cash equivaients 1142 114.2
Foreign currency forward contracts ! 2.8 2.8
132.9 2.8 - 135.7
Financia! linbilities measured at fair value
Fareign cumency forward condracts - 8.9} {8.9)
- {8.9) - {8.9)

* Equity instruments relate to investments in funds in order 1o satisfy long-lerm benefit armangaments.

Valuation techniques for level 2 inpuls

Derivative assets and labilities of £2.9m and £13.5m respectively ane valued by level 2 techniques. The valuations are derived from discounted contractual cash
flows using observable, and directly relevant. market interest rates and foreign exchange rates from market data providers.

Valuation techniques for lovel 3 inputs
The Group has no financial assets or financial kabilities measured at fair value using significant unobservabie flevel 3) inputs.

4.46.2
Valuation methodology

Cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, trecle peyables and trade receivablas are carried at their book values as this approximales to their fair vaiue due to the
short-term nature of the instruments.

Long-term and short-tenrn borrawings, apart from ary which are subject to hedging amangements, are carmied at amortised cost as 1t is the intention that they will not
be repeid prior to maturity, where this option exists. The feir values are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as imterest rates and relevant credit spreads.

Long-term bormowings which are subject to hadging arangements are valued using appropriate discount rates (o value the relevant hedged cash fiows.

Derivative asests and labiities, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rete swaps and matal hedges, are valued using comparable observed market -
prices and a valuation model using foreign exchange spot and forward rates, interest rate curves and forward rate curves for the underying commadities.

Invesiments ame primarily in publically-quoted pooted funds held 10 fund ovarseas pansion liabilities. The fair value is determined by the unadiustad price quotation
at the reporting date.
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4486.3
Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hisrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financtal instruments by valuation technique:

Leval 1: ouoted (unadiusted) prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liahiities.
Leved 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have & significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant eflect on the recorded far value that are not based on observabie market data.

447
Market risk sensitivity analysis on financial instruments

This section shows how the far value of financial instrumenta presented can change for a given change In market rates.

Thevamsshownhﬂ'uetdalebalmuameslinatesofmempaclonfnancwlrstrwnentsorwﬂwutderlyiwgmksthatﬁasehancnlnﬂmmtshavebeen
acquired to hedge will move in an opposite direction.

4,471

Overview

In estimating the sensitivity of the financial instruments all other variables are held constant to determing the impact on profit bafore tax and equity. The analysis
is for fustrative purposes anly, as in practice market rates rarely change in isolation.

Actual results in the future may differ materially from thess estimates due to the movements m the underlying transactions, actions teken to mitigate any potential
losses, the interaction of more than one sensitivity occurring, and further developments in global financial markets, As such this table should not be considered
as a projection of Bkely krture gains and losses in these financial nstruments.

4.47.2
Financial derivatives sensitivity table

mmnputslromthesamntMtyamlysisareestmatesoN‘neimpactcfmarkemskasswnhqm&aspwﬁeddangesmmlytohﬁumhldumm
and do not reflect the opposite movement from the impact of the specific change on the underlying business that they are designed to hedge.

1% 1% 10% 10%
decrense increase 10% 10% decreassin  increasain
Iy Interest inintrest  weekaning strengthening  besamelal  base metal
rates rates In gtering In stefing costs ©osts
£m £m £m fm £m £m

At 31 December 2016
impact on income statement: loss)/gain - - (2.4) 2.4 {0.9) 0.3
Impact on equity: flossygein - - {87.4) 674 - -

At 31 December 2015

Impact on income statement: (lossygain - - (0.7 0.7 ©0.3) 0.3

Impact on equity: {loss)/gain - - 55.3) 553 : -
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont'd)

4.5
Retirement Benefits

lMIoflersanumbefofdeﬁmdbeneﬁtarrangemantstoempluyeesMuﬁllmtbepaﬂmﬁlmaeﬂ\anayearaﬂﬁ'ﬂwmdenmmWarew for
exampie pension benefits, jublss plans, post-employment and other long-term employee benefit arrangements.
There s a significant degree of estimation involved in pradicting the ultimate benefits payable under thess defined benefit arrangemenits i respect of which

the Group holds net liabiities on s balance sheet. This section explains how the value of these benefits payable and any assets funding the arrangements are
accountsd for in the Group financial statements and gives details of the key assumptions upon which the estimations are based.

Assets and babilities for definad contribution arrangements are minimal as they relate solely to short-term timing differences between the period during which
benafits have accrued and when contributions ane paid into schemes.

Definad contribution {'DC'): Arangements where the employer pays fixed contributiona into an extemal furxd on behalf of the employes (who is responsible for
making the investment decision and therefore assumes the risks and rewards of fund performance). Coniributions to these armangements are recognised in the
income statement as incurred.

Defined beneft ('0B'): A defined benefit pansion plan is a pension arrangement in which the employer promises a specifisd annual benefit on retirement that

is predetermined by a formula based on the employsa's earnings history, fenure of service and age, rather than depending directly on individua! investment
retums. In some cases, this benefit is paid as a lump sum on leaving the Company or while in the service of the Company rather than as a pension. The Group
underwrites one or more rigks m meeting these obfigations and tharsfore any net fabifity or surplus in these arrangements is shown on the Group baisnce sheet.

451
Summary information

Net pension dsficit: £78.8m (2015: surplus of £4.4m)

The net pension deficit or ‘net kability for defined benefit obligations’ ('DBO') at 31 December 2016 was £79.8m (2015: surplus of £4.4m). The assets and liabiities
of the schemes are aggregated, recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and shown within non-current kabiliies or in non-current assets if a schame is in
surplus and it is recoverable.

Number of defined benefit arvangements: 83 (2015: 63)

The number of defined benefit arrangements remained constant foflowing the recognition of an additional scheme i Germany, offset by the wind-up of a scheme
in Raly.

The following table shows a summary of the gecgraphical profile of the Group's DBOs:

Suplus/
Quanbty | Ouantty Assets D8O {doticit)
2016 2138 £m £m £m
Australia 2 2 - ©.4 04
Austna 8 6 - @2) Q.
France 3 3 0.1 1.3) 0.3
Germany 28 27 6.0 156.5) {50.5)
ndia 6 B - ©.6) 0.8
ltaly 5 -] - 2.9 (2.9
Spain 2 2 - o) ___(©1)
Ewitzerdand 5 5 20.2 (103.2) 23.0)
us* 3 3 - @1.5) 21.5)
UK 3 3 14230 (1,400.3) 23.0
53 63 1,5610.2  (1,500.0) [79.8)

* Tha US deficit above excludes £21.2m of assets relating 10 unquakfied plans classified as investrments (gee Section 4.4.6).
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The Group provides pension benefits through a mixture of fundad and unfurnded
defined banefit and defined contribution {'DC") arrangsments, aithough its
stralegy is to move away from defined benafit arrangerments towards defined

contribution arrangements wherever pessible to minimise the kebility of the Group.

Assessmenis of the obligations of the defined benefit plans are carried out by
indapendent actuaries, basad on the projected unit cradit method. An historical
spik of the types of defined benefit schemes in operation is as follows:

% %
of total of total
Qty Assels assels D8O fabiktias
Type of scheme No., £m % £m %
208
Final salary* 21 1,424.0 M% 1,459.8 2%
Cash balance™ 10 B0.2 5% 106.1 7%
Jubilee™ 14 - 0% 2.8 0%
Other 18 6.0 0% 7.5 1%
Total 1,510.2 100% 1,580.0 100%
2015
Final salary* 21 1,273 4 95% 1,233.0 92%
Cash balance™ " 668.3 5% B9.4 7%
Jublea™* 13 - 0% 2.0 0%
Other 18 5.0 0% 168.¢ 1%
Total 1,348.7 100% 1,341.3 100%
Asset Celiing 0.2)
1,348.5

Revisad assels

* Finat salary scheme: The pension available to & rember in & final salary
amangement will ba a proportion of the member’s salary at or around thelr
retirernend dete. This proportion will be determined by the member's length
of pensionable service, their accrual rate and any particutar circumstances
under which the member retires (for example early ill-health retirernent).

** Cash balance: A cash balance scheme is a form of defined benafit pansion
under which the membar has the right to a defined (ump sum on retirement
rether than a definred amount of pension mecelvable. For axampile a cash balanca
plan may have minimum or guaranteed rates of retum on pension contributions.
The amourt of pansion o which that lump sum may be converted is determined
by the annuity rates prevaling at the time of conversion.

*= Jubliles: Jubilee plans provide for cash award payments which are based
on complated lengths of senvice. These paymerds are often made on osssation
of service with the Company, subject to & minimum period of service.

Azset profile of schemes

The following table sets out the profie of the overal assets of the schemas

(to give an indication of their sisk profile}, the comparative amounts of the funded
and unfunded DBO and a spiit of the balance sheet Impact between schemes
with a net pension sumpius and a net pension deficit.

2016 208
£m £m
Quoted equities 344 77.8
Quoted bonds 688.3 661.8
Total quoted assets 722.7 7396
Private equities 114.4 923
Insurance policies* 5264 2739
iMI Scottish Limited Partnership 18.0 174
Hedge funds 14.1 142.7
Property 20.8 30.1
Other** 85.5 50.3
Total unquoted assats 787.5 606.7
Fair value of assets 1,510.2 1,348.3
Reastriction due to assat celling - 0.2}
DBOs for funded schemes 15128 (1.277.9
DBOs for unfunded schemes are  ©49
Net surplus/ {deficit) for DBOs (79.8) 4.4
Schemes in net pension deficit (137.6) {84.3)
Schemaes in net pension surplus 57.8 88.7

*The fair values assigned to the insurance policies are established by
an independent third party actuary having regard 1o the liabilities insured
and in particular the 1AS 19 discount rate, the expected pension increases
and the assumed life expectancy of the members covered.

*'Other' assets inchude the market value of interest, inflation, equity and
curmency swaps relating 10 UK scheme assets and liabilities.

The overseas assets of £86.3m (2015: £73.2m) comprise equities of
£34.4m (2015: £12.5m}, bonds of £25.2m (2015: £22.2m), insurance of
£7.6m (2015: £28.8m), property of £15.1m (2015: £6.5m) and other assets
of £4.0m (2015: £3.2m).

Funded: The majority of the Group defined benefit and other post-employment
bensfit arangements are fundad, which means they are linked 1o specific plan
assets that have been segragated in a trust or foundation.

Unfunded: Plans that are not funded are those that ane not backed by segregated
assels, These include some pension plans bt also a number of other long-term
arrangements for the benefit of our employees, with benefils payable whie they
are employad by the Group but more than 12 months after the related service

s rendeved. Actuarial geing and losses on other long-term amangemsnts are
recognised in the income staternent in the pariod in which they arise.

Average duration by geography
The following table shows the weighted average number of years {or duration)
over which pension benefits are expected 10 be paid: ’

Location Years
UK 15.9
Switzerand 19.4
USA 9.2

Eurozone 155
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(cont'd)

452
The UK and overseas pension funds

4521
The UK Funds

The United Kingdom constitutes 88% (2015: 88%) of total defined benefit
Kabilties and 94% {2015; 95%) of total defined benefit assets. Historically the
IMt Pension Fund offerad final salary benefits to UK employees until K closed o
new antrants in 2005 and to future accrual on 31 December 2010, In Decermber
2014 winding-up proceduras commanced and those mernbers who were not
aligible or did not take up the offer of a single cash lump sum transferred to
one of two new Funds (IMI 2014 Pensioner Fund or the IMI 2014 Deferred
Fund - 'the UK Funds'). Ongoing pension benefits in the UK are provided

via the Trustee's defined contribution plan - The IMI Retirement Savings Plan.
Al U pension assets ane run on behalf of the Trustee by the Board of the

IMI Commaon wvestment Fund.

The Tiustee has determined an imvestiment objective to achiave, over time,
a position of seif-suficiency, defined using a discount rate of gits + 0.25% and
at tha March 2016 valuation the UK Funds were 91.8% fundaed on this lavel.

Asget allocation

The Tiustes has, over recent valuations, continued 1o reduce asset voletiity
and sensitivity to UK Interest rates, infiation and foreign cumencies. This work
continued in 2016 with the purchase of a further £308.5m of insurance poicies.
On 31 Jarwiary 2017 approximatsly E430m of Sabilitias coverad by nsurence
poficies were permanently transfered to the underlying nsurance companies
through a forrral buy-out transaction. This resulted in the pension asset ard
comasponding DBO being removed from the balance sheet, This impact has
not bean reflected in the 2016 financials but will be in the 2017 interim rasults.

Liability management

The Trustee has continued 10 undertake, where practicable liability management
programs. in Decamber 2014 over 2,500 members (£25.2m of payments)
acceptad either minimal cormmutation payments or winding-up lump sums as
full settiemant of thair pension. in summer 2015 a furthar trivial commstation
exercise was carviad oul with a further £10.1m of settements. in Juna 2016,

a Pension increase Exchange exercise was camied out which allowed
pensioners 10 incraase their cument monthly INcome in return for removing
part or all of their annual inkiationary increases. This exercise resulted in a
gross seftiament gain of £7.6m (see Section 2.2.3).

Contributions

The racovery plan from the 2011 valuation agreed annual contributions of
£16.8m until 20156, The Trusiee agreed, as part of the 2015 valuation, the
payments for 2015 and 2016 wera not 1o be paid and instead a coritingant
contribution plan was agreed for the IMI 2014 Pensioner Fund, The amount
of contributions due, if any, will depend on asset performance over the next
three triennial valuations with contributions payabile where asset returns are
less than 1.5% over gilts. The maximum amounts payable, where asset returns
are less than or equal 10 0.7% over gits would be:

£13m due 30 June 2019

£12m due 30 Juna 2022

£12m due 30 June 2025

4522
Overseas pension funds

Following the 2015 Swiss schemne mengers, two of our Swiss schemes were
overfundad. As a result, assets were distributed 1o members in excess of
their current DBO, resulting in an exceptionat loss of £4.7m. Folowing the
continugtion of a restructuring exercise in Switzerand, a curtaliment gain
of £1.5m was realised.

Following the deduction of associated fees of £0.1m, these events led
1o the special pension events which are classified as excentional items
(see Section 2.2.3).

453
Specific effect on financial statements

The cormesponding entries for increases and decreases in the net pension

deficit raported in the balance sheet are reflected as follows:

+ Cash flow statement: When the Group makes cash contributions 1o fund
the deficit they are reflected in the cash flow statement and reduce the net
deficil/increase the net surphss.

* Income statement: Movemenis in the overall net pension deficit are
racognised in the income statement when they retate to changes in the
ovarall pansion promise, due to either an additional period of service
{xnown as ‘current service cost'), changes to pension ferms in the scheme
rules (known as ‘past sarvice cost’}, or closure of afl or part of & scheme
known gs settiements and curtailments), The interest charge/income on
the net deficit/surplus position is also recognised in the income statement.

» Other comprehensive income {"OCI}:: Movements in the overall net
pension deficit are recognised through OCI when they relate to changes in
actuarial assumptions or the diference {'experiance gain or loss’} between
pravious assumptions and actual results.

The table below reconciles the movement in the UK and overseas defined
benaft surplus/iobligation) between 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016.

UK Overseas Towd
£m £m &m
Net defined benefit surplus/{obligation)
at 1 January 2016 B88.7 84.3) 4.4
Movement recognised in: .
Income statement 10.9 (12.4) {1.5)
[s2¢] (76.1) (16.8) (93.0)
Cash flow statement 0.1 10.2 103
Net defined benefit surplus/obligation)
at 31 December 2018 23.6 {103.4) (79.8)




Anhual Report and Accounts 2016

17

4531
Cash flow impacts
2016 2015

UK Overveas Total K Overseat Total

m [+ fm £m £m £m
Amounts from employees - 2.5 2.5 - 28 28
Amounts from employers 0.1 4.9 50 - 52 52
Benefits and settlements paid directly by the Group - 5.3 5.3 - 45 4.5
Tatal 0.1 127 128 - 125 125

The expected contributions (o the defined benefit arangements in 2017 are £3.0m of normal employer contributions and £2.4m of nonmal employee contributions,

both in relation 10 overseas pension funds.

453.2
Other comprehensive income

Movements in pension assets and liabiities thet arise during the year from changes in ectuarial assumptions, or because actual experienca is different from the
underlying actuariat assumptions, are recognised In equity via other comprehensive income. These movements are analysad below:

2016 " 2015
Overseas Owverseas Overspas Overseas
post nom-post post non-post

UK smployment employment Total UK  employment  smployment Totad

m £m £m fm n £m £m m
Change in discount rate {203.2) (8.8} - 212.0) 28.2 28 - 310
Change in inflation {43.0) 24 - (40.6} - 0.4 - 0.4
Change in other assumptions 4.3} 0.9 - 3.4} {8.0) 0.9 - {7.1)
Actuarial expaerisnce 6.5 1.2 - 1.7 38 2.6 - 200
Assat experience 167.9 20 - 168.9 (25.9) 0.5 - {25.4)
Actuarial gaina/{losses) in the year {76.1) (2.3) - (78.4) 259 2.0 - 27.9
Change in the ssset ceiing - Q.2 - 0.2 - 0.1) - 0.1}
Exchange gains/losseas) - (13.0) (1.8) (14.8) - 0.1 {0.1) -
Gains/(losses) recognised through equity {76.1) {15.1) (1.8) (83.0) 259 2.0 {0.1} 278
Ml takas advice from independent actuaries regarding the appropriateness of the assumptions used to determing the present value of the dsfined benefit
obligations. These assumptions include the discount rate applied to the assels and liabitties, the life expectancy of the membars, their expecied salary and
pension increases and inflation. The assumptions usad for this purpose in these financial statements are summarised balow:

Weightad Averapes
3 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dac 2014
UK Overssas UK Overseas UK Overssas
% pa % pa % pa % pa % pa % pa

Inftation - RPY 34 n/a 3.1 na 3.1 n/a
Infiation - CPi 24 1.2 21 15 2.1 1.7
Discount rate 2.6 1.4 3.7 1.7 38 2.1
Expacted salary increases 2.2 14 25 1.7 n/a 2.2
Rate of pansion increaseas 3.4 0.4 3.1 0.4 3.1 0.3
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16 2015 2014
Years Years Years

Life sxpectancy at age 85 (UK Funds only}
Current male pansioners 21.2 211 212
Curment female pensioners 24.1 240 240
Future male pensioners 23.3 232 23.0
Future female pensionsrs 264 26.3 250

The mortality assumptions used for the UK Funds above reflect its scheme specific exparience, together with an allowance for improvements over time. The experience
was reviewed as part of the formal tnennial actuarial valuation camied out as at 31 March 2014, and the essumptions used as 8t 31 Decernber 2016 and 2015 reflect

the resuits of this review,

The table below Bustrates how the UK Funds’ net pension surplus would decresse  The table below shows how the nat pension deficit for IMI's non-UK plans
{excluding the impact of infiation rate and intenest rate hadging), as at 31 December  woukd increase, in the event of the following reasonable changes in the key

2018, in the event of tha following reasonable changes in the key assumplions above.  assumptions above.

UK Non-UK

Discount rate 0,1% pa lowes £17.0m  Discount rate 0.1% pa lower £3.1m
Inflationinked persion increases 0.1% pa higher £10.5m  Salary increases 0.1% higher 0.5m
Increase of one year in Me expactancy from age 65 £32.9m Increase of one year in life expectancy at age 65 £3.2m
109 fall in non-bond-iike asseis** £21.4m

‘ﬂisismimwmimsemiﬁvity.
** Fund assats excluding cash, bonds, insurance policies and the Funds’ interest
in the IMI Scottigh Limited Partnership.

4.5.33
Income statement

In accordance with IAS 19, pension costs recorded through the income stetement prmariy represent the increase in the defined benefit obligation based on
employee service during the year and the interest on the net iability or surplus for definad benefit obligations in respect of employes service in previous years.
Tha table balow shows the total cost reportad in the income statement in respect of pension obligations and therefore also Includes the cost of DC schemes.

In sach case all other assumptions are unchanged.

M6 2015
Overoess Overseas Oversoas Overseas
post NOA-post post nan-post
UK employment employment Total UK empioyment employment Toral
om £m &m £m £m £ om fm
Current service cost - 5.1 1.5 8.8 - 50 0.9 59
Past service cost/{cradit) 7.6) 4.7 - {2.8) - - - -
_Sﬂ!lement/aﬂailm - (1.5) - {1.5) 0.2} 9.7) 0.1 9.8)
Recognition of losses/gains) - B 0.4 04 - - {1.5) 1.5)
DC employer contributions - - - - 35 4.1 - 7.6
Pension (income)/expense - operating costs (7.8) 8.3 1.9 2.8 33 0.8) {0.5) 2.2
Interest on DBO 42.7 27 0.4 458 438 4.1 0.4 483
Interest on assels (46.0) {0.9) - (46.9) (46.3) (2.2) - {48.5)
Interest {income)/axpense - financing costs C(3.9) 1.8 0.4 1.1) {2.5) 1.9 0.4 {0.2)

During the year a Pension Increase Exchange exercise was carmied out which aliowed UK pensioners to increase their current monthly income in refurn for removing
part or all of their annual infletionary increases. This resutted in a gross sattiement gain of £7.6m. Following the 2015 Swiss scheme mergers, two of gur Swiss
schemes were ovarfunded. As a result, assets were distributed to members in excess of their current DBO, resufting in an exceptional loss of £4.7m. Following the
continuation of a restructuring exercise in Switzerland, a curtailment gain of £1.5m was also realised. Faes of £1.6m ware incurred as part of thase events, resuiting

in & nat gain from special pansion evants of £2.8m in the income statement.
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454
Overall reconciliation of changes in the net surplus/(iiability) for defined benefit obligations

2018 2015
Net defined Net defined
Defined benefit Definad benefit
benefit Asset asoet/ benefit Assst #sset/
obligation Aagots celling Mabitty) |  obigation Assots caling (abity)
£m £m £m fm £m £m £m £m
Brought forward at start of year (1,361.7)  1,346.3 0.2) 44 | 15104 14758 0.1 34.7)
Current service cost (6.6) - - {6.6) {5.0) - - {5.9)
Past sarvice cost 29 - - 29 - - - -
Settlement/curtiaiimant 5.0 (3.5) - 15 108.2 (08.4) - 0.8
Nst interest (cost)income on net defined benefit
{liabiityyasset {45.8) 46.9 - 1.1 (48.3) 485 - 0.2
Immeciate recognition of gains/losses) {0.4) - - {0.4) 1.5 - - 1.5
Total credited/(charged) to income statement (44.9) 434 - {1.5) 55.5 {49.9) - 5.6
Actuarial gain due to experience 7.7 - - 1.7 29.0 - - 20.0
Actusarial (loss)/gain due to financial assumption changes (252.6} - - {252.6) 23.7 - - 23.7
Actuarial (oss)/gain due to demographic
sssumption changes 3.4 - - 3.4) 0.6 . - 0.6
Retumn on plan assets* greater/lower) than discount rate - 169.9 - 168.9 - 25.4) - (25.4)
Change in effect of asset celling - - 0.2 0.2 - - {0.1) (0.1}
Total remeasuraments raecognised in other
comprehensive income {248.3) 169.9 0.2 {78.2) 53.3 25.4) {D.1) 27.8
Employer contrioutions - 5.0 - 5.0 - 5.2 - 5.2
Employea contrioutions 2.5) 25 - - 28 28 - -
Benefits and settiemants paid directly by the Group 5.9 - - 53 45 - - 45
Benefits paid from plan assets 703 {70.3) - - 68.0 68.0) - -
Net cash outflow/(inflow) T3 {62.8) - 10.3 69.7 60.0} - 9.7
Acquisitions - - - - (4.0 - - (4.0)
Changes In exchange rates 28.2) 13.4 - {14.8) (5.8) 5.8 - -
Total other movements (28.2) 134 - (14.8) {9.9) 5.8 - {4.0)
Canied forward at end of year {1,5690.0) 1.510.2 - {70.8) | (1.341.7) 1,348.3 {0.2) 4.4

* Net of asset managament costs
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d)

4.6
Share capital

The ordinary sharaeholders of the Group own the Company, This section shaws how the total nurnber of ordinary shares in issue has changed during the
year and how many of these ordinary shares are held as treasury shares or in Employee Benefit Trusts, 1o be used 1o satisfy share options and awards to
directors and employees of the Company, as part of employee share ownership programmes. This section also sets out the dividends pald or proposad
to be paki to shareholders.

4.6.1
Number and value of shares
2018 2015
Orcii\uy Ordinary
Sharss Shares
28 4/7p per 28 4/7p per
share shers
. Number fm)  Vatue (Em) | Number{m}  Vaiue fm)
In issue at the start of the year 286.2 81.8 286.0 81.7
Issued to satisfy employee share schemss - - 0.2 0.1
In issue at the end of the year 2886.2 81.8 286.2 81.8

All issued share capilal at 31 December 2016 Is fully paid and convays the same rights.
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46.2
Share movements in the year

Movemants in shares due 10 share issues and purchases during the year were as follows:

MNumber of ordinary shares of 28 4/7p sach (rmilion)

Empioyes
Boneft Trust Treasury Other Total
In issue at 31 December 2015 0.9 14.3 2710 286.2
Naw issues to satisfy employes share scheme awards - - - .
Market purchases 0.8 - 0.8 -
Shares allocated under employee share schemes (0.8} - 0.8 -
At 31 December 2016 0.9 143 Zn.o 286.2

During the year n2 (2015: 0.2m) shares were issued under employee share schemes realising Enil (2015; £0.9m),

Employee Benefit Trust
The Empioyee Banefit Trust made market purchases of a total of 0.8m 2015: rd)) shares with an aggregate market vaiue of £8.0m (2015: £ni) and a nomina!
value of £0.2m (2015: Enil). Associated transaction costs amounted to Endl (2015: £nil).

Share optiohs exarcised in 2016 were sattled using the shares in the Group’s Employee Benefit Trust. In 2016 0.8m (2015: 0.8m) shares wers issued
for cagh of £0.6m {2015: £2.9m).

Of the 15.2m {2015: 15.2m) shares held within retained eamings, 0.8m (2015: 0.9m) shares with an aggregate markst value of £9.4m (2015: £8.0m)
are held in trust to satisfy empioyee share schema vesting.

463
Dividends

After the balance sheet date the following dividencis wers proposed by the directors. The dividends have not been providad for and there are no income
tax consequences.

2018 2015

£m &m

Current yaar final dividend - 24,7p per qualifying ordinary share (2015: 24.5p) 7.0 68.4
The following dividends were declared and paid by the Group during the year:

2ame 2015

£m £m

Prior year final dividend peid - 24.5p per qualifying ordinary share (2014 finel year dividend: 24.0p) 66.3 649

Cuirant year interim dividend paid - 14.0p per qualifying ordinary share (2015: 13.9p) 37.9 376

104.2 1025
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d)

4.7
Share-based payments

The Group uses share option schemas o reward and retain its employees. The estimated cost of awarding these share oplions is charged to the income
statement over the period that the Group benefits from the employees’ services. This cost is then added back to retained eamings, to reflect that there is
no overall impact on the Group's balance sheet uril the shares are issued to the empioysaes when the options ane exercised.

The indviduat share option schemes, the number of options outstanding under each of them, the estimated cost of these options recognised in the income
statemsant and the assumptions used in arriving at this estimated cost are described in this section,

4.7.1
Qutstanding share options

At 31 Decamber 20186, options to purchase ordinary shares had been granted 1o, but not yet exarcised by, participants of M share option schemes as follows:

Oate of Number

grant of shares Price Dates from which exercisable
IMI Sharesave Scheme 06.04.11 363 849.02p 01.068.16
10.04.12 25163  890.01p 01.08.17
05.04.13 32,500 11968.50p 01.08.16 or 01.08.18
06.05.14 25,08 1384.02p 01.08.17 or 01.08.19
05.08.15 84,554 1075.32p 01.08.18 or 01.08.20
200416 212213 845.10p 01.08.19 or 01.08.21
_ _ 380,392
Giobal Employee Share Purchasa Plans 1912 11 1,312 849.02p 01.08.16
10.04.12 672 8080.01p 01.08.17
01.08.15 57,110 811.52p 01.08.17
15.08.16 35633 948.60p 15.08.18
94,727
IMI incentive Plan 070515 714,216 - 07.05.17 or 07.05.18
09.03.16 1,174,352 - 09.03.18 or 09.03.19
1,886,568
IMI Share Option Plan 03.09.00 2580 44083 03.00.12
22,0310 22000 645.00p 22.03.13
230311 235840 ©71.83p 23.03.14
04.05.12 426400 980.67p 04.05.15
27.11.12 14400 1007.33p 27.41.15
12.03.13 426450 1322.70p 12.03.16
10.05.13 10000 1204.33%p 10.05.16
22.10.12 74000 1518.33p 22.10.18
11.03.14 411,323 1467.00p 11.08.17
1,623,402
IMi 2005 Long-term Incentive Plan (also known as Performance Share Plan) 05.04.07 2,146 - 20.03.10
04.04.08 4,500 - 04.04.11
22.10.13 3418 - 221018
1103.14 146888 - 11.03.17
_ 156,762
Share Matching Plan 07.05.10 3.001 - 22.03.13
28.03.11 3,154 - 28.03.14
10.05.12 53,164 - 10.05.15
00.04.13 35,374 - 05.04.16
01.04.14 3227394 - 01.04.17
N7177

Total 4,561,018
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4.7.2
Schemes under which options
are outstanding

The options in the above table relate 1o the following share-basad
payment schames:

M| Sharesave Scheme (‘SAYE")

This schema is open 1o the majority of the Group's UK employees, including
the executive directors, and allows the grant of options to all participants at a
discount of up to 20% below the market price. Such schemes are not subject
to performance conditions and offer tax incentives 10 encourage employees 10
use their own money to purchase IMI shares. SAYE options may be exercisad
within six months of the date they first become exercisable.

Global Employes Share Purchase Plans ['GESPP')

Thess plans were introduced in 2011 for the US and Germany. The German
and US GESPP's offer the opportunity 10 buy shares in M| at a fixed price at

a future date. The German GESPP mirmors the UK Sharesave scheme, with a
minirmum/maxdnmum savings limit per month and corract duration of three to
five yoars. The US GESFP also operates in a similar way to the UK Sharesave
Scheme, with & minimum/maximum savings limit per month, but the contract
duration is for a fixed period of two years and different taxation conditions apply
for the exercise period. No further awards are imtendied to ba granted under the
German GESPP.

IMI| Share Option Plan {*SOP?}

Shars option awards were made from 2009 to selected senior managers
and certaln other employees under the SOP. Thase awards are not subject
10 performance conditions, but gre subject 1o a three year vesting period.
The purpose of the SOF is to give selacted IMi employees {who are not
executive directors of the Company) the opportunity to share in the benefits
of share price growth and 1o increase their Il sharehalding.

IMI 2005 Long-term incentive Plan (also known as Performance
Share Plan (‘P8P)

Awerds have been granted 1o the Company’s executive directors and selected
senior managers within the Group. Awards have been granted sublect to
stretching performance targets, the nature of which differs depending upon
the year in which the award was granted. No further awards can be granted
under the PSP,

4,7.3
Other share-based payment arrangements

The Group also operates the following employee share plans:

Share Matching Plan {SMP’)

The delivary of the axacutive directors’ and selected senior managers' annual
bonuses is governed by the indhidual's achievement of a Share Ownership
Guideiine ('SOG". The SOG is & requirement to hold a percentage of salary as IMI
shares and, if achieved, any bonus is paid in cash. The SMP has been operated
on the basis that ¥ the SOG is not echieved a proportion of any annual bonus
will be mandatorlly defered for three years and dealiverad in IMi shares under the
SMF. This mandated investment {if the SOG is not echieved) has been matched
from 75% up to a maximum of 200%. Thesa matching shares can be eamed if

Qualifying amployees have also been able to alect voluntarily to defer all or part
of the remainder of their bonus, and invest personal funds, up 10 a maximum
of 100% of their anmtal bonus opportunity. Additional shames, in the form of

& malching award, may be earned up to 8 maximum of 200% of the ‘gross
equivalert’ number of shares investad in the SMP) if performance conditions
over the three year vesting period ame met.

The performance measures for SMP matching awards differ depending upon
the year in which the award was granted. No further awards can be granted
under the SMP.

Share Incentive Plan {'SIP")

The SIP s open to the majority of the Group's UK employees, including

the executive directors. This scheme covers two separaie opportunities for

amployees to share in IMI's success as foflows:

+ Partnership shares - allow employees to invest up to the statutory maximum
from pre-tax pay, which is used to buy M| shares.

« Free shamas — alows a grant of sharas Lo employees sach year, up 1o the
statutory maximum.

Shares acquired or awarded under the SIP are not subject to parformance
conditions and offer tax incentives to encourage employees 10 build up their
shareholdings with the Company.

The IMI Incentive Plan (‘NP

In Bght of the expiry in 2015 of both the PSP and SMP, the |IP was infroduced
to act as the Company's sole senior executive long-ierm incentive plan. The
{IP acts as an umbrela plan which allows the Company to grant difierent types
of award {o different employes groups in an efficient way. The P is to be usad
annually to grant 'Performance Share Awards' in respect of ordinary shares
to the executive directors and other members of senior management subject
10 performance conditions. The IIP will also be used annually 1o gramt ‘Bonus
Share Awarda® below board laval. The lIP also gives the Company the ability
to grant ‘Restricted Stock Unit Awards' and 'Share Options'. It is currently
Imended that Restricted Stock Unit Awards and share options will only be
granted in response to specific business requirements.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(cont’d) -

4.7.4
Options granted during the year

Numberof  Weightad
options average Norrmal
granted opion  exercisable

{thousard) price date

SAYE
2015 227 1075p 2018-2020
2018 227 845p 2019-2021
GESPP
2015 68 912p 2017
2016 36 949p 2018
ne
2015 783 - 2007-2018
2016 1,238 - 2018-2019
4,75
Movement in outstanding options in the year
Options.
grasited st
Qptions not grantad at nil cost & nll cost® Total
Number of Weightad Numberof  Number of
options Range of averags aptions eptions
fihousand)  opdion pricas _oplion price fthousend} _ (thousand))
at 1 January 2015 2,702 201-1518p 1157p 2,857 5,550
Exercisable at 1 January 2015 368 201-972p 862p 508 876
Granted 283 912-1075p 1038p 783 1,076
Exercised 382  201-1384p 858p 487 869
Lapsed 305 201-1467p 1230p 561 ei
Outstanding at 31 December 2015 2,308 441-1518p 11800 2,592 4,900
Exercisable at 31 December 2015 814 441-1007p 961p 853 1,467
Granted 263 845-948p 850p 1,238 1,501
Exercised 1090 511-1197p 889p 641 750
Lapsod 363 BAS-1467p 177p 727 1,080
Qutstanding at 31 December 2016 2,080 441-1518p 11568p 2,462 4,561
Exorcisable at 31 Decomber 2016 1,236 441-1518p 1128p 105 1,341

™ Options not granted at nil cost include options granted under the following schemes: IMI Sheresave Schemae, Global Employee Share Purchase Pians

and IMI Shara Option Plan.

@ 0ptions granted at ni cost are those gramed under the Performance Share Pian, Share Malching Plan and IMI Incentive Plan.
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476
Share-based payment charge for the year

The total expense recognised for the year ariging from share-based payments
was £5.8m [2015: £1.1m) which comprises a charge of £13.5m {2015: £12.9m)
for the year offset by a credit of £7.7m {2015: £11.8m) in respect of lapses.

£3.9m (2015: £3.5m) of the total charge and £2.4m (2015: £4.2m) of the total
cradit is in respact of options granted to directors.

4.7.7
Share-based payment valuation methodology

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted are
measured by reference to the fair vatue of share options granted, based on
a Black-Scholas option pricing model. The assumptions used for grants in
2016 included a dividend yield of 4.7% (2015: 3.4%), expectad share price
volatiity of 23% (2015: 22%), a weighted average expected Iife of 3.4 years
(2015: 3.5 years) and a weighted average interast rate of 0.5% (2015: 0.6%).
The expected volatiity is wholly based on the historical volatility (caksulated
based on the weighted average remaining ife of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatiity due to publicly avalieble information.

478
Other share-based payment disclosures

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 is 6.84 years {2015: 6.87 years)
and the weighted average fair value of share options granted in the ysar
at their grant date was £7.75 (2015: £9.15).

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share
options exercisaed during the year was £9.34 (2015: £11.90).

4.8
Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are reconded as reciuctions from the income and
ecuity racorded in the Group's financial statements. In accordance with IFRS,
these arise bacause if the Group controls an operation, it accounts for that
operation as if the Group wene the only party holding an interest in it, but in
spite of this control, when other parties have an interest in the operation,
that interest should be reflected.

The deduction from income and equity therefore reflects the reduction in

the Group’s intenest resufting from the thind party's interest,

Shanghai

cCi SLP Total

m £m m
Non-controlling irterests as at
1 January 2018 2.1 40.7 428
Profit for the year attributabis to
non-controlling interests {0.4) 28 2.4
Dividends paki to
non-controliing interests {0.8) - {0-8)
income samed by partnership - (4.4) (4.4)
2016 movement in non-controlling
Interest 1.2 (1.6} (2.8)
Non controlling interest as at
31 Dscember 2016 0.9 39.1 40.0

Tha non-controliing interest denoted Shanghai CCl in the above teble represents
the 30% ownership interest in the ondinary shares of Shanghei CCl Power Control
Equipment Co Limited held by Shanghal Power Station Awxiliary Equipment
Works Co Limited.

The non-controlling interest dencied SLP relates 10 an interest in the IMI
Scottish Limited Partniarship which is held jcintly by the Funds and provides

the Funds with a conditional entitiement 10 receive income of £4.4m per annum
unlsss the Group has not paid a dividend in the prior year or the Funds are

fully funded.
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Section 5 ~ other notes

5.1
Contingent liabilities

A contingent llability is a liabllity that |s not sufficiently certain to qualify for
recognition as a provision because significant subjectivity exists regarding
Its outcome.

Group contingent labilities relating to guarartees in the normal course of
business and other tems amounted to £208m (2015; £161m).

5.2
Related party transactions

Related parties are solaly the key management personnel. The Board is
considered to be the key management personnel of the Group.

2018 2015

fm rn

Shaort-term amployee benefils” 4.7 4.8
Share-based payments™ 1.6 {0.7)
Total 6.2 3.9

* Short-term employee benefits comprise salary, inchuding empioyers’ social
contributions, benefits earmed during the year and bonuses awarded for the year.

** For details of the shared based payment {creditycherge for key management
personnel, see Section 4.7.6.

There are no other related party transactions.

53
Subsequent events

Evenis that occur in the period between 31 December and the date of
approval of the Annual Report can be cetegorised as adjusting or non-adjusting
depending on whether the condition existed at 31 December. If the event is an
adjusting evant, then an adjustment 1o the results is made. if a non-adjusting
event after the year end is malerial, non-disclosure could influence decisions
that readlers of the financial statements make. Accordingly, for each material
non-adiusting event after the reporting period we disclose the nature of the
event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an
estimate cannot be made.

Thare weane no adjusting subsequent events after the balance sheet date of 31
December 2016. As notad in Section 4.5.2.1, on 31 January 2017 approximately
£430m of labilitias covered by insurance policies wers permanently transferred
to the underlying insurance compantes through a formal buy-cut transaction,

This resulted in the pension asset and comesponding DBO being removed from -

the balance sheet. This impact has not been reflected in the 2016 financials but
will be in the 2017 interim resufts.

54
Significant accounting policies

A. Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

The Group financial statements conscfidate the financial statements of Ml plc
and the entities it controls (its subsidianies) for the year to 31 December.
Thi Group has no significant inlerests which are accounted for as associales
or joint ventures as at 31 December 2016.

Subsidiaries are conschdated from the date of ther acquisition, being the date on
which the Group oblains control, and continue to be consslidated untll the date
that such control ceases. Control comprises the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the investee so as to obtain benefit from its activities and is
achieved through direct or indirect ownership of voling rghts; currently exercisable
or convertible potential voting rights; or by way of contractual agreemeant. The
financial staterments of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consclidated
financial statements are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent
company and are based on consistent accounting policies. Al intragroup balances
and transactions, ncluding unrealised profits ansing from themn, ane efrminated n .

A changa in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without less of control,

is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group losas control over a

subsidiary, it:

= derecognisas the assets (ncluding any goodwill relating to the subsidiary)
and liabilies of the subsidiary;

+ derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controling interest;

* denecognises the cumulative transtation differences recorded in equity;

* recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

* recognises the fair value of arny investment retained;

* recognises any sumplus or deficit In profit or loss; and

* reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive ncome to profit or 1oss or retained eamings, as appropriate.

Taxation on the above accounting entries would also be recognised
whare applicable.

Non-controiling interests inchude the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly
or indirectly, to the parent company and the UK Funds® interest in the IMI Scotiish
Limited Partnership (‘the Partnership’). Non-controling interests are presented
within equity in the consoiidated balance sheet, separately fom equity attributable
10 owners of the parent. Losses within a subsidiary are proportionally atiributad to
the non-controlling interest even if that resulis in a deficit balance.

B. Use of judgements and estimates

The praparation of financial statements requires management 10 make
judgemaents, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, labiities,
income and expenses, Actual resulis may differ from these estimates.

i. Judgements, estimates and assumptions

Tha key judgements and essumptions concerming the future and other key
sources of eslimation uncertainty af the reporting date that have a significant
risk of causing a material adustmant to the carying amounts of assets and
liabilitees within the nest financial year are described below. The Group bases
its assumptions and estimates on information avallable when the consolidated
financial statements are prepared. Market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the control of the Group are reflecied in the assumptions when they
ocowr. Ravigions 10 accounting estimetes are recognised in the pedod in which
the astimate is revised and in ary future periods affected.

Impairmant of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash genarating wnit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its iair value less costs
1o sell and its value in use. The value in use is based on a discounted cash flow
model. Cash flows are derived from the Group's long-term forecasts for the next
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three to five years. The principal assumptions in these calculations are the
long-term growth rates and the discount rate appled to forecast cash flows in
addition to the achievement of the foracasts themselves. Further information
on this process and the assets affected is included in Section 3.2.

Acquired businesses

The Group has over the years acquired a number of businesses. IFRS 3
‘Business Combinations’ requiras the acquired assets 10 be recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date. The valuation of thase acquired assats involves
the use of estimates and assumptions, in particular with respect 1o the valuation
of acquired intangibles for which there are significant unobservable inputs.

Disposed businesses

The Group has over the years disposad of a number of businesses. The sale
agreements contained vanous warmanties and indemnities. In some cases,

the agreements also include the potential for adjusiment 1o the purchase price,
sometimes contingent on future events. At the time of disposal, the accounts
reflect the best estimate of the kkely future impact of these agreements.
Thess sstimates are then regulady reviewsd and provisions are recognisad
where necessary.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settied transactions with smployses

by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they
are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which Is dependent on
the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination
of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected
ife of the share option, volatiity and dividend yiek] and related assumptions.
These assumptions and the models used for estimating feir velue for share-
based payment transactions are disclosed in Section 4.7.

Taxes

Uncertaintias exist with respect 10 the interpretation of complex tax reguiations,
changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taaible income. Given
the wide range ¢f inlemational business relationships and the long-term natue
and complendly of exdsting contractual agreements, dilfferences arising betwean the
actual results and the assumptions made, or fulure changes 1o such assumptions,
could necessitate future edjustmants to the lax income and expense already
recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for
possiie consaguences of audits by the tax authoriies of the respective countries
in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experiance of pravicus tax audits and differing interpretations of tax
reguiations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences
of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depencing an the conditions
pravalling in the respactive domiclle of the Group companies.

Deferred tax assets ane recognisad for unused tax losses to the extent that it
is probable that 1axable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilisad. Significant management judgement is requined 10 determine the amount
of defarmad tax assats thet can ba recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits.

Trading provisions

The Group seiis a wide range of highly technical products and whilst its products
are designed and engineered to a high degree of pracision and o customer
specifications, there will always be a risk of products requiring modification, which
can lead to warranty claims as wel as axcess or cbsolete inventory, collaction nisk
regarding receivables and other trading provisions. Provisions are heid against
these risks, which are estimated based on past experisnce of claims and by
measuring the likely use of inventary in the future against past usage. The degres
of dependence on future everits makes thase estimates inherantly sublective.

Employse benefits

The presant value of the Group's defined benafit pension plans and cther post-
employrment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuaria)
valusation involves maldng various assurmptions that may differ from actual

develocpments in the future, Thesa include the detarmination of the discourt rate,
inflation, future salary increases, mortality ratas and futuns pension increases.
These assumptions, accompanied by sensitvity analysis thereon, are included
in Section 4.5. Dus to the complexity of tha valuation and its long-temn nature,

a defined benafit obligation is highly sensitive 10 changes in these assumptions.

In particutar, although only constituting a minor proportion of the assets,

the valuation of tha UK Funds' interasts in the S¢ottish Limited Parinership

is a highly subjective area because their valuation depends on an actuarial
assessment of the amount a third party might be wiling to pay for the asset,
taking into account the risk thai the associated income stream could either
cease in the event that the two UK Pension Funds both bacame fully funded or
become deferred in any year in which no dividend was paid to the shareholders.

Consolidation of the Scottish Limited Partnership ['SLP’) and inclusion
of the UK Penslon Funds’ interests in this special purpose entity as a
non-controlling interest

In June 2010, the Group made a special contribution 10 the IMI Pension Fung of
£48.6m which the Trustee agreed to invesst in the IMI Scottish Limited Partnership
{'SLP"), an entity contralled by the Group, which conferred upon the Fund
conditional rights to recaive income of £4.4m a year for twenty years, or untl the
Fund becomes fully funded. Cne of the judgemants invaived in this issue was
whether this entity qualified as a Special Purpose Entity and whether the entity
should be consofidated. It was datermined that the entity meets the defintion of a
Special Purpose Entity under IFRS 10 and furthermors, upon consideration of the
criteria in this rterpratation, i was determined that consolidation was appropriate.
The Partnership Agreement includes a clause under which the payments in

the year are defemred in the event that the Group has not paid a dvidend in the
preceding yaar and therefors, because the Group has the ability 1o defer these
payments indafinitely and is in control of the circumstances under which the
amangement ¢an be terminated, the payments envisaged by the agreement ara
discretionary and therefore do not constitute a labifty under IAS 32. As such

the Pension Funds’ intereats in this SLP have been recorded as non-controling
intarests, as a conmponent of equity. During tha prior year the IMI Pension Fund
commanced winding up procedures and the relavart liabilitias were transfermed
to ons of two new funds, IMI 2014 Deferred Fund and IMI 2014 Pansioner Fund
{togather “The Funds®). The interest in the SLP s now held jointly by the Funds.

Develapment costs

Devalopment costs are capitalised in accordance with the criteria set out in IAS
38: intangib¥e Assets. intial capilaksation of costs is based on management's
judgement regarding the technological and commercial feasibility of the asset,
and only when a product development project has reached a point where
such determinations can be mads. In testing these assets for impairment,
management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash
ganeration of the project, discount rates to be applied and the axpected
period of benefits. Further detal is provided in Section 3.2,

C. Revenus Recognition

Revenue i recognised 1o the exient that it is probable that the economic

benetts will flow to the Group and that the revenue can be reliably measured.

The nature of the equipment, valve and othar coniracts into which the Group

enters means that:

« the coniracts usually oontein discrete elements, each of which transfers risks
and rewards to the customer. Where such discrete elements are presant,
mvenue is recognised an sach element in accordance with the policy on
the sale of goods.

« the service element of the contract is usually insignificant in retation to the
total contract value and is ofien provided on a short-term or one-off basis.
Whers this is the case, revenue is recognisad when the sarvice is complate.

As a result of the above, the significant majority of the Group's revenue is
recognisad on a saie of goods basis.
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Section 5 - other notes
{(cont’d)

The specific methods used to recognise the different forms of revenue
earned by the Group are set out below:

i. Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in tha income statement net
of retums, trade discounts and volums rebates when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transfarred to the buyer and rekable
measurement is possible. No reverue is recognised whera recovery of the
consideration is not probable or there are significant uncertainties regarding
associated costs, or tha possible retum of goods.

Transters of risks and rewards vary depending on the nature of the products sold
and the individual terms of the contract of sale. Sales made under internationally
accepted trade terms, Incoterms 2010, are recognised as revenue when the
Group has completed the primary duties required 10 transfer risks as defined by
the International Chamber of Commaerce Official Rules for the Interpretation of
Trade Terms, Sales made outside Incoterms 2010 are generally racognised on
dalivery to the customer. In limited instances, a cuatomer may request that the
Group retaing physical possession of an asset for a period after the significant
risk and rewards of ownership have transferrad to the customer. in thess
circumsiances, the Group provides this storage as a service 10 the customer
and therefore revenue is recognised prior 1o delivary of the asset.

ii. Rendering of services

As noted above, because revenue from the rendering of sarvices is usually
ingignificant in refation to the total contract value and is generally provided
on a short-term or one-off basis, revanue is usually recognisad when the
service is complete.

Whera this is not the cass, revenue from services rendered is recognised in
proportion to the stage of completion of the senvice at the balance sheet date.
The stage of completion is assessed by referencs to the contractual agreement
with each separate customer and the costs incurred on the contract o date

in comparizon to the total forecast costs of the contract. Revenue recognition
commenceas only when the outcome of the contract can be refiably measured.
Installation fees are similarly recognised by reference to the stage of completion
on the installation uniess they are incidental to the sale of the goods, in which
case they are recognised when the goods ane sold,

Whaen a transaction combines a supply of goods with the provision of a
significant service, revenue from the provision of the service is recognised
separately from the revenue from the sale of goods by reference 1o the stage
of completion of the service uniess the sarvice is essentiel 1o the functionality
of the goods supplied, in which case the whole transaction is treated as a
construction contract. Revenue from & servica that is incidental to the supply of
goads is recognised et the same time as the revenue from the supply of goods.

iil. Construction contracts

As noted above, customer contracts usually contain discrete elements
separately transferring risks and rewards to the customar. However, whare
such discrete elements are not in place, revenue from significant contracts is
recognisad in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract by reference
1o the specific contract terms and the costs incurred on the contract to date in
comparison to the total forecast costs of the contract.

Viariations in contract work, clams and incentive payments are included in
revenue from canstruction contracts when certain critaria are met. Varations
are included when the customer has agreed 10 the variation or acknowledged
libility for the variation In principle. Claims are included when negoliations
with the customer have reached an advanced stage such that the customer is
certain to accept the claim, incentive payrments are included whan a contract
is sufficiently advanced that i is probable that the performance standards
triggering the incentive will be achieved.

Profit atiributable to contract activity is recognised if tha final outcome of such
contracts can be refiably assessad. On af contracts, full provision is made for
any losses in the year in which thay are first foreseen.

D. Exceptional items

Exceptional items ama disclosed seperately on the face of the income statement and
excluded in amiving &t reportad resutts, where the quantum, the one-off nature or
wvolatiity of these items would otherwise distort the underlying trading perfornance.

The following iterns of income and expense ams cohsidered to be exceptional

in thesa financial statements:

« Gains and losses (including fair value adjustments) on derivative financial
instruments;

+ Restructuring costs, which comprise significant costs associated with the
closure of activities or factories and the cost of significant reductions in
workforce due to axcess capacity or the reorganisation of facilities. Non-
significant restructuring costs are not disclosad as exceptional ksms;

= Special pension svents, which comprises setitemant gains or losses relating
to tha Group's defined benefit schemes;

* Impainmerd kssas recorded against goodwill, intangible assets and other
operating assets;
= The amortisation of acquired intangible fixed assets;
= Gains or losses on tisposals of subsidiaries;
* Costs associated with acquisitions and disposals, which principally represent:
- Costs payable 1o the legal and financial advisors assisting with the
origination and completion of the transactions; end
- Cantingent consiclamtion paymants, which because they might be forfoited
in some of the instances in which the vandors’ post-acquisition employment
contracts may be terminated, ane requined by IFRS 3 {revised) 1o be treated
as remunaration,
The tax impact of the above items is also shown within exceptional tems.

E. Business combinations and goodwilt

Business combinations are accounted for using the acguisition method.

The cost of an acquisition s measured as the aggregats of the consideration
transferred, measued at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling interast in the acquires. The choice of measuremant of non-
controlling interest, elther at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquinee’s identifiable net assets is determined on a transaction by transaction
basis. Acquisition-related costs incurrad are expensad and includad in
ackministrative expensas unlass their quantum, nature or volatility meets

the definition of an exceptional kem as set out in accounting poficy D,

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
Habiities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordence
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions
as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatves
in contracts heid by the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquiner will be
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsaquent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration which is desmed t0 be a kabiiity wil
be recognised in accordance with IAS 39 elther in profit or loss or in other
comprehengive income. If the contingant consideration is classified as equity,
it is not remeasurad until it is knally settled within equity.

Goodwil is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for the non-controlfiing interest (and where the business combination
is achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquires) over the nel identifiable amounts of the
assets acquired and the liabiities assumed for the business combination.
Assets acquired an liabiities assumed in transactions separata to the
business combinations, such as the settiemeant of pre-existing relationships

or post-acquisition remuneration arangemants are accounted for separately
from the business combination in accordance with their neture and applicable
IFRSs. ldentifable intangible assets are recognised separately from goodwil,
Continger liabilities representing a present obligation are recognised if the
acquisition-date fair value can be reliably measured.
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If the aggregate af the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transfemed
and the amount recognised for the non-controlling iterest (and where the business
combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition-clate fair vale of the acquirer’s
previously held equity irterest in the acquiree) is lower than the fair value of the
assets, labllites and contingent kabilities and the fair value of any pre-existing
interast held in tha business acauined, tha diffsrence is recogrised in profit and boss.

After inttial recognition, goodwill i measured at cost less any accumuleted
impaimment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill ecouired
in & business combinetion is, from the acquisition date, sllocsted 10 each of
the Group’s cash-generating units {or groups of cash generating units) that are
expected 1o beneft from the combination, irespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. Each unit or group of
units 10 which goodwilt is allocatad shall reprasent the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and ghafl not be larger than an operating segment before aggregation.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwil associated with the oparation
disposad of is included in the carrying amount of the cperation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed
of in this circumstance is msasured based on the refative values of the
operation dispoted of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

F. Financial income and expense

Financial income comprises interest receivable on funds invested, income

from investments and gains on hedging instruments that are recognised in the
income statement. interest income is recognised in the income statement as it
accrues, taking into account the effective vield on the asset. Dividend income
is racognised in the incoms statement on the date that the dividend is declared.

Financial expense comprises interest payable on borrowings calculated using
the effective interest rate method, the interest related element of derivatives
and kosses on financial instruments that are recognised in the inoome statement.
The interest expense component of fnance lease payments Is recognised in
the income statement using the effective interest rate mathod.

Net finance expense relating 1o defined benefit pension schemes represents the
assumed interest on the difference between employee benefit plan Kabilities and
the employee benefit plan assets.

Borrowing costs directly attributabie to the acquistion, construction or
production of an asset that necassarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sala are capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensaed in the period they
occwr. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other ¢osts that an entlty incurs
in connection with the bormowing of lunds

G. Income tax

Current 1ax payable/receivable represents the expected tax payable/receivable
on the taxable icome for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date and taking into account any adjiustments
in respect of prior years.

Deterred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on temporary
difierences between the canying amounts of assets and lisbililies for financlal
reporting purposes and tha amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferrad 1ax is
not recognisad for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of
goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabikties in a trangaction that is not
a business combination and that affects netther accounting nor taxable profit,
and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the
timing of ihe revarsa) of the difierences can be controlled and it s probable
that the differences will not revarse in the foresesable future. Delened tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected 10 apply when the temporary
diffarances reverse, based on the tax laws that have been enactad or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognisad to the extent that it is probable that fuiure iaxable
profit will be available against which the temparary difference can be utilised.

H. Non-current assets held for sate and discontinued operations

Where applicable, on Initial classification as *heid for sale’, non-Currert disposal
groups are recognised at the lowar of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Impairment losses on the initial classification of assets as held for sale
are included in profit or loss, even for assets measured at falr value, as are
impairmen logses on subsequent remsasurernent and any reversal thereol.
Once classified as heid for sale, agsets are no longer depreciated or amortised.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business that represents
& separate major line of business that has been disposed of, is held for sale or
is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view o ra-sale.

i. Foreign currencies

i. Foreign currency transactions

Monetary assets and liabifties denominated in foreign currencies have beern
transiated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balanca shaet
date. Foreign exchange differences arising on transiating transactions at

the exchange rate ruling on the transaction date are reflected in the income
statement. Non-monetary assets and liabiltties that are measured at historical
cost in a foreign curmancy are franslated using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and Eabiities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are franslated into sterking at foreign
axchange rates rnuling at the balance shaet date.

ii. Forelgn operations

The income statements of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at
the appropriate average rate of exchange for tha year and the adjustment 1o
year end rates is taken directly to reserves.

The assets and kabikties of foreign operations, inclucing goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are transiated at foreign exchanpe retes
ruling at the balance sheet date.

Foreign exchange differences arising on retransiation are recognised directly
as a separate component of squity. Since 1 January 2004, the Group's date
of transition to IFRSs, such differances have been tecogrised in the translation
roserve, When a foreign operation s disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant
armount in the translation reserve is transferred to profit or joss.

J. Financial instruments and fair value hedging

Financial instruments awe initially recorded at fair value plus directly attributable

transaction costs unless the instrument is a derivative not designatad as a

hadge (sea below]. Subsequent measurement depends on the designation

of the instrument, which follows the categories in IAS 39:

= Fixed deposits, principally comprising funds held with banks and cther
financial institutions are classifiad as ‘avafiable for sale assets’ under IAS 30,
and heid at fak value, Short term barrowings and overdrafts are classified
as financial fabiities at amortised cost.

* Derivatives, cormprising intarest rate swaps, foreign exchange contracts and
options, metals futures contracts and any embedded derivatives, are classified
a5 ‘fair value through profit or loss” under IAS 39, unless designated as hedges.
Darivatives not designated as hedges are initially recognised at fair value;
attributable transaction costs ane recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, changes In fair vatue of such dervaiives
and gains or losses on ther settlement are recognised In net financlal income
OF exXpense.

+ Long-term loans and other interest bearing borrowings are generally held at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Where the long-term
loan is hediged, generally by an interest rate swap, and the hedge is regarded
as effoctive, the canrying value of the long-term loan is adjusted for changes
in falr value of the hadge.

« Trade receivables are stated at cost s reduced by appropriate impairment
allowances for estimated imecoverable amounts.

* Trade payablas are stated at cost,
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Section 5 - other notes
(cont'd)

« Financial assels and liabilties are recognised on the balance sheet only when
the Group becomes a party 10 the contractual provisions of tha instrument.

» Available for sale financial assels are carried at fair value with gains and fosses
being recognised in equity, except for impaimment lossas which ane recopgnised
in the incomea steternent,

K. Other hedging
i. Hedge of monetary assats and liabilities, financial commitments or
forecast transactions

Where a derivative financial instyument & used as an economic hedge of the
foreign exchange or metals commodity price exposure of a recognised monetary
essat or liability, fnancial commitment or forecast transaction, but does not meet
the criteria to qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 39 no hedge accounting is
applied and any gain or lags resulting from changes in ki value of the hedging
instrument is recognised in net financial income or expense.

Where such a derivative is a formally designated hedge of a forecast transaction
for accounting purposes, movements in the value of the derivative ane recognised
directly in other comprehensive income to the extent the hedge is effective. The
Company assesses the effectiveness of the hedge basad on the expected fair
valug of the amount 1o be received and the movement in the fair velue of the
derivative designated as the hedge.

For sagmantal reportng purposas. changes in the fair value of economic hedges
that are not designated hedges, which relate to current year trading, together with
the gains and Iosses on their seftiement, are allocated to the segmental revenues
and operating profit of the relevani business segment.

il. Hedge of net investment in foreign operation

Where a forelgn currency labliity or derivative financial instrument is a formally
designeted hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the foreign currency iabilty or changes in
the fair value of the financial instrument are recognised directly in equity via
other comprehensive income to the extent the hedge is effective. The Group
assesses the effectivaness of its net investment hedges based on fair value
changes ol its net assets, including mievant goodwill designated as foreign
curency assets, and the fair value changes of both the debt designated as

a hedge and the relevant financial instrument.

L. intangible assets

Intangibie assets are further sub-divided in the notes to these sccounts between
acquired intangible assets and non-acquired intangible assets. Amortisation
of acquired intangible assets is treated as an exceptional tem as described in
accounting policy D of these accounting policies, because of its inherent volatiity.
The acoounting palicy for goadwil is described in accounting policy E.

i. Research and development

Expenditure on research activities, undartaken with the prospect of gaining
new sclentific or technical knowledge and understanding, i racognised in
the income statement as an expanse as incurmed.

Expendiure on developmant activities, whereby research findings are applied 1o
& pian or design for the production of new or substantially improved products
and processes, is capitalised provided benefits are probable, cost can be
refiably measurect and if, and only i, the product or process is technicaly and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and intention
1o complete development, The expenditure capitalised inciudes the cost of
materials, direct labour and directly attributable overheads. Other developrment
expenditure is recognised in the incore statement as an expense as incured.
Capitatised development expanciture is stated at cost less accumutated
amoriisation (see below) and impairment losses (see accounting policy
‘impaiment’) and is included in the other acguired or other non-acquined
category of infangible assets depending on its origin,

ii. Software devetopment costs

Software appiications and systems that are not an integral part of their host
computer equipmant are capitaised on Initial recognition as intangible assets
&t cost. Cost comprises the purchase price plus directly attributable costs
incurred on development of the asset 1o bring it into use. Followng initial
recognition, softwere development costs are canied & cost less any accumulated
amortisation (3ee below) and accumutated impaiment losses {see accounting
policy ‘impairment’) and are included in the other acquired or other non-
acquired category of intangible assets depanding on their origin,

iil. Customer relationships and other acquired intangible assets

Custorner ralationships and other intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group as part of a business combination are stated at their fair value calcutated
by referance 10 the net present value of future banefits accnuing to the Group
from utilisation of the asset, discounted at an appropriate discount rate.
BExpenditura on other internally generated intangible assets is recognised

in the income stetement as an expansa as incurred.

iv. Amortisation of intangible assets other than goodwill
Amortisation is charged 1o the income statement on a straight-line basis
{other than for customer relationships and order book, which are charged on
a sum of digits basis) over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets.
Amortisation commences from the date the intangible asset bacomes available
+ Capitalised development costs are the life of the intangible assst
(usually a maximum of 10 years)
+ Software development costs are the life of the intangible asset (up to 10 years)
« Customer relationships are the life of the intangible asset (up 10 10 years)
* Other intengibie assats (ncluding order books, brards and software)
ave the life of the intangible asset {up to 10 years)

M. Property, plant and equipment
Freshold land and assats in the course of construction are not depreciated.

fterns of property, plant and equipment ers stated at cost less accumuletad
depreciation (see below) and impairment losses (see accounting policy
‘Impairment’).

Where an termn of property, plant and equipment COMPIses major compaonents
having different useful ives, they ere accountad for as separate iterns of
property, plant and equipment. Costs in respect of tooling owned by the Group
for clearly identifiable new products are capitabsed net of any contribution
received from customers and are included in plant and equipment,

Depreciation is charged to the inocme statement on a straight-ling basis
{unless such a basis is not aligned with the anticipated benefit) so as to write
down the cost of assets to residual values over the period of their estimated
useful ives within the following rangss:

= Freahoid buildings - 25 to 50 years
* Planl and equipmernt - 3 to 20 years

N. Loased assets

Lsases whare the Group assumes substarially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases,

Plant and equipment acquired by way of finance lease is stated at an amount
equal 1o the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum leasa
payments at inception of the lease, lees accumwiated dapreciation (see above)
end impakmant losses (see accourting policy “impairment’).

Payments made ungier cperating leases are recognised in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statemant over the
period of the lease unless a different systematic method is more appropriate
under the terms of the lease. The majority of leasing transactions enterad into
by the Group are cperating leases.
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©, Inventories

Inventories are valuad at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Due to
the varying nature of the Group's operations, both first in, first out ('FIFO")
and weighted average methodologies are employed. In respact of work in
progress and finished goods, cost includes all direct costs of production

and the appropriate proportion of production overheads.

P. Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an intagral part
of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Q. impairment

The carrying vaiues of the Group's non-financial assets other than inventories
(see accounting policy ‘Fwentories’) and deferred tax assets (see accounting
policy ‘Incomae tax’}, are reviewed at each balance sheet date 10 determine
whether there is any inclication of impairment.

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assat or all assets
within its cash generating unit is estimated. An impairment loss is cognised
whenever the canying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
racoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement,

For goodwill and assets that are not yet available for usa, the recoverable
amount is evaluated at each balance sheet date.

i. Caicutation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the Group's receivables other than financial assets
held at tair value is calculated as the prasent value of expected future cash
fiows, discounted al the original effective interest rate inherent in the asset,
Receivables with a short duration of less than one year are not discounted.

The recoverable emount of other assets Is the greater of their fair value
less costs 10 sell and valug in use. In assessing value in use an individual
assessment ks made of the estimated future cash flows generated for each
cash generating unit {basad upon the latest Group forecast and extrapolated
using an appropeiate long-term growth rate for each cash generating unit in
perpatuity consistent with an astimate of the relevant geographic long-term
GDP growth). These are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vakse of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Management befieve that this
approach, including the use of the indefinite cash flow projection, is appropriate
based upon both historical exparience and because # is one of the bases
management uilise to evalsats the {air value of investment opportunities.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows,

the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

ii. Revarsals of impairment

As required by 1AS 38 Tmpaimnent of Assets’, any impalmnent of goodwil or
avallable for sale financial assets is non-reversible. In raspect of other assets,
8n impaiment loss is reversed f at the balanos sheat date there are indications
that the loas has decreased or no longer exists following a change in the
estimates used to detenmine the recoversble amount,

An impaimment loss is reversad only to the extent thal the assats canrying amaunt
does not exceed the camying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

R. Dividonds

Final dividends payable are recognised as a kability at the date at which they ae
approved by the Company's shareholders or by the subsidiary's shareholders in
respect of dividends to non-controling interests. Interim dividends payabie are
recognised on the date they ane declared.

S. Employee benefits
i, Defined contribution pension plans

Contributions to defined contribution pension plans are reoogrused asan
expense in the income statement as incurred.

ii. Defined benefit pension plans

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of fulure benefit that
employees have eamed in retumn for their service i the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted 1o determine its present value, and the fair value of any
plan assets are deducted. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on
the earfier of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and the date that
the Group recognises restructuring-related costs. The discount rate is the vield
gt the balance sheat date on high quality corporate bonds of the appropriale
currency that have durations approximating those of the Group's obligations.
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit

credit method. When the calculation results in & net asset to the Group, the
recognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised past service
costs and the present value of any fulure refunds from the plan or reductions

in future contributions to the plan and restricted by any relevant asset ceiling.
Any deduction made by the tax authorities in the event of a refund of a sumplus
would be regarded by the Group as an income tax.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the expense is recogrised immediately
in tha income statement. Re-measurement gains and losses are recogrisad
immechiately in equity and distiosed in the stalement of comprehensive income.

iii. Long-term service and other post-employment benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term service and other post-
employment benefits, other than pension plans, is the amount of future benefit
that empioyees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods. The obfigation is calcutated using the projected unit credit method
and is discourted to its present vaiue &nd the fair value of any relaied assals
is deducted. The discount rate is the vieid at tha balance sheet date on high
quality bonds of the appropriate curmency thal have durations approximating
those of the Group's obligations.

iv. Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

The Group operates a number of equity and edquity-related compensation benefits
as set out in Section 4.7, The fair value of the amployee services received in
axchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense sach year.
The total amount 10 be expansed over the vesting pariod is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, axcluding the impact of any
Non-markst vesting conditions ane included in assumptions about the number of
oplions that are axpeciad to bacome exancisable. The falr value of the options is
detenmined based on the Biack-Scholes option-pricing model,

At sach balance sheet date, the Group revises Its estimates of the number of
options that ana expsected 10 vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of origingl
astimatee, if any, in the income staternent.

For newly lkssued shares, the procaads received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs ana credited to shane capital {nominal vahue) and share premium
when the options ane exercised.

T. Provisions

Provigions are recognizad when: the Group has a presant legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resowrces
will ba required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably
estimated, Provisions are vahued at management’s best astimate of the
amount required 1o settls the presen obligation at tha balence shest date,

A prowvision for restructuring is recognised whan the Group has approved
a detalled and formal restructuring pian, and the restructuring has either
commencad or has been announced publicly.




122 IMI plc

Directors’ Report

The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2016,
The Strategic Report is on pages 4 to 43, sections of which are incorporated into the Directors’ Report as set out below.

‘Results and dividend

‘The Group consolidated income statement is shown on page 76. Segmental
operating profit amounted 10 £227.7m (2015: £239m) and statutory profit before
texation and discontinued operations amounted to £165.3m (2015:; £162.7m).

Tha directors recommend & fingl dividend of 24.7p per share (2015: 24.5p per share)
on the ordinary share capital payable, subject to sharehalder approval at the Annual

General Meeting to be held on 4 May 2017, on 19 May 2017 to shareholders on the
register el the close of business on 7 Aprd 2017. Together with the irterim dividend
of 14p per share paid on 18 September 2016, this final dividend will bring the total
distribution for the year to 38.7p per shara (2015: 38.4p per shang).

Research and development
See Section 2.1.2.3 to the financial statements on page 89.

Sharehoiders’ funds
Sharehoklers' funds decreased from £546m at the end of 2015 to £543.2m
at 31 December 2016.

Share capital

As at 31 Dacember 2016, the Company’s share capital compnsed a single class
of share capital which was divided into ordinary shares of 28 4/7p each. Detais
of the share capital of the Compary ane set out in Section 4.8 1o the financial
staternents on page 120. The Compary's ordinary shares are isted on the
London Stock Exchange.

The Comparry has a Level 1 American Depositary Receipt ('ADR’) programme
for which Citibank, NA. acts as depasitary. See page 155 for further detalis.

As at 31 Decemnber 2016, 900,304 sharas were held In an employee trust for use
In relation 1o cartain executive incentive plans representing 0.3% of the issued
share capital {axcluding treasury shares) at that time. The independent trustee
of the trust has the same rights as any other sharehcider. Participants in option
schemes do not hold any voting rights on the shares until the date of exercise.

During 2016, 39,475 new ordinary shares wara issued under empioyee share
schames: 39,475 under sawe as you sam plans and nil under executive shars
plans. Shares acquired through Company share schames and plans rank
equally with the shares in issue and have no spacial rights.

The rights and obligations attaching to the Company's ordinary shares are set
out in the Company's articies of association, copies of which can be obtained
from Companies House in the UK, from the Comparny’s website or by writing
1o the Compary Secratary. Changes to the aticles of association must be
approved by a special resolution of the sharehalders (75% majority required)
in accordance with the leglsiation In force at the time. Subjact to applicable
statutes, shares may be issued with such rights and restrictions as the
Company may by ordinary resciution decide or {if there is no such resolution
or 80 far as it does not make specific provision) as the Board may decide.

Holders of ordinery shares are entitied to receive the Company's report and
accounts, to attend, speak and vole at general meetings of the Company,

and to sppoint proxies to exercise their rights. Holders of ordinary shares may
neceive a dividend and an a liquidation, may share in the assets of the Compary.

Subject to meeling certain thresholds, holders of ondinary shares may requisition
a general meeting of the Company or propose resolutions at Annual Genaral
Meetings. Voting rights for ordinary shares hekd in treasury are suspended and
the treasury shares carry no rights to receive dividends or other distributions

of agsets.

Them are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the Company

other than:

* certain restrictions as may from time to time be impesed by laws and
regulations ffor exampie insider trading laws); and

+ pursuant 1o the Company's share dealing code whereby the directors
and certain employees of the Company raquire approval to deal in the
Company's shares.

The Company is not aware of any arangaments between shereholders that
may result in restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares or on voting rights.
None of the ordinary shares carmy any special rights with regard to controt of
the Cormpany. The only restrictions on voting rights are those that apply to the
ordinary shares heid in treasury. Electronic and paper proxy appointments and
wvoling instructions must be received by the Company's registrarg not later than
48 hours {(axciuding any non-working days) bafore a general meating, or (subject
o tha Company's articles of association) any adiournment thereof.

Own shares acquined by the Company

The Comparny was granted authority at tha Annual General Meeting hekd on
5 May 2016 to purchase up o 40,790,321 of its ordinary shares of 28 4/7p
each. This authority will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual Genaral

Mesting 1o be heid on 4 May 2017, where shansholders will be asked 1o give
& similar authority, detalls of which are givan in the separate Notice of Annwal
General Meeting. In 2018, the Company cid not make market purchases of
s own ordinary shares.

As at 31 Decamber 2016, 14,248,838 ordinary shares {hominal value
£4.071.006) were held in treasury reprasenting 5.2% of the issued share capital
{exciuding treasury shares) at that time. The maximum number of shares held in
treasury during the year ended 31 December 2016 was 14,248,836.

Substantial sharsholdings

Information provided to the Company punsuant to the Disclosune Guldance and
Transparency Rules is published on a reguiatory information service and on the
Comparys website. As at 31 December 2018, the following voting interests

in the ondinary share capital of the Company, disclosable under the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules, had been notified to the Company:

% Held'
- 10.17%

MFS Investment Management

Ameriprise Financial Inc 5.93%
Bltackrock Inc 501%
Legal & Generad Group pic 3.03%

' As of the date in the notification to the Company.

Subsaquent 10 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this Report, no changes
in the voting interasts have been notified to the Company in accordance with the
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules,

As far as the Cornpany is aware, them are no persons with substantial hokdings
in the Company other than those noted above.

Statement on corporate governance

The required disclosures are contained in the Corporate Govemnance Report on
pages 49 to 54 and are incorporated into this Directors’ Report by referance.
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Empioymem engagement and diversity

Every effort is made to ensure that applications for employment from disabled
empioyees are fully and ity considenad anct that disabled smployeas have
equal opportunity in training, succession planning and prometion. Further
disclosures relating o employee diversity, employee engagement anct policles
are set out on pages 29 to 33.

Details of emploves share schemes are set out in the Remuneration Report on
pages 59 to 71 and in Saction 4.7 of the fnancial statements on pages 122 to 125.

Health, safely and the snvirchment

h is Group policy to corinuously improva healthy and safe working conditions
and 1o aiways operate in an anvironmentally responsible manner.

Our carbon reporting statistics show that our ecent performance in gross
tormes of CO2e has continued 10 improve: 2014 — 62,500, 2015 - 61,250,
2018 - 60,000. As such, we achisved our target 10 keep smissions at or below
2015 levels for 2016. OF the 2016 total, our direct (Scope 1) emissions of CO2e,
essentially gas, diesel and fuel ol consumed, anounted 16 17,500 tonnes. Our
indinect (Scope 2) emissians of CO2e, essentially the emissions generated on our
behalf to provide our electncity, amourted to 42,500 tonnes.

In addition to gross tonnes of CO2e, we repaort CO2e intensity relativa to
E£million sales; Cur result for 2016 is 36.3 which is an improvement relative to
2015's reported figure of 38.5 but a sfight deterioration when 2015 is restated
on & constant currency basis {35.2). Using 2015 as our new baseline, we plan
to coninuously improve our amissions performance going forward, including
Duilding on the results from the European Energy Dirsctive audits underisken
in 2015 and cascading these lassons throughout our non-European feciities.

Our CO28 accounting methodology follows DEFRA guidetines and includes
all material emissions acroes M. See page 36 for further CO2e and energy
efficiency details.

Political donations
No poftical donations were made duning the year.

Directors

The membership of the Board and biographical detalls of the directors are
given on pages 46 and 47 and are incorporated into this report by referencs.

The nies for the appointment and replacement of directors are sst gut in the
Company's articles of association. The Companys articles of association require
esach director 10 stand for re-alaction at sach Annua! Genaral Meeting.

Qualifying indemnity provigions and Hability insurance

The Company maintaing directors’ and officers’ liabiity insurance and afl
directors of the Company benefit from qualifying third party indermnity provisions
which wera in place during the financial year. At the date of this Annual Report
there are such indernnity arrangements with each director in respect of the
costs of defending civi,, criminal and regulatory proceedings brought against
them, as & director or emplovea, subject always to the limitations set by the
Companies Act 2008,

The Group operates pansion schemas in the UK which peovide retirament and
death benefits for employeas and former employees of the Group. The corporate
trustee of the pension schemes is M| Pensions Trust Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company. Qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions, as defined in
Section 235 of the Companies Act 2008, were in force for the financial ysar
enxled 31 Decamber 2016 and remain in force for the benefit of each of the
directors of the corporate trustee of the pension schames, These indeminity
provisions cover, 1o the extant parmitted by law, certain lossas or liabilitios
incurred as a director or officer of the corporate trustee of the pension schemes.

The Group also has in place thind party qualifying indemnity provisions, as
defined in Section 234 of the Companies Act 2008, in favour of certain
empioyees who discharge responsibilifies for various wholly-owned subsidiary
companies and these indemnities am given on a similar basis 1o the above.

Role of the Board

The role of the Board is:

» to promote the succass of the Company;

 be guardians of stekeholders' interests;

* t0 set/monttor leadenship behavicur and culture;

* to select and appoirt the Executive Committes;

» to provida supportive challenge to tha Executive Committes;
* {0 approve business plans and strategy;

* 10 overses governancs, risk and the contro! environment; and

-» to monitor and oversae the businesses and management.

The Board provides leadership, direction and govarnance for the Company and
oversees busingss and management performance. The Board has adopted a
corporate governance framework which defines Board roles and includes the fist
of matters reserved to it and written delegations of authority for ts committees
and the Executive Committee. Board resarved matters include sirategy and
kay areas of policy. major operational and strategic risks, significant investment
decisions and material changes in the crganisation of the Group.

In the Ml Corporate Governance Framework, tha Board has clearty defined

In writing those mattars which are reserved 1o it and the respective delegated
authorities of its committees and it has also set written imits of authority for

tha Chief Executive. The Gioup has a clear organisational structure and well-
established reporting and cantrol disciplines. Managers of operating units
assume responsibifity for and exercise @ high degree of autonomy in running day-
to-day trading activities. Thay do this within a framework of clear rules, policies
and delegated authorities reganding business conduct, approval of proposals for
investmasnt and material changes in operations and are subject to regular senior
management reviews of performance.

Division of responsibilities amongst directors

Chairman:

 building a well-balanced Board

* chairing mestings. setting the agenda and ensunng the best use of time

* ensuring effactiveness of the Board including the quality of debate
and decisions

* promoting the right environment and relations for effective engagement
and challenge around the boardroom table

 setting the tone and high standards of governance practice
* getting the right executive lsadership and succession plana in place

Thers is a clear division of responsibiity between the Chaiman and Chief
Executive, which is reflected in the IM! Corporate Governance Framework
approved by the Board. In summary, the Cheirman is responsibie for the
lszdership and effectiveness of the Board bul does not hava any executive
powers or responsibiities. The Chief Executive leads the Executive Committea
in running the businesses and implementing operational and strategic plans
under authority delegated by the Board.

The Chaimnan is nesponsible for ensuring that the Board meetings operate to
an appropriate agenda, and that adequate information is provided sufficiently
in advance of meetings to allow proper consideration. He is supported by the
Company Secretary, who also assists in ensuring that the Boand operates in
asccordance with good comorate governance under the Code and relevant
regutatory requirements. The Company Secretery acts as secretary to all of
the standing commitiess of the Board. The Board has a recognised procedum
for any director to obtain independent professional advice at the Comparny's
axpenso and all dinactors have access 10 the Company Secretary who is

8 solicitor.
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Chief Executive:
« lgadarship of the Executive Committes
* forrnulating strategy, business plans and budgets

* ensuring the highest compliance and internal control standards are maintained

= daveloping organisation structure
* resourcing, talent development and succession plans

Directors' powers

The powers of tha directors are determined by UK legisiation and the articles
of association of the Company in force from tima 1o time. The diractors wers
authorisad to aliot and Issue ordinary shares and 10 make market purchases
of the Company's ordingry shares by rasolutions of the Company passed

at its Annual General Meeting held on 5 May 2016. The curman authorities
will expire at the conciusion of the next Annual Genera! Meeting to be held
on 4 May 2017, at which new authoritios wit be scught.

Furthar details of authorities the Company is seeking for the allotment,
issue and purchase of its ordinary shames are st out in the separate
Notice of Annual Genaral Meeting.

Directors’ interests

The interasts of the parsons {including the interests of any connected persons)
who were directors at the end of the year, in the shara capital of the Company,
and their interests under share option and incentive schemes, are shown on
page 70.

Msanagement of comlicts of intorest

The Company's articles of association inciude certain provisions relevant
10 the activity of the Board and its commitiees. Thasa provisions include
recuimmants for disciosure and approval by the Board of potential conflicts
of interes1. These procedures apply, inter alia, to external directorships and
it is the Board's view that they operated effectively dunng 2016.

Each director has a duty under the Companies Act 2008 1o avoid a situgtion in
which thay have or may have a direct or indinact interest thet conflicts or possibly
may confict with tha interests of the Company. This duty is in addition 1o the
duty that they ows to the Company to disclose to the Board any intarest in any
transaction or arangement under considaration by the Company. if any director
bacomes aware of any situation which may give rise to a confict of interest, that
director informs the rest of the Board and the Board is then permitted under the
articles of association to decide to authorise such confict. The information is
reconded in the Company's register of conflicts and a conflicts authorisation
fetter is issued to the refevant director.

Change of control

The Comparwy and its subsidieries are party to a number of agreements that
may aliow the counterparties 10 alter or terminate the amangemenis ona
change of control of the Company foliowing a takeover bid, such as commercial
contracts and employes share ptans. Other than as referred to in the next
paragraph, none of these is considered by the Company to be significant in
terms of its ikely Impact on the Group as a whole.

In the event of a change of control of the Company, the Group's main funding
agreements allow the landers to renegotiate terms or give notice of repayment
for all outstanding amounts under the retevant facilities.

The Companty toes not have agreemants with any director or employes that
would provide compensation for loss of office or employment specifically
resulting from & takeover, although the provisions of the Company's share
schemes include a discration to allow awards granted to directors and
employees under such schemes to vest in thosea circumstances.

Information to be disclosed under Listing Rules 5.8.4R

Listing Ruda Detall Saction

8.8.4R (1-2){5-14} Not applicable N/A

8.0.9R (4) Long-term incentive schemes 47
Internal control

The Board has responsibility for oversight of the Group's system of internat
control and confirms that the Systern of internal control takes into account the
Code and relevant best practice guidance including the Financial Reporting
Council's September 2014 publication, ‘Guidance on Risk Management,
Internal Control and Related Fnancial and Business Raporting'.

All opersling units prepare forward plans and forecasts which are reviewed in
detall by the Executive Committee and congolidated for review by the Boarg.
Performance against forecast is continuousty monitored at monthly meetings
of the Executive Committes and, on a quarterly basis, by the Board. Minimum
standards for accounting systems and controls, which ane documented and
monitored, am promulgated throughout the Group. Cartified annual reports
ane required from senior executives of operating units, confimning compliance
with Group financial reporting requiraments Tha intemal audit function, Group
Assirancs, operates a roling programme of internal assurance on site reviews
at selected operating units. Additionally, visits to operations ane carried out
by senior Group finance persornnel. These intemal assurance processes are
co-ordinated with the activity of the Company's extermal auditor.

Capitaf investments are subjact to a clear process for investment appraisal,
authorisation and post-irvestment review, with major investimeant proposals
raferrad for consideration by the Executive Cormmittes and, according 10 their
materiality, to the Board. In addition, the Executive Commitiee regularly reviews
the operation of corporate policies and controls including those relating to ethics
and compliance matters, treastry activities, environmental issues, health and
safaty, human resources, taxation, insurance and pensions. Compliance and
internal audit reports are made evaiiable to the Board, the Audit Committee

and the Exacutive Commitiee, to enabla control issuas and developments

1o be monitored.

Control processes are dynamic and continuous improvements ans made

10 adapt themn to the changing risk profile of operations and 10 implernent
proportionate measumas to address any identified weakness in the internal
control systern. The internal contral dactaration process introduced in 2014 is
naw fully smbedided and is enabling improvement in control through bi-annual
self-assessments from afl operating units. Action plans to improve controls
as a result of these assessiments are being trackad and reported to the Audit
Commitiee. More information in relation to risk is given on page 40 under the
heading ‘Principal Risks and Uncertainties'.

of gl signiicant aspects of internal control for the year 2016 and up 10 the date of
this Annual Report, The Board believes that the Group's system of intemal conirol,
which is designad to manage rather then eiminate risk, provides reasonable but
not absolute assurance egainst material missteternent or koss.

Financial reporting processas

The use of the Group's accouniting manual and prescribed reporting requirements
by finance teams throughout the Group are important in ensuring that the Group's
accouniing polcies are clearly established and thet information is appropristaly
reviewad and reconciled as part of the reporting process. The use of a standard
reporting package by all entities in the Group ensures that inforrmation is.
prosanted in a consistent way that faciftates the production of the
consolidated financial staterments.
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Viability statement

In accordance with the 2014 UK Corporatae Governance Code, tha directors
have asgsessed the viability of the Comparny over a relevant period, taking ifto
account the Group's financlal and trading position as summarised in this Annual
Report, the principal risks and uncertainties set out on pages 40 10 43 and the
five-year business plan reviewed by the Board in September 2016. Basad on
this assessment, and other matiars considered and roviewed by the Board,
the directors confirm that they have a reasonable axpectation that the Company
will be abla to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over
the perod from the date of this Annual Report to 31 December 2021,

The directors have deternined that the period to 31 December 2021 constitutes
an appropriate peniod over which 10 make ks assessment of viabiity. Whilst the
directors have nco reason 1o believe the Company will not be viable over a longer
timing horizon, the five-year period 1o 31 Decermber 2021 was chosen as it
aligns with the Company's businass and strategic planning timing horizon and
is a sensibla period kor such an assessment. 1t is believed this pariod provides
readers of the Annual Report with an appropriately long-term view with which
to assess the Companys progpects although future outcomes cannot be
pradictad with cortainty.

In making s assessment, the Board recognised the principal risks facing
the Company, Including thosa that woulkd threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity. A summary of these risks can be found
on pages 40 to 43,

The fve-year business plan was used 10 853635 the headroom on the
Comparwy's faciities and 10 stress test ongoing covenant compliance under
scenarios where its principal risks materialise. The analysis considerad both
‘running busingss' risks, such as raducing revenues and margins, as wel as
one-off ‘event’ risks such as product recats. The Boerd also considerad the
Company's abliity to raise: capital in the future, as well as both the ongoing
actions undertaleen 10 pravent cocurence and the potential actions to
mitigate tha impact of any particutar risk.

The directors also recognisad a number of key features of the Companys
operations. The Company's wide geographical and sector diversiication, and the
lack of a single major production site, halp minimise tha risk of serious business
interruption. Furthermore, our business model is structured eo that the Company
Is not overly rellant on a few targe custorners, Our langest customer constitutas
only 2% of Group revenue and our top 20 customers account for just over

16% of Group revenue. In addition, our ability 1o flex our cost base reduces

our exposure 10 sudden adverse economic conditions.

Qoing concem

Accounting standards mequire that diractors satisfy themselves that it Is reasonabie
for thern to conchudie whether it is appropdate to prepare financial staternents on
a going concem basis, The Group's business activiies, togather with the factors
ikaly to affect its future development, performance and position ane set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 4 1o 43, Principal risks are detalled on pages 40 to 43.
The financial pasition of the Group, its cash flows, quidity position and borrowing
faciities are described in the fnancial statements. In addition, Section 4.4 1o the
financial statermnents includes the Group's objectives, policies and procasses

for managing fs capital; is financial risk manegement objectives; details of its
financial instruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to crecit risk and
quidity risk. Section 4.5 to the financial statements addresses the management
of the funding risks of the Groupk empioyee banefit oblgations.

The Group has considenable financial resources iogether with long-sianding
relationships with a number of customers, suppliers and funding providers across
different geographic areas and industries. The Group's forecasts and projections,
taking eccourt of potertial and realistic changes in trading performance, indicate
that the Group is able to operate within the level of facilities either in place on

31 December 2018, or renewed since, without the need to renew any further
faciities before 23 February 2018. As & consequance, the directons believe that
the Group is wel-placed to manage its business risks successfully despito the
uncartainties inherent In the curment economic outiook, Such uncertainties as
have been identified &re not regarded &s material uncertainties for the purpose
of the going concem assassmeant.

After making due enquiry, the directors have a reasonable expactation that
the Group has adequate resounces to continue in operational axdstence for the

foresesable futuee. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial staternents.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each director confims that, so far as they ane each aware, thens is no relevart
audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and each director
has taken all the steps that he or she cught to have taken as a director 10 make
himseif or herself aware of any relevant audit information and 1o establish that
the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at the Hitton Birmingham Metropole Hotel,
National Exhibition Centre, Bimingham on 4 Mey 2017 at 10am. Notice of the
Annual General Meeting will be published on the Company's website.

Byomw\
John 0"
Company Secretary

23 February 2017
IMI pic is registered in England No. 714275
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, which includes the Directors' Report, Remunaration Report and Corporate Governance Statement,
and the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable lew and regulations.

Comparw law requires the directors to prapare financiel statements for aach financial year. Under that law the directors are required to prepare the Group financial

statements in accordance with those international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union arxt the parent company financial statements

in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Acoepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the

directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they present fairly the financia! position, financial performance and cash flows for

that period. In praparing thosa financial statements, the directors are recuired to:

» Select suitable accounting poficies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgemanis and estimates that are reascnable;

» pregsent information, including accounating policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;

» siate that the Group financial statements have complied with IFRSS as adopted by the European Union, subject 10 any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial sialemants; and

» state for the parent company financial statements whether applicabls United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

The directors ane ragponsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and disdoss with

reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the parent company and enable them to ensune that the Grougp and parent company

financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation as appropriate. They are also responsible for safeguarding the

assets of the Group and the parent company and hence for taking reasonable staps for the prevention end detection of fraud and other imegularities.

The diractors are responsible for the maintenance and imegrity of the corporate and financial information includad on the Company's website. Legislation

in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other jurisciictions.

Directors’ responsibility statement under the Disclosure and Traensparency Rutes
Each of the directors, as at the date of this report, confirmas that:

* the Group and parent company financial statements in this Annual Report, which have been prapared in accordance with applicable UK law and with the
appiicable set of accounting standards, give & true and fair viaw of the assets, kabilities, financial position and profit of the Group; and

= the Annual Report (which includes the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report) includes a fair review of the development and performanca of the business
and the position of the Company and the Group taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report in accordance with applicable laws and reguiations. Having taken advice from tha Audit Committes,
the Boand considers the report and accounts, taken as a whole, are fai, balanced and undenstandable and provide the information nacessary for sharsholdars 10
assess the Group's parformance, business model and strategy.

mpope
Joh#O’

Company Secretary

23 February 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMI plc

in our opinion:

* IMI pic's Group financial statements and Parent Company financial etatements = the Parent Company financial statements have been properly propared in
(the fnancial statements} give a frue and fair view of the state of the Group's accordance with United Kingdom Genarally Accepted Accounting Practica
and of the Parent Comparty's affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of the including FRS 101 "Raduced Disclosure Framework”; and
Group's profit for the year then ended; « the financial statements have been prepaned in accordance with the

« the Group financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; financial stalements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

What we have audited

WemmmemmampmmmblmmmolMplcioriheyea'andedm December 2016 which comprise:

Group Paremt Compary

Consolidated income statermnent for the year then endad Balance sheet as st 31 December 2016

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended Statemant of changes in squity for the year then ended
Consolidated staternent of changas in aquity for the year then ended Relatad notes C1 10 C10 to the financial statements

Consolidated balance sheet 8s al 31 December 2016
Consofidated cash flow statémant for the year then ended
Related notes 1 to 5 1o the financial statements

The financial reporting framework that has been appled in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Comparny financial
statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 "Raduced
Disclosure Framework”.

Ovarview of our audit approach

Risks of material migstaternent - Ravenue and profit recognition
- Inventory valuation
- Valuation of the overall pension scheme Rabilities
- Carrying value of goodwill and acquired intangible assets
Aucit 5cope - W performed an audit of the compiste financial information of 13 entities and
sudit procedures on specific balances for a further 27 ontities.
- The entities where we performed full or specific audit procederss accounted for
81% of profit befone tax adjusted for non-recurring items, 62% of revenue and

78% of total assets.

Materiality - Overall Group materiglity of £9.2m which represents 5% of profit before tax
adiusted for non-recuring ltems.

What has changed - In the prior yeer, our auditor’s raport included a risk of material misstatement in

relation to the accounting for the acquisition of Bopp & Reuther. There have been
no further acquisitions in 2018 and accordingly no associated risk.
- We have set performance materiality at £6.9m (2015: £4.7m} being 75%
(2015: 50%) of our planning materiality. The increased percentage reflects
the Improvement in IMI's internal control environment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMI pic
(cont’d)

Qur assessment of risk of material misstatement

We identified the risks of material misstatement described below as those that had the greatest effect on our overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources

in the sudit and the direction of the efforts of the audit team. in addressing these risks, we performed the procedures below which were designed in the conlexl
of the financial statements as a whole and, consequently, we do not express any opinion on thess individual areas.

Risk

Owr responas 10 the risk

Revenue and profit recognition (£1,657m,
PY comparative £1,567m)

Refer to the Audit Committee Repori (page 55);
Accounting pokicies (page 126); and Note 2.1 of
the Consolidated Financial Statements (page 85}

Revenue and profit recognition is a significant
audit risk across all divisions within the Group.
Specifically there is a risk of inappropriate
revenue and profit recognition if delivenes are
recorded within the wrong accounting peried,
management ovenide causes contract loss
provisions to be misstated or revenue is not
accounted for in line with contractual terms.
The cyclical nature of deliveries within the
Critical Engineenng division results in significant
shipments near the December period end
which ncreases the risk of a cut-off error,

Risk movement

e

We carried out testing of controla over revenue recognition with a focus on those related to the timing
of revenus recognition.

We performed analytical procedures 1o compans revenus recognised with our expectations from past
axperience, manegement's forecasts and, where possible, external market data.

We oblained suppart for individually unusual and/or material revenue journals.

We performed tests of deteil for a sample of revenue transactions to confirm the transactions had been
appropriately recorded in the income statement and vertfied that the risks and rewards of ownership of
the products had been transferred to the customer by:

+ analysing the contract and terms of the sale to datermine that the Group had futfiled the requirements
of the contract;

+ confurning revenue could be reliably measured by reference to underlying documentation; and
= confuming collactabiity of the reverue was rsasonably assured by agraeing to collection history.

We performed cut-off testing by tracing a sample of trangactions around the period end o third party
delivery note documentation and customer acceptance.

In respact of new construction contracts in the Critical Enginearing division we tested a sarmple of
managemeant’s assessment of forecast costs to complete, comoborsting the underying assumptions against
historic experience and future production pians 10 detarmine any contract l0sses ane appropriately recognised.

We perforned these audit procedures at full and speciiic scope entities over this risk area in 31 locations
where revenue is in scope, which represents 62% of the total revenue balance.

mmmwmmmmmmnmmﬁmmm
divisions' marketing compartes. These companies purchase IMI manufactured products, either directly from
the marwsfacturing IMI entity or through the Group's cantralised warehousing, and sell into local markets.
The specific procedures performed includad verifying the occumence and completeness of a sample of
sales transactions recognised by the marketing companies thvaugh to goods despatch documentation.
We tested & sampile of transactions recognised in these companies to determine the messurement

of revenue recognised is consistent with the Group's tranater pricing policies and the inter-company
transactions elimingate on consolidation.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committes:

Our year-end audit procedures did not idantify evidence of material misstaternents regarding revenue or profit recognition in the Group. All transactions tested
have been recognised in accordance with contractual terms.
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Risk

Our responsa to the Hak

inventory valuation {E255m, PY comparsative
£233m)

Refer to tha Audit Committee Report {page 55);
Accourtting policies (page 126); and Note 3.1.1 of
the Consalidated Financial Staternents (page 96)

The valuation of inventory across the Group is
dependant on astablishing appropriate valuation
controls. This includes reliance on mamuat
processes. Management judgement is applied
to formulaic calculations for standard costing
and excess and cbsolete inventory provisions.

If these judgements are not appropriate then this
increases the risk that inventory is ovarstated.

Risk movement

-

We carried out testing on controls over inventory valuation to varify the Group values irwentory appropriately.

We tested the accumulation of cost within inventory, confirming the valuation reflected the products’ stage
of complation inchading agreemeant to the physical inventory counts we attended.

We cbtained evidence to support the stendand costs usad and performed procadures 1o ensure only normal
production variances had been capitaksed in the year-end inventory balance and any abnomal inefficiencies
had besn appropriately expensed including comparing actus) production retes to budgst.

We audited the adequacy of excess and obsolgte provisions hald against inventory by comparing forecast

product usage to customer orders, considering histonical usags, historical accuracy of provisioning and
understanding management’s future plans to ulilise the inventory.

We performed the same audit procedures at full and specific scope entities over this risk arsa in 26 locations
whare inventory is in scope, which reprasents 73% of the total inventory balance.

Key observations communicated 1o the Audit Committee:

inventory valuation across the Group is considerad appropriate including the adequacy of the excess and chsolete provision. Our audit procedunes confirmed
variances between stendand and actus! costs and the overheads absorbed in the inventory valuation had been comectly calculated and accourted for.

Risk

Our response to the fisk

Valuation of the overall pension scheme
liabilities (£1,580m, PY comparative (E1,341m)
within the net pension deficit of £80m}

Rafer to the Audit Committee Report (page 55);
Accounting policies (page 126); and Note 4.5 of
tha Consolidated Financial Statements (page 114)

The actuarial assumptions used to value the
UK and overseas pension scheme liabifities
are judgemental and sensitive. Due to the
significance of the value of the pension
obligation, a small changa in assumptions
may result in 8 material difference to the
amounts reported.

Risk movement

-

Using external deta we benchmarked the key actuarial assumptions, as detalted in Section 4.5.3.2 of the
consolidated fnancial statements, used by management, in determining the pension obligation under AS
18(R) to determine their assumptions wers appropriate, met the requirements of IFRS and wane in line with
market practice.

This included a comparison of life expectancy with relevant mortality tables, benchmarking infiation and
discount rates against sxternal market data, considering changes in historical assumptions and avaluating
the independence, qualiications and results of work performed by management’s experts invoived in the
valuation process.

Wa used our pension spacialists to assist us with these procedures.

The audit procedures perfarmad 1o address this risk have been performed by the Group audit team.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committes:

The acluerial assumplions used in the valuation of the year-end liabilities are at the middie of the acceptable ange when compared 10 external benchmarks.
Ws consider the valuation of pansion scheme liabiiities to be appropriate.
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Risk

Our responsa to the sk

Carrying value of goodwlll and acquired
intangfble assets (£453m, PY comparative
£411m)

Refer to tha Audit Committes Report {page 55);
Accounting policies {page 126); and Note 3.2 of
the Consolidated Financial Statements (page 97}

As a consequence of the Group's growth strategy
a significant value of goodwill and intangible
assats has arisen from acguisitions. Thereis a
risk that cash generating units { CGUs"} may not
achieve the anticipated business performance
10 support the camying value of these assels
leading 1 an impairment charge that has not
been recognised by management. Significant
Judgemant is required in assessing the futune
cash flows of the CGU, together with the rate
at which they are discounted.

Risk movement
el

We examined management's mathodology, as detalied in Section 3.2 of the consolidated financial
statements, and models for assassing the valuation of significant goodwilt balances to confirm the
composition of management’s future cash flow forecasts, the process by which they were drawn
up and re-pecforming the calcuiations in the model 1o test the machanical integrity. This included
confirming the underlying cash flows were consistent with the Board spproved budgets.

In accordance wilh the requiremants of IAS 38 Impairment of Assets, management performed
an impairment test on all CGUs that have goodwill allocated.

For all CGUs we calculated the degree to which the key assumptions would need to fluctuate before

an impairment conckusion was triggered and considered the Skelihood of this occurring,

In regpect of the CGLIs identifisd as having mpalmment inciicators or low levels of haadroom we performed

detailed testing to critically assess and corroborate the key inputs of the forecast cash flows including:

= cormoborating the discount rate used by obtaining the underlying data used in the calculation and
bemhnemnagaiﬂmoofrwablamrismiom:

« validating the growth rate assumed by comparing them to economic and industry forecasts; and

* analysing the historical accuracy of budgets 10 actual msults to determine whether forecast cash
fiows are reliable based on past experience.

We have reviswed the disclosures in respect of goodwill and intangibles and the impairmeant of Stainless
Stesl Fasteners (SSF) with reference to the requirements of IAS 36 and confirmed their consistency with
the audited impairment models.

The audit procedures performed 10 address this risk have been performed by the Group audit team.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committes:

We consider management's impairment of Stainless Steel Fasteners of £5.0m for the ysar ended 31 Decemnber 2016 to be appropriala. We agree with
management's conclusion that none of the remaining CGUs are required 1o be impaired as at 31 December 2016. Across the Group’s CGUs, the leve! of
headroom and conservatism in tha forecasts varies. Overall, management's valuations ara earound the mid-poirt of our acceptabla range.
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The scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

Qur assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation
of performance materiality datermine our audit scope for each entity within the
Group. Taken togsther, this enables us to foorm an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We take into account the level of Group revenue and
operating profit, risk profile (including country risk, risk determined to be
associated based on the grading of intemal audit findings, controls findings,
historical knowladge and risk arising from change in the period including
changes to [T systems and key management personnal), the number of
significant accounts based on performance materiality and any other known
factors when assessing the level of work to be performad at gach entity.

In assaasing the risk of material misstaternent to the Group financial statemenis,
and 1o achieve adequate quantitative coverage of significant accounts in the
financial stetements, of the 123 reporting entities of the Group, we selectad

40 entitiea, which represent the principal business units within the Group.

Of the 40 entities selected, we performed an audit of the complete financial
information of 13 entities {'full scope entities’) which were salected based on
their size or risk charactaristics. For the remaining 27 entities ('specific scope
entities’), we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within that entity
that we considerad had the potential for the greatest impact on tha significant
accounts in the financial statements either because of the size of those
accounts or their risk profite.

The reporting entities where we performead audit procedures accounted for
91% (2015: 85%) of the Group's profit befors tax adjusted for non-recurting
items, 62% {2015: 66%) of the Group's revenue and 78% (2015: 83%) of the
Group's total assets.

We also performed procedures over the revenue recognised in the Precision
coverage of 18% in respect of the Group's revenue.

Exchuding full and specific scope entities, there are a further 83 reporting
entitias with averags revenues of £7.6m and average profit before tax acustad
for non-recurring tlems of £0.2m. In addition, these locations do not have
common systems and confrols. As & consaquence, we consider the ikelihood
of any systematic enor arising within this population to be low. Notwithstanding
this, for the 83 entities we performed other procedures, inchuding analytical
review and enquiries of management to address the residual risk of

material misstatement.

The charts balow illustrate the coverage cbtained from the work performed
by our audit teams.

Changes from the prior year

The number of full scope entities has recduced to 13 (2015: 14) and the number
of specific scope entitias has reduced to 27 (2015; 28). Thess changes
predominantly refiect restructuring undertaken by the Group which has resulted
in & reduction of the size and risk profile of entities praviously in scope.

In the prior year, our auditor's report included a risk of material misstaternent
in relation to the accounting for the acquisition of Bopp & Reuther in 2015.
In the absencs of further aoquisitions In the current year, the risk was

not included in the current year audit.

Involvernent with entity teams

In establishing our overal approach 1o the Group audit, we determined the type

of work that needed 1o be undertaken at each of the entities by us, as the primary
audit engagement team, or by entity audiions from other EY global natwork frms
operating urder our ingtruction. Of the 13 full scope entities, awdit procedures were
performed on ong of these directly by the Group audit taarmn. For the 27 specific
scope entities, where the work was performed by entity auditors, we determined
the eppropriate leval Of involvernent to enable us 1O detenmina that sufficient audit
evidence had been obiained as a basis for our opinion on the Group as a whole.

Profit before tax adjusted for hon-recurring items - CY / (PY)

295 (26%)
Full scope entities
9% (15%)
Other procadures
62% (59%})
Specific scope entities
Asvenue - CY / [PY)
30% (40%)
Full scope entities
23% (26%)
Specific scope entities
18% (17%)
Procedures on
Other procedures

Total assets - CY / (PY)

58% (B3%)
Full scopa entitiea

18% (209}
Specific scope entities

24% (17T%)
Other procedures

The Group audit team continued to follow a programme of planned visits that
has been dasigned to ensure that tha Senior Statutory Auditor or his delegate
visits each full and specific scope location once every three years. During the
current year's audit cycle, visits were undertaken by the Group audit team to the
entity teams in Balgium, China, Germany, ltaly, Japan, Korea, Switzerland and
the United Kingdom, These visits invoived meeting with our entity team 1o discuss
and direct their audkt approach, reviewing and understanding the significant sudit
findings in respones to the risk areas including revenue, proftt recognition and
invantory valuation, holding meetings with local managament, undertaking factory
tours and obiaining updates on local regulatory matiers including tex, pensions
and legal. The Group audit tsam interacted regularly with the entity teams during
various stages of the audit, where appropriate reviewed key workdng papers and
were responsible for the scope snd direction of the audit process. This, together
with the additional procedures performed at Group level, gave us appropriate
evidenca for our opinian on the Group financial statements.




142 iMi ple

Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of IMI pic
(cont’d)

Qur application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating
the effact of identiied misstaternents on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, indivicually or in the
apgregate, could raasonably be expectad 1o influence the economic decisions
of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for
delarmining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiakty for the Group to be £9.2m (2015: £0.4m), which is
approximately 5% (2015: 5%) of profit before tax adjusted for non-recurring
itams. We believe that proit before tax, adjusted for the iterms described in the
table provides us with a consistent year on year basis for datermining materiality
and is the most relevant performance measure to the stakeholders of the entity.

» Profit before tax - £165.9m for the year
ended 31 December 2016

» Gain on special pension events - (£2.8m)
(Note 2.2.3 10 the Financial Statements)

« Restructuring - £18.8m (Note 2.2.2 to the
Financlal

« Impairment of Stainless Steel Fasteners (SSF) -
£5.0m (Note 2.2 .4 to Financial Statements)

* Profit bedore tax adjusted for non-recuming items -
£186.3m (basis for materiality)

* Materiality of £9.2m (approximately 5%
of materaility basis)

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance lavel. It is set
at an amount to reduca to an apprapriately low level the probability that the
aggregate of uncorrected and undstected misstatements excesds materality.

On the basis of our risk assessmants, togethar with our essessment of the Group's
overall control environment, our judgement was thal performance matariality
was 75% (2015: 50%) of our planning materiaity, namaly £6.9m (2015: £4 7m).
We have set performance materiality at this higher percentage reflecting the
improvement in iIMI's intemal financial control ervironment and due to the

absence of audit differences being identfied in recent periods.

Audit work at entity locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over
significant financial statement accounts is undertaken based on a percentage
of total performance materiality. The performance materiality set for each entity
is based on the relative scale and risk of the entty to the Group as a whuols and
our assessment of tha risk of misstatement at that entity. In the current year,
the range of performance materiality allocated to entities was £0.45m to
£1.50m (2015: £0.45m 1o £1.35m).

Reporting threshoid .

An amournt baiow which identifiad misstaterments ara considernad as being

We agreed with the Audit Committes that we would report to them all
uncorrected audit differences in excess of £0.5m (2015: £0.5m), which is set
at 5% of planning materiality, as wefll as differences below that thrashold that,
in our view, warranted repaorting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements egainst both the quantitative
maasures of materiakty discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative
considerations in forming our opinion.

Scope of the sudit of the financial statements

. An audit involves oblaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statemants sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial

. staternents gre e from meterial msstatement, whether caused by fraud or eror,

This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies ane appropriate to
tha Group's and the Perert Company’s crcumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonablonass of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors; and the overad presentation of tha financial
statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information inthe
Annugl Report and Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and 1o identily any information that is apparently materially
incomect basaed on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acouired by us
in tha course of performing the awdit. if we become aware of any apparent maieria)
misstaternents or inconsistencies we consider the implcations for our report.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out

on page 136, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accondance with applicabile law and (nfemational Standerds on Auditing (UK
and keland). Thoss standards require us 1o comply with the Auditing Practioss
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance
with Chapier 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008. Our aucit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members thoss matiers
we ane required o state 1o them in an auditor's report and for no other purposs.
To the fullest extent parmitted by law, we do not accept or assume responshiity
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a bocly,
for our audit work, for this repart, or for the opinions wa have formed,

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:

« the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Raport to be audited has besn
propedy prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2008; and

= based on the work underiaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report
for the financial ysar for which tha financial statements are prepared is
consigtent with ths financial statements; and

- the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Maftters on which we are required 1o report by exception

ISAs (UK and Ireland) reporting We ara required 10 report to you i, in our opinion, financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report is:

+ matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statemants; or

« apperently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledgs of the Group acouired in the course
of perorming our audit; or

» gtherwise misleading.

in particular, we are requived to report whather we have identified any inconsistencies betwean our knowledge acquired in

the course of performing the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Report and Accounts taken as

a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the infarmation necessary for shareholders to assess the entity’s

performance, business model and strategy; and whether the Annual Report appropriataly addnesses those matters that we
communicated to the Audit Commitiee thet we consider should have been disclosed.

Companies Act 2006 reporting In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its arvironment obtained in the cowrse of the audit,

we have identlfied no materiaf misstatements in the Strategic Report or Directors’ Report.

‘We are required to neport 1o you i, in our opinion:

= adequate accounting records have not been kapt by the Parert Company, or returng acdequate for our audit have not
bean received from branchas not visited by us; or

+ the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Direciors” Remuneration Report 10 ba audited are not
in agresment with the accounting records and raturns; or

* certain discipsures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* wa have not received all the information and explanations we reciuire for our audit.

Listing Rules review requirements | We ave required to review:
= the directors’ statement in relation 1o gaing concesn, set out on page 135, mdlongerterrnwabityselq.nonpage135 and

= the part of the Comorate Governance Statement relating to the company's compliance with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

We have no exceptions 10 report.

Statement on the Directors’ Assessment of the Principal Risks that Would Threaten the Solvency or Liquidity of the Entity

1SAs (UK and Ireland) reporting Wa are required 10 give a statement as to whether we have anything material to add or to draw attention to in relation to:

+ the directors* confirmation in the Arnual Report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the entity, including those that wouid threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

» the disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated;

» the directors' statemaent in the financlal stalements about whather Lhey considered it appropriate to adopl the going
concem basis of accounting in preparing them, and thelr identification of ary material unceriainties to the enlity's ability
1o continue Lo do $0 over a period of at keasl twelve months from the date of approval of the financiat slatements; and

* tha directors’ explanation in the Annual Report as 1o how they have assassed the prospects of the entity, over what pariod
they have done so and why they consider that pariod to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the entity will ba able 10 continue in operation and mest is Nablliies as they fall due over the parod
of their assessmeant, including any related disclosures drawing attention to ary necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We hava nothing matesial 10 add or to draw atlention to.

it 2 Yo

Andrew Walton {Senior tmmory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

23 Fabruary 2017

Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the IMI pic website is the respansibility of the dwectors; the work camied out by the auditors does not involve considaration of
these matters and. accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements singe they were initialty
presented on the website,

2. Legistation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissernination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2016

216 216
Note m £m
Fixed assets
Invastments C5 173.2 173.2
Current assets
Debtors - C6 364.4 397.3
Deferred tax assats c? 1.1 1.8

Cash &t bank and in hand 4.8 1.3
. 370.3 410.5

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Gther creditors C8 2.0 2.9)
Nat current assets 3673 407.6
Total assets less current liabilities R 540.5 580.8
Net assets 540.5 560.8
Capital and reserves

Called up share capital Co 81.8 818
Share premium account [+3] 121 118
Capital redemption reserve =] 174.4 174.4
Profit and loss account [+:] 272.2 312.8
Equity shareholders’ funds . 540.5 580.8

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chaiman
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Share Snere  Redemption Ratalned Parent
capital pramium reserve samings equity
£m £m m m £m
Al 1 January 2015 B1.7 10.8 174.4 320.1 587.0
Ratained profit for the year v 81.8 g1.8
Dividends paid on ordinary shares {102.5) {102.5)
Shares issued in the year 0.1 1.0 1.1
Shars-based payments . 1.1 1.1
Shares issued by:
empioyea share scheme trust 2.3 23
At 31 December 2015 81.8 1.8 174.4 - N2y 580.8
Retained profit for the year 66.2 65.2
Dividends paid on ordinary shares . {104.2) (104.2)
Shares issued in the year s 0.3 0.3
Share-based payments ’ 5.8 5.8
Sharea acquired for: )
smployee share achema trust : @4 7.4)

At 31 December 2016 81.8 121 174.4 272.2 540.5
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1, Significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been appliied consistently in dealing with
flerns considered material in relation to the financial staterments, except where
otherwise noted below:

Basis of accounting

The financlal statements wene prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' (‘FRS 1017).

The Company has not presented a separate profit and loss account as
panmitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions

undier FRS 101:

&) the requirements of paragraphs 45 {b) and 46-52 of IFRS 2 *Share based
Payment’;

bj the requirements of IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments’;

¢) the requirements of paragrephs 91-99 of IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement';

d) the requirement in paragraph 38 of LAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’ to present comparative information in respact of paragraph 79{a)
MofiaS1;

@) the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10{f) and 134-136 ot 1AS 1;

1} the requinements of (AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows";

@) the requirerments of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 "Accounting Pualicies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors';

h) the requirernents of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disciosunes’; and

) the racrirernants in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ to disclose related
party transactions antened into betwesn two or more members of the Group,
provided that any subsidiary which is party to the transaction is whally owned
by such a member. Related party transactions with the Company's key
management parsonnel are disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages
59 to 71 and in Section 5.2 on page 126 of the Group financlal statements.

Judgements and key sources of sstimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires rmanagement to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for
assets and liabilfities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported
for income and expenses during the year, However, the nature of estimation
means that actual outcomes coukd differ frormn those estimates.

Foreign curvencies

The Company’s functional currency and preseniation cumency is steriing.
Transactions in foreign cumencies ara recondad using the rate of exchange
rufing at the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and iabliies denominatad In foreign cumancies have been
translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
and the gains or losses on transiation are inciuded i the profit and loss account.

Investments

Investmanis in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less any provision for
impeirment. The Company's cost of investments in subsidiary undertakings is
stated at the aggregate of (a) the cash consideration and etther (b) the nominal
value of the shares issued as consideration when Section 612 of the Companies
Act 2008 applies or (¢} in all other cases the market value of the Company's
shares on the date they were issued as consideratian.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into
account taxation deferred because of temporary differences batween the
treatment of certain itemns for taxation and accounting puUrPOses.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of aif temporary differances betwesn the
treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purmoses which have
arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise requred
by IAS 12 “income Taxaes’. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected 10 apply when the tamporary differences reverse, based on the tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit wit be available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

The Company operates a number of equity and equity-reiated compensation
benefits as set out in Section 4.7 of the Group Bnanciel slatements. The fair
value of the employee services received in axchange for the grant of the options
ts recharged in full to the principal empioying company and accordingly, there is
no net charge recorded in the Company's financld statements. The recharged
amount is recognised as a debtor faling due for payment within one year.

The total amount rechargeds over the vesting period is determined by reference

o the fair valus of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions {for example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vasting conditions ers included in assumptions about the number of
options that ame expected to bacome exercisable. The fair value of the options at
the date of grant i datermined based on the Biack-Scholes option-pricing rnodel.

At each balance sheet date, the Company revises its estimate of the number
of options that are expected 1o vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the amourt recharged to subsidiary underiakings.

For newty issued shares, the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are cradited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium whan the options are exercised.

Treasury shares

The consideration paid by the Company on the acquisition of treasury sharss
is charged dinsctly to retained eamings in the year of purchase. Consideration
received for the sale of such shares is also racognised in equity. with any differance
between the procsads from sale and the original coet taken to share premium.

If treasury shares are subsequently cancelled the nominal value of the cancelled
shares is transfemed from share capital to the capital redemption reserve. No gain
or loes is necognised on the purchase, sale or canceliation of reasury shares.

Dividends

Dividerwds unpaid et the batance sheet date are only recognised as a abilty
at that ciate 1o the extent that they are authorised and are no longer at the
discretion of the Company. Unpaid dividends that do not meet these criteria
are disclosed in the notes to the inancial statements,

C2. Remuneration of directors

‘The detailad information concerning directors’ emcluments, shareholdings and
ophons are shown in the audited section of the Remuneration Report on pages
59 to 71 and Section 2.1.3 of the Group financial statements.

C3. Staff numbers and costs

The number of paople smpioyad by tha Company, including directors, during
the year was 28 (2015: 32) al of whom were employed n administretive roles.
The costs assoclated with them were borne by a subsidiary undertaking.

The Company participates in the IMI UK Funds, which are defined benefit
schemas in which the assets are held independently. The total net defined
benefit costs of these Funds are borne by a subsidiary undertaking and
therefore In accordance with LAS 19, no net defined benefit costs are
recognised in the Company's financial statements. Section 4.5 of the
Group financial statements provides further dstalls regarding the defined
benefit schemes.
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C4. Dividends
The aggregate amount of dividends comprises:

2008 2015

fm fm

Prior year final dividend peid - 24.5p per qualifying ordinary share (2015: 24.0p) 66.3 64.9
Current year interim dividend paid - 14.0p per qualifying ordinary share (2015: 13.9p) 378 376
Aggregate amount of dvidends paid in the financial year 104.2 102.5

Dividends paid in the year of £104.2m represent 37.9p per share (2015: 37.6p).
After the balance shest date the following dividends were proposed by the directors. The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income 1ax consequences.

2018 2015
Em fm
Current year final dvidend - 24.7p per qualifying ordinary share (2015: 24.5p) 8§7.0 86.4

Dividends proposad after the balance sheet date may differ from the final dividend paid. This s a result of the final number of qualifying shares entitled to dividends
differing from those in issue at the balance sheet date.

CS5. Fixed assets - investments

Subsidiary undertakings
2018 2015
tm m
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 cost and net book value 173.2 173.2
Details of subsidiary undertakings as at 31 Dacember 2016 are shown on pages 149 1o 152,
C8. Debtors
2018 2015
Bm £m
Falling due for payment after more than one year:
Amourits owed by subsidiary undertakings 278.2 316.4
Faliing due for payment within one year:
Amourits owed by subsidiary undertakdngs 86.2 80.9
364.4 397.3
C7. Deferred tax
2018 2015
£m m
The deferred tex inciuded i the balance sheet lses follows: ... _ ... .. . . .__|_. .
Employee benefits and share based payments 1.1 19
Defarmed tax asset included in the balance sheet 11 1.9
m
Reconciliation of movement in deferred tax asset: T,
Aldanuary 2018 L o i i o et e B
Defemrad tax charge in the profit and loss accourt T {0.8)
At 31 December 2018 1.1

Changas to the rate of UK corporation 1ax were substantively enacted in 2015 to reduca the rate 10 18% from 1 April 2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020, The
budget of 16 March 2016 then proposaed to further reduce the rata to 17% from 1 Aprl 2020. This additional change was substantively enacted on § Septamber
2018. The deterred tax balance has been calculated basad on the rates applcable when the balances are expected to reverse, which is mainly 17% (2015; 18%).
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Company notes to the financial statements
(cont’d)

C8. Other creditors falting due within one year

2016 2015
£m Em
Amounts owed {0 subsidiary undertakings 1.7 1.0
Other payables 13 19
3.0 29
C9. Share capital and reserves
Share Share  Radermption Retained Parort
caphal premium resene eamings equity
fm om m £m m
At 1 January 2015 B1.7 108 1744 3201 587.0
Retained profit for the year 91.8 9.8
Dividends paid on ordinary shares” {(102.5) {(102.5)
Shares issued in the year 0.1 1.0 1.1
Share-hasad payments 1.1 1.1
Shares issued by": B
empioyea share schame trust 23 2.3
At 31 Dacember 2015 818 11.8 1744 3128 560.8
Retained profit for the year 852 685.2
Dividends paid on ordinary shares® {104.2) {104.2)
Shares issuad In the year - 0.3 0.3
Share-based payments 5.8 58
Shares acquired for*:
employee share schemae trust (7.4) @4
At 31 December 2016 81.8 121 174.4 2722 540.5

* Details of treasury and employse trust share scheme movements are contained in Section 4.6 of the Group financial statements and delails of dividends paid
and proposed in the year are shown in note C4, .

All of the retained earnings heid at both 31 December 2016 and 31 Decamber 2015 am considered to be distributable reserves.

Share capita)
2018 2015
£m £m
lasued and fully paid
286.2m (2015: 286.2m) ordinary shares of 28 4/7p each 81.8 81.8

C10. Contingencles .
Contingent liabifities relating 1o guarantees in the normal course of business and other ttems amounted to £82.4m (2015: £64.4m).

There I a right of set-off with three of the Company’s bankers relating to the balances of the Company and a number of its wholly-owned UK subsicEaries.

Where the Compary enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebledness of other companies within its Group, the Company considers
these to be insuranca arrangsments, and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guaraniee contract as a contingent kability
until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantes.
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Subsidiary undertakihgs

A tull ist of the Group's subsidiary undertakings and registered/principal offices as at 31 December 2016 is included below, Excent whers indicated, the share
capital congists of ordinary shares only. The principal country in which each subsidiary operates and has its registered/principal office is the country of incorporation.
IMI pic's effective interest in the underiakings listed is 100%, except where indicated, and is held in sach case by a subsidiary undertaking, except for M| Group
L1d, IMi Deutschiand Verwalungs GmbH, (M! Lekeside Australia Pty Ltd and Liquick 200 Umited which are heid directly by IMI plc.

“The Group has an interest in a partnership, the IMI Scottish Limited Partnership, which is fully consolidated into these Group accounts. The Group has taken
advantage of the exemption conferrad by reguiation 7 of the Parinerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 and has, therefore, not appended the accounts of this
qualifying partnership to these accounts. Separate accounts for the partnership are not required to be and have not been filed at Companies House,

Anzon Cast Products Limited, Lakeside, Solihull Parkway, Bimningham Business Park, Birmingham, West Midlands B37 72,
Charles Baynes Netherlands BV Netherands, United Kingdom

FCX North America Limited,

FCX Pension Trustees Limited,

HoWord Estates Limited,

M CIF Trustes Limited,

IMi Deutschiand Limited,

IM! Ewro Finanoe Limitsd,

M| Fluid Controls (Finance) Limited,
IMI Garmaryy Limited,

Mi Group Limited.

M1 Kynoch Limited,

M| Lakaside Five Limited,

M1 Marston Limited,

IMI Oversess irvestiments Limited,
IMI1 Pensions Trust Limited,

IMI pie,

IMi Property investments Limited.
IMI Refiners Limited,

IMI Retirarnant Savings Trust Limited,
IMi Sweden Finance Limited,

M1 Vision Limited,

Liquick 211 Limited,

Premier Profiles Limited,

Trullo Group Limited,

Trufio International Limited,

Truflo Investmaents Limited

Commiech Limited, 1020 Eskdala Road, Winnersh, Wokingham, RG41 5TS, United Kingdom
The Commtech Group Limited,
Enginesring Appliances Limited,
IMI Groug Services Limited,

IMI Lakeside One Limited,
Liquick 200 Limited,

Martonalr International Limited

IMI Critical Engineering Holding GmbH, Bruckstrasse 93, 46519, Alpen, Gemany
I Deutschiand § GmbH 8. Co KG,

IMI Deutschiand Verwaltungs GmbH,
IM! Germarny Holding Limited & Co. KG,
Norgren GmbH

IMI Auid Controls Holdings Inc, CSC, Comoration Trust Cantre, 1200 Orange Strest, Wilmington DE 19801, United States
IMI Holdings LLC,

Norgren Automation Solutions LLC,
Norgren Inc,

Norgren Kloehn Inc

IMI Americas Inc, Corporate Senvice Company, 2711 Centerville Road, Wimington DE 19808, United Stalas
IMI Group Inc,

IMI Interamerica Inc,
Zimmermann & Jansen inc
IMI Australia Pty Ltd, 33 South Corporate Avenue, Rowville VIC 3178, Austratia
Mt Lakaside Australia Pty Ltd,
Tube Ritings Sales Pty Limited
FCX Ireland Limited, 1 Stokas Place, St Stephena Green, Dubiin 2, Irslend
IMI Lakeside Ireland Limited,

Lakeside Finance Unlimited Company,
Lakeside Treasury Unlimited Compary
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Subsidiary undertakings

(cont'd)

CCI AG,
CCl| Swizerland AG,
Norgren AG

laslenstrasse 9, 8362, Balierswi, Switzeriand

IMI Hokding Kaly S.rl.,
Orton S.AL.,
Trufio Rona S.r..,

Via Stendhhai, 85, 20144 Miano, ltely

IMI Hydronic Engineering AB,
IMI indoor Climate AB,
IMI Swedien AB

Annelund, SE-524 B0, Ljung, Sweden

Asro-Dynamiek Belgie BVBA,
IMi Hydranic Engineering NV

Boomsesieenweg 28, B 2627 Schelle, Belgium

B & R Holding GmbH,
Bopp & Reuther Sicherheits- und Regslarmaturen GmbH

Carl-Reuthar Str. 1, 68305, Mannheim, Germany

Heimeier GmbH,
iM| Hydronic Enginesring Deutschland GmbH

Voellinghauser Weg 2, Erwitte, DE-59597, Germany

IMI Componants Limited,
Truflo Marine Limited

Westwood Road, Birmingham, B6 7JF, United Kingdom

M1 Hyeronic: Engineering BV,
IMi Netherands Holdings BV

Réntgenweg 20, Alphen aan den Riin, NL-2408 AB, Notherlands

IM! Hydronic Engineering Swilzerland AG,
TA Hydronics Holding AG

Mihlerainstrasse 26, 4414, Fiflinsdorf, Switzerand

IMI Scotland Limited,
The IMI Scottish Limited Partnership

15 Atholl Crescent, Edinburgh EH3 8HA, United Kingdom

Norgren Co Limited China, Bulding 3, No. 1885, Duhui Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, China
Norgren Manufacturing Co Lid

Norgren Manufacturing De Mexico SA DE CV, AV De la Montana 120, Parque Industrial Queretaro, Santiago de Queretaro, Querstaro,
Norgren SA de CV CP 76220, Mexico

Remosa Sarvice & Conatruction Si, Remosa Sd

Viagle Pula 37, 09123 sede e stabilimento stradario, (3608, Cegliari, Sardinia, Raly

Valves Holding GrmbH, Z & J Technologies GmbH

Bertramsweq 8, 52355, Diren, Germany

Brookvale International Insurance Limiteq

Clarsndon Housa, Church Street, Hamiton, HW11, Bermuda

Buschjost GmbH

C.H. Zikesch Amaturen GmbkH

Mercatorstr. 16-18, 48485, Wesel, Germany

CCl {Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd

26 Inlemational Business Park , ACER Building, Tower A, #04-01, Singapore, 809923, Singapore

CC! Amarica do Sul Comercio de Equipamentos Industriais Lida

Rua ltapeva, 286 cis 95/96/97, Sao Paulo, 01332-000, Braai

CCl Czech Republic 5.r.0.

K Letisti 180473, Stapanice, 62700, Czech Republic

CCl Fiow Control (Shanghal) Co Ltd

Room 108, Unit 15, 159 Tian Zhou Road, Cao He Jing Development Zone, Shanghel, 200233, China

CCl Intemnational Limited

Unit A3 Brookside Business Park, Greengate, Middiston, Manchester, M24 1GS, United Kingdom

CCl ttaly S Via Leopardi 26, 20123, Mian, ialy
CCI KK 6-2-2 Takatsukadai, Nishi-ku, Kobe Cily, 851-227+, Japan

CC! Limmited 14 Dangdong 2-r0, Munsan-eup, Paju-si, Gyeonggi-do, 10816, Republic of Korea
CCi Valve Technology AB Industrigatan 1-3, Box 603, SE-661 29, Seffle, Swaden :
CCil Vanve Technology GmbH Lembockgasse 83/1, A1230, Wien, Austria

Control Component India Pvt Limited

SR iPark, 6th FAoar, EPIP Zona, Whitefiski Road, Bangalore, 560086, india

Contmo! Components Inc

22591 Avenida Empresa, Rancho Santa Mangarita CA 82688, United States

Deeside Titanium Limited (18%)

Moor Lane, Derty, Derbyshire, DE24 8BJ, United Kingdom

FAS Medic SA Route de Bossonnens 2, 1807, Palezieux, Switzerland
Fluid Automation Systems GmbH Schonbergstrasse 35, 73760, Osterfidern, Germany
Fluld Automation Systems SA 126 Route da I'Etraz, 1200, Versoix, Switzerland

Herion Systermtechnik GmbH Urttere Talstrasse B85, D-71263 Weill der Stadt, Germarny

IMI Aero-Dynamiak BV

Havensirast 9, VS 3861, Nijkerk, Netheriands
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IMI Consuting (Shanghai) Co Limited

Units 03,06 8 Floor, No. 500 Fushan Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, 200122, China

IM) Critical Engineering (Shanghai} Company Limited

B3-2, No. 303, Xinke Road, Qingpu District, Shanghal, China

IMI Energi & VWS Utvackling AB

Annedatsviigen 9, 22764, Lund, Sweden

IMI France SARL

52 Boulevard de Sébastopol, 75008 Paris, France

M Hidronikk Muhendisfik Ikiimiendirme Sisternleri Ltd Stt

Atasehir Bulvari Ata Carsi no. 50-58, Atasehir, Istanbul, Turkey

MI Hydronic Enginearing A/S

Lyskaer 9, DK-2730, Harlav, Denmark

IMI Hydronic Engineering AS

Glynitveien 7, Ski, N-1400, Norway

IMI Hydronic Enginaering China

Room 308, Xin Mao Buiding, No 2 Tai Zhong Nan Road, Shanghai, 200131 Pllot Free Trade
Zone, China

M Hydronic: Engineering France S.A.

13, rue de la Perdrix - Les Flamanits 8, Paris Nord Il BP84004, Trembiay-en-France, 85931, France

M Hydronic Engineering FZE

Office 2107 (PO Box 262611), Jafza View 19, Jafza, Dubai, United Arab Emirates

IMI Hydronic Enginearing GesmbH

Industriesirasse 8, Obj. 5, 2353, Guntramsdorf, Austria

Ml Hydronic Enginsering Inc

8908 Governors Row, Dallas TX 75247, United States

M Hydronic Enginesring Intemational SA

Route de Crassier 19, Lake Geneva Business Park. 1262, Eysins, Switzerand

IMI Hydronic Engineering Limited

Unit 3 Nimbus Park, Porz Avenus, Dunstable, Bedfordshing, LUS SWZ, Unitad Kingdom

IMI Hydronic Engineering Lida

Av Fagundes Fiho, 134 ¢j 43, S. Judas, Sao Pauo, 04304-010, Brazil

IMI Hydronic Engineering OY

Robert Huberin tie 7, Vantaa 1510, Finland

IMI Hydronic Engineering Pte Ltd

223 Mountbeatten Road #03-01, Singepore 398006, Singapore

IM| Hydronic Engineering S.A.

9, rue das 3 Cantons, Windhof, L-8399, Luxembourg

IMI Hydronic Engineering {Spain} SAU

Compieio Europa Empresariad, C/Rozabella, 6, Las Rozas, 282090, Madrid, Spain

IMI Hydronic Engineering s.rl.

Via dei Martinit 3 cap, 20146, Milan, ltaly

M| Hydronks Engineesing UAB

AJuozapaviciaus 27-5, Kaunas, LT - 45258, Lithuania

M intarnational Co Sel

28 Chiparosulii Street, 2nd Roor, District 3, Bucharest, 031122, Romania

IMI international d.0.0

Alpska cesta 37b, Lesce, 4248, Slovenia

IMI International d.o.o.

Slavonska avenia 17, Zagreb, 10040, Croatia

IMi Intarmnational d.o.o. Beograd

Miiutina Milankovica 1b, Novi Beograd, 11070, Serbia

IMI Intarnational Kft.

Kunigunda Utia 60, Budapest, HU-1037, Hungary

IMI Internationgt LLC

Laninskaya Street 19 b2, 115280, Moscow, Russian Federation

IM| intarnational s.r.0.

Gentral Trade Park D1, ¢.p.1573, Humpolec, 396 01, Czech Republic

IMI International Sp. z.0.0.

Olewin 50 A, PL-32300 , Olkusz, Poland

IMI Norgren Herion PVT Limited

A-82, Sector - 83, Noida, Uttar Pradesh 201301, india

IMi Norgren Limited

137a Slaney Closs, Dublin Industrial Estate, Glasnevin, Dublin 11, iefand

IMI Norgren Preumatics (Shanghal) Co Limited

1st Floor , No 71 Bullding, 1066 Quinzhou North Roed, Chaohejing Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai,
200233, China

IMI Norgren SA (Sociedad Unipersonal)

Calle Colom, 391, 2 Edif. Tecno, 08223, Terrasea, Spain

IMI Norgren Terracco S.L.

Congell de Cent 57, 08227, Terrassa, Spein

IMI Watson Seith Limited

One Snowhill, Snowhil Quesnsway, Bimingham, West Midlands, B4 6GH, United Kingdom

IMI Webber Limited City Business Park, Easton Road, Easton, Bristol, BSS 0SP. United Kingdom

Industrie Mecanique Pour Les Fluides SA 15 Avenue des Cures, 95580, Anciilly, France

Interativa IndUstria, Avenida Garabed Gananian, 386 Barmo Aparecidinha, Sorocaba, Sio Paulo, 18.087-340, Brazil
Comércio o Reprasantacdes Lida

Kynoch Sweden Holding AB ¢/o IMi Hydronic Engineering AB, 52 480 Ljung, Sweden

Liquick 213 Limitad Pingsent Masons, 2 Comwall Street, Birmingham, West Midlands, B3 2DL, United Kingdom
Newman Hattersiey Limited 151 Superior Bivd, Mississauga ON LST 208, Canada

Norgren A/S Vesterfundvej 18, DK-2730, Herlev, Denmark

Norgren AS

Karihaugveien 88, Osio, 1088, Norway
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Subsidiary undertakings

(cont'd)

Norgren BV Netherlands Transistorstraat 2, 1322, Aimare, Netherlands

Norgren Co Limited 120/34 M. 12, Rachedewa, Bangplee, Samutprakamn, 10540, Thailand

Norgren European Logistics Company Limited 4060 Lakoside, Sofitad Parkway, Birmingham Business Park, Bimingham, B37 7)Z, United Kingdom
Norgren Finland OY Huopalahdartie 24, A-talo FI-00350 Helsinki, Finland

Norgren Ges.m.b.H Industriezentrum No Sud, Strasse 2, Wiener Neudorf, 2355, Austria

Norgren GT Development Corporation CT Corporation System, 508 Union Ave SE, Suite 120, Olympia WA 98501, United States
Norgren Limited 6/F Benson Tower, 74 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowioon, Hong Kong

Norgren Uimited 15A Vastey Drive, Aucikiand, 1080, New Zealand

Norgren Limited Blenhaim Way, Fradiey Park, Lichfield, Staffordshire, WS13 8SY, United Kingdom
Norgren Ltda Av. Eng. Alberto de Zagottls, 696-8, Seo Paulo 5P, Brazi

Norgren NV F Walravensstraat 84, 8.1651 Lot, Belgium

Norgren Pte. Limited 16 Tuas Strest, Singapore 638453, Singapore

Norgren SAS 4 Boulevard Michael Faracay, 77700 Serris, France

Norgren SDN BHD Level 22, Axiata Tower No 9, Jalan Sentral 5, 50470 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Norgren SpA Via tieste 16, Vimercate, 20871, Milan, ltaly

Norgren Sweden AB Box 14001, Ventigstan 8, $-200 24 Maimo, Sweden

Norgren Taiwan Co Limited 3F, No. 540 Sec. 1, Minshang N. Rd.,, Guishan Dist., Taoyuan City , 333, Taiwan
Pneumatex GmbH Planiger Str 34, Halle 53, 55543, Bad Kreuznach, Germany

Quanta Dialysis Technologies Limitad (239%) Tything Road, Alcester, Warwickshing, B49 BEU, United Kingdom

SAIC CCl Valve Co Ltd (44%)

Block B, 123 Chongming Xiushan Road, Chongming County, Shanghal, China

Shanghai CCl Power Control Equipmant Co Lid (70%)

Stainless Steel Fastenars Limied Broombank Road, Sheepbridge, Chesterfield, Derbyshire, S41 80.), Unfted Kingdom
ST s.rk Via dei Caravaggi 15, 24040, Lavate (BG), aly

TA Hydronies LLC str. Pymonenko 13-K, Kyiv, 04050, Ukraine

TA Reguiator d.o.0, Oriiska Uiica13, Brezice, S1-8250, Slovenia

TH Jansen Armaturen GmbH Otio-Kalsar Str. 8, 66386, Sankt Ingbert, Garmany

Thompson Valves Limited 17 Balena Close, Creekmoor, Poole, Darset, BH17 7EF, United Kingdom

Tndlo Rona SA. 38 averue, 18, Parc Industris! des Hauts Sarts, 4040 Herstal, Belgum

Z & J High Temperature Equipment {Shanghail Co Ltd

818 Yinchun Raad, Minhang District, Shanghai, 201108, Ching

Subsidiary audit exemptions

M pic has issued gueranteos over the abiities over the following companies at 31 December 2016 under Section 479C of Companiss Act 2006 and thesa entities

are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individual accounts by vitue of Section 479A, of the Act:

Company name Company number Company name Company number
Commiech Limited 01524025 IMI Refiners Limited 00148305

FCX North America Limited 03430451 IMI Scotland Limited SC378424

Holford Estates Limited 01181406 IMI Sweden Finance Limited Q127211

IMI Deutschiand Limited 07843551 M| Vision Limited 04421176

IMI Euro Finance timited 07929408 Premiar Profiles Limited 02547749

MI Fluid Controls {Finance) Limited 08528502 The Commitech Group Limited 03331461

M Germary |imited 07843578 Tnuflo Group Limited 04430846

M| Lakeside One Limited 00618526 Trufio International Limited 00164622

I Marston Limited 001550987 Trufio Investmants Limited 04430927
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Geographic distribution of employees

The following tabile shows the geographic distribution of employees as at 31 Deeemb«thSmdisnoimmﬁmdtobeaudited.

United Kingdom 1,366
Continental Europe 6,021
Americas 2075
Asia Paciic 1,229
Rest of World 210

Total 10,801
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Five year summary

Reported revenue £m Reported profit before tax* £m Group revenue by geography 2016
Rest of the
World
— 3 — 8 5%
- [}
! " i § g g
T— I
H
- - - ] - - L] - - -
] R ] k & & & B ] &
* Betore excaptional items,
Incoma staterment
2012 2013 2014 015 2018
£m om om om £m
Statutory revenue 1,684 1,743 1,692 1,567 1,657
Reported revenue* 1,696 1,744 1,686 1,557 1,649
Operating proft* 300.1 3216 295.5 2359 224.2
Reported profit before tax" 2748 297.7 278.1 218.7 208.0
Special pension events 109 - 7.0 8.1 28
Restruciuring costs (18.9 (14.9) . {8.6) {27.1) {18.8)
Acquired intangitle amortisation and impaiment {29.8) £21.9 {60.4) {32.2) {25.5}
Acquisition and disposal costs {6.3) 9.9} (1.8} - -
(Loss)/gain on dsposal of subsidiaries - - 42 {B.4) -
Financiat instruments axciuging aconomic hadge contract gains/osses {1.0} {2.4) (2.8) 26 {1.2)
Profit befors tax from continuing operations 229.9 2493 2457 162.7 165.3
EBITDA! 318 332 arn 263 283
* Befora exceptional itlems.
1 Eamings before interesi, tax, depreciation, amortisation and impakment.
Group revenuse by geography
2012 213 2014 205 2018
m £m om £m om
UK 101 104 28 90 5
Waestem Europe 894 686 644 563 630
North Amarica 308 338 318 334 4
Emerging Markets 482 504 544 505 520
Rast of World 133 112 82 85 80
Reported Revenue 1,606 1,744 1,686 1,557 1,649
Reversal of net econarmic hedge contract losses/{gains) 2) (1) 6 10 8

Statutory Heverwe 1,684 1,743 1,692 1,567 1,657
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Earnings and dividends
2012 203 2074 2015 2016
Reported basic samings per share B4.7p 72.8p 78.0p B2.2p 58.8p
Statutory basic eamings per share (continuing) 53.8p 60.4p 69.2p 44.7p 48.3p
Ordinary dividend per share 325p 35.3p 378p 38.4p 38.7p
Balance shest
2012 2013 2014 2018 2018
m £m £m m tm
Segmental nat assets
Continuing 906 897 849 926 1,041
Discontinued 189 196 - - -
Other net non-operating ksbiiities exchuding bormowings (gross) (267) " (246) {95) {100) (175)
Net debt
Continuing (160) (226) (200) (237) (283)
Discontinued (18) {27 - - -
Net assatls 684 6548 554 588 583
Statistics
202 2013 2014 2015 06
Segmental operating profit as a percentage of segmental revenue 17.7% 18.4% 17.5% 15.4% 13.8%
Segmental opemting profit as a percentage of segmental net assets 33.1% 359% 34.8% 25.9% 21.9%
Effective tax rate on adjusted profit before tax 24.0% 22.0% 22.0% 22.0% 21.0%
Net assets psr share (excluding treasury and EBT shares) 214.0p 10.0p 218.4p 217.3p N6.1p
Net debt as a percentage of shareholders’ funds 23.4% 34.9% 36.1% 40.2% 48.5%
Net debt: EBITDA* 0.5 0.7 0.6 a9 1.0

EBITDA": Interest

18

21

23

15

18

* EBITDA before exceptional items.
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Shareholder and general information

Anncuncement of trading reasults

“The trading results for the Group for the first half
of 2017 will be announcad on 28 July 2017.

The trading resuits for the full year ending 31
December 2017 witl be announced in early 2018.
Interim management statements will be issued in
May and November 2017,

Dividend payments in 2017
Final: 19 May 2017
Interim: September 2017

Share prices and capital gains tax

The closing price of the Company's andinary shares
on the London Stock Exchange on 31 December
2016 was 1,040.00p (2015: 8682.00p). The market
value of the Company’s ordinary shares on

31 March 1982, as calculated for capital gains
tax purpases, was 53.5p per share.

The Company’s SEAQ number is 51443,

Enquiries about sharsholdings

For anquines concerning shareholders™ personal
holdings, please contact the Company's Registrar:
Equiniti (contact detals appear to the right).

Please remember to tell Equintti if you move housae,
change bank details or if there is any other change
10 your acoount information,

Managing your shares online

Shareholdars can manage their holdings onfine

by registering with Shargview, the intemet based

platform provided by Equinitl. Registration is &

straightforward process and aflows sharehoiders to:

* heip us to reduce print, paper and postage
costs and the associated erwironmental Impact
of these;

* cast your AGM vote electronically;

» receive an emnail alect when important shareholger
documents are available online such as Annual
Reports and Notices of General Meatings;

* access details of your individual shareholding
quickdy and securely;

» gat up a dividend mandate online; and

* change your registersd postal address or your
dividend mandate details.

To find out more information about the sarvices

offered by Shareview and to register, please visit

www.shareview.co.uk.

Corporate website

The IMI plc website provides a wealth of useful
information for sharehoiders and should be your
first port of call for ganeral queries relating to the
Company and your shares. As well as providing share
prica data and financial history, the site also provides
background information about the Company.
Sharaholders are also encouraged 1O sigh up 1o
receive news alerts by email in the Investors section
of the website. These include all of the financial
news releases from throughout the year that are
not sent 10 shareholders by post. You can access
ths corporate website at www.imiplc.com.

Annual General Mesting 2017

This year's AGM will be held at the Hilton
Birmingham Metropota, National Exhibition Centre,
Birmingham, B4Q 1PP on Thursday 4 May 2017 at
10am. For further information, please refer to the
Notice of Megting which is on the corporate website,

Individua! Savings Account (ISA)

IMI's ordinary shares can be held in an iSA.

For information about the ISA operated by our
Registrar, Equiniti, please call the Equiniti ISA
helpling on 0345 300 0430. Lines are open from
€.30am to 5.30pm, Monday to Friday, excluding
UK public hofidays.

Share dealing service

Managed by Equinitl, the Company's registrar, the
IMI plc Share dealing service provides shareholders
with a simpla way of buying and selling IMI ordinary
shares. Telephone: 0345 603 7037, Full written
details can be obtained from Equiniti (contact
details appear to tha right).

American Depository Receipts

IMI pic has an American Depositary Receipt (ADR)
programme that trades on the Over-The-Counter
{"OTC') market in the USA, using the symbol IMIAY.,
ADR anquirnies should be directed to Citibank
Shareholder Services, PO Box 43077, Providence,
RI 02040-3077, USA. Toll-free number in the USA
ig 1-877-CIM-ADR (877-248-4237) and from outside
the USAis 1-781-575-4555. You can also email
citibank@sharsholders-online.com.

Headquarters and registered office
Lakeskie

Solihull Parkway
Birmingham Business Park

Birmingham
Bar 12

Telephona: +44 127 717 3700
WM plc is registered in England No.714275

Registrare
Equinit
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

Waest Sussex
BNOO 6DA

Telephone: 0371 384 29186 or from overseas
+44 121 415 7047

Lines are open 8.30am to §.30pm, Monday to
Friday (exchucing UK public holidays)

Stockbrokers

JPMorgan Cazenove
Bank of America Merrill Lynch

Share fraud

Share fraud includes scams where investors are
called out of the blue and offered sharas that often
turn out to be worthless or non-existent, or an
inflated price for shares they own. These calls come
from fraudsters operaling in 'boller rooms’ that are
mostly based abroad. Further information on how
to spot share fraud or report a scam can be found
on our corporate weabsite,

Auditor
Emst & Young LLP

Cautlionary statement

This Annual Repart may contain forward-locking
staternants that may or may not prove accurate. For
example, statements regarding expected revenue
growth and operating margins, market trends and
our preduct pipeline are forward-looking statements.
1t is believed that the expectations reflected in thase
statements are reasonable but they may be affected
by a number of risks and ungertainties that are
inherent in any forward-ooking statement which
could cause actual results to differ materially from
those curently anticipated. Any forward-locking
statement is made in good faith and based on
information available to IMI pic as of the date of

the preparation of this Annual Report. All written or
ora! forward-looking statements attributable to IM)
pic are qualified by this caution. IMI plc does not
undartake any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking staternent to reflect any changs

in circumstances or in IMI plc's expectations.




Annual Report and Accounts 2016

187

VA)
FSC
wwwiec.ong

MIX
Papar from
Maponsibie dources
FSC® CO16488

Designed and producsd by Dasipn Motive Lvd
Printed and bound in the UK by CP1 Colour Ltd



W
1 o

v

e

15
b

- RS
+ .
.
- »
e
£ B B
= .
v
P
- .
. -
+ . N

e

oty

L

o




